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merging global trends have defined the need to develop

_——— pharmaceutical products that offer preventative solu-
tons to illness and premature death. Nabi Biopharmaceuticals
is positioned to successfully address this need by delivering
innovative products that cannot only improve clinical outcomes
for patients and save lives, but also reduce the financial burden
on the healthcare system.

In 2004, the Nabi Biopharmaceuticals team moved the
company closer to addressing the global, unmet medical needs
in its four primary business areas: Gram-positive bacterial infec-
tions, hepatitis, kidney disease, and nicotine addiction. Our
commitment to innovative approaches in these four areas will

help shape a promising new future for healthcare around the globe.



DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

2004 was a year of record achievement for Nabi Biopharmaceuticals. These achievements were realized
because of the contributions and unwavering commitment of our 700 employees in the U.S. and Europe.
Those accomplishments include:

— We filed for licensure of PhosLo®and Nabi-HB® Intravenous in Europe.

— QOur Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, to market StaphVAXS our lead investigational
product for preventing hospital-acquired bacterial infections, in the European Union was completed and
filed two years ahead of our original goal.

— Qur 3,600-patdent StaphVAX Phase III efficacy study was initiated and fully enrolled in approximately 10 months.

— InOctober 2003, we signed an agreement with our manufacturing partner, Cambrex Bio Science Baltimore, Inc.,
and within 10 months successfully produced three consistency lots of StaphVAX, a critical milestone as
we prepare for commercialization in Europe.

— In eight months we completed construction of one of the most sophisticated, technologically advanced
vaccine manufacturing facilides in the world; this facility is located in Boca Raton, Florida.

— Our Phase I NicVAX™ results showed a 33% quit rate in smokers who received the drug at the highest
dose level, versus 9% in the placebo group.

— We grew PhosLo prescription sales by 7%; and grew equivalent bottle sales by 9% over comparable
2003 levels.

— Total biopharmaceutical sales rose 21% and overall gross margin reached a record level of 48% of sales.

— We made important additions to our leadership team in the areas of Sales and Marketing and
Business Development.

At Nabi Biopharmaceuticals, helping to shape the future of healthcare underlies everything we do. Not since
the introduction of penicillin in 1943 has there been even the promise of a new approach to address
life-threatening bacterial infections such as Staphylococcus awreus, or S. aureus. Today, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals
is poised to make that promise a reality for the millions of patients around the world who are at risk each
year. S. aureus infections are a large and growing global health concern due to a combination of the aging
population; the evolution of “smart” bugs that evade current antibiotic treatments; an increase in the number
of invasive synthetic device implants; and increased use of immunosuppressive treatment modalities, such
as drugs and radiation.

More than ever before, regulators and policy makers around the globe are embracing the idea that prevendon
— stopping a problem before it harms a patient — represents the best solution and the future of healthcare.

That is also our clear focus as a company. That is why we doubled our efforts and our investment in
research and development in 2004. If approved by regulators, StaphVAX will be the first and only solution
to prevent the most prevalent and dangerous strains of Gram-positive bacteria and to combat the resistance
issues that plague many of today’s antibiotic therapies.

At Nabi Biopharmaceuticals we also believe in finding the most effective and comprehensive therapeutic
solutions for patients who develop S. aureus infections. We have called on our expertise, our creativity, our
passion and our purpose as a company. Altastaph™ is being developed to treat hospitalized adult patients with
persistent S. aureus bloodstream infections. Recent clinical data showed that patients treated with Altastaph
in combination with antibiotics benefited from a five-day reduction in the median length of hospital stays
versus patients that received antibiotics and placebo. Reducing hospital stay from 14 to nine days could pro-
vide significant benefits in terms of patients” health and lower the cost of care. Because these patients are also
at a significant risk of re-infection after leaving the hospital — approximately 30% in an 18-month period
according to a 2003 clinical study at Brigham and Women’s Hospital — we believe that this patient popu-
lation could also benefit from being immunized with StaphVAX at hospital discharge to elicit long-term
protection. We hope to initiate combination clinical studies on the use of Altastaph and StaphVAX in these
patients during 2005.

In 2004 we were also very pleased to report that third-party scientific data and physician sentiment
supported the use of PhosLo to treat hyperphosphatemia in U.S. dialysis patients. Results of the CARE study,
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the only double-blinded; randomized, controlled, head-to-head trial between PhosLo and the other leading
prescripuon product in the U.S., sevelamer hydrochloride, support that PhosLo should remain first-line treat-
ment for hemodialysis patients. From a clinical perspective, the data showed that PhosLo attained the National
Kidney Foundadon’s K/DOQI guidelines in controlling serum phosphorus levels and calcium phosphate prod-
uct better than the other prescription therapy. From a pharmacoeconomic perspective, the results also showed
thatif sevelamer hydrochloride was used to treat the over 330,000 U.S. dialysis patients, the costs to treat these
patients would increase by as much as $500 million per year.

When approved in Europe, PhosLo will help us establish our commercial presence in nephrology and
set the stage for a successful StaphVAX launch. In 2004 we also continued to advance the clinical program
for PhosLo with the initiation of the CARE 2 study. This study is evaluating PhosLo plus Lipitor® versus
Renagel® (sevelamer hydrochloride) plus Lipitor® to provide a comparison of each drug’s ability to control
phosphate and calcium phosphate product over a twelve-month period. In addition, the study will provide a
true comparison of arterial calcification to support that calcium is not a significant cause of soft plaque build-up.
In fact, we expect to demonstrate that patients treated with PhosLo and Lipitor® will have equal control of
lipids, comparable arterial calcification, and better control of serum phosphate and calcium phosphate
product at about one-third to one-half the cost of Renagel plus Lipitor®-treated patients. Preliminary results
will be available in 2005; arterial calcification results will be available in 2006. We also expect to initiate
a study with PhosLo in chronic kidney disease, or CKD, patients to support a broader label for PhosLo. There
are over one million Americans suffering from chronic kidney disease.

2005 will be an equally important year of transformation for Nabi Biopharmaceuticals. Our goals are clear:

— Advance StaphVAX toward commercialization in the European Union.

— File a Biologics License Application, or BLA, to market StaphVAX in the U S.

— Report results from our immunogenicity studies with StaphVAX in cardiovascular and orthopedic
surgery patients. These data will be important toward achieving our goal of expanding the use of
StaphVAX beyond end-stage renal, or kidney, disease patients.

— Initiate additional clinical studies for vaccines for preventdng infections to include Staphylococcal epidermidis, or
S. epidermidis, and S. anreus Type 336 bacterial infections, the objective of which is to expand the efficacy
for StaphVAX beyond S. aureus Types 5 and 8.

— Initiate additional studies of Altastaph for the treatment of hospitalized adult patients with persistent
S. aureus bloodstream infections.

— Advance our next generation Altastaph product for preventing infections to include S. epidermidis,
a dangerous and prevalent pathogen that plagues low birth-weight infants.

— Generate cash flow from product sales to help fund our development programs.

We look to the future and see many opportunities before us. As in 2004, the talents and dedication of Nabi
Biopharmaceuticals’ employees will continue to drive our success. We will continue to pursue our goals, aligned
with our standards of quality, values, integrity and ethics. And we will remain steadfast in our commitment
to advance science, stimulate innovation and provide better solutions for patients and healthcare providers
around the globe.

Sincerely,

(Whomae d- iBur

Thomas H. McLain
Chairman, CEO and President
March 23, 2005
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The immune system is a constellation of molecules, cells and organs
whose complex interactions can protect a person from both outside
“invaders”, as well as the body’s own internal “invaders.” This efficient
system can be divided into elements that are innate (non-adaptive or
non-specific), and those that are acquired (adaptive or specific).

Key components of the innate immune system are the skin and mucous
membrane. The importance of skin in resisting infection cannot be
overemphasized, since it is the location at which most microorganisms
are stopped.

The acquired immune system is characterized by specificity and memory.
That is, the acquired immune system is able to distinguish foreign cells
from the body’s own cells and its memory enables resistance to re-infec-
tion from the same invader for an extended period of time.

B- and T-cells (lymphocytes) mount the defense.

B-cells are responsible for the specific and rapid response to extra-
cellular microorganisms (including bacteria and viruses), against which
they produce soluble factors known as antibodies (immunoglobulin).
T-cells act as the coordinator of other acquired immune responses.
They are also the primary responders to long-term intracellular infections.



When a protein vaccine is injected into a person, it is recognized by an
Antigen Presenting Cell, such as a B-cell. The antigen is internalized,
processed and digested into smaller fragments (peptides), which are then
presented on the surface of these cells. The peptide is recognized by
helper T-cells, which release “chemical messengers” and cause the B-cells
to proliferate into antibody-producing plasma cells. Protein antigens stim-
ulate T-cell dependent, strong and high affinity antibody response.

Many bacterial pathogens, such as S. aureus, carry a polysaccharide
(sugars) structure on their surfaces. These polysaccharides help the
pathogen hide from the immune system and cause disease.

S. aureus bacterial infections are caused when a break occurs in the skin
or mucous membrane due to a burn, trauma, or insertion of a device
during a surgical procedure. The bacteria travel to the bloodstream,
multiply, and release toxins. Even though a mild response is then mounted,
the bacteria largely escape effective detection by the immune system.
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New immunogens empower response to polysaccharides.

Over the past twenty years, a new technology has been developed, which
involves linking otherwise non-immunogenic polysaccharides isolated
from bacteria to protein antigens, thereby empowering the body’s
immune system to recognize the polysaccharide. These new immuno-
gens were shown to induce strong, high affinity and reasonably long
memory immune responses in adults and in infants. In collaboration with
The National Institutes of Health, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals has developed
a novel vaccine against S. aureus — StaphVAX — based on this approach.

How does StaphVAX work?

°  Upon immunization, StaphVAX induces antibodies to two
prevalent and dangerous S. aureus bacteria: Types 5 and 8.

o These antibodies attack the bacteria on many sites of
the sugar coating that surrounds the bacteria.

o This attack stimulates bacteria killing by the white blood cells.

o The bacteria are then cleared from the bloodstream.




£ B
............

......

......

nospitals could have a significant impact on img




StaphVAX:

A Paradigm in
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Clinical
Need

S. aureus is the most common
cause of hospital-acquired bac-
terial infections and can spread
from the blood (bacteremia) to
cause serious secondary infec-
tions in the bones (osteomyelitis),
or the inner lining of the heart
and its valves (endocarditis), or it
can cause abscesses in internal
organs such as the lungs, liver
and kidneys. People most at risk
for these infections are surgical
patients, trauma or burn victims,
and patients with chronic ill-
nesses such as diabetes, cancer,
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and lung or kidney diseases.
People whose immune systems are
suppressed due to their under-
lying disease, chemotherapy, or
radiation therapy, are also more
susceptible to these infections.

At the 2004 annual meeting
of the American Heart Association,
study results from Duke University
Medical Center showed that
S. aureus bacteremia in patients
with cardiovascular devices
caused a significant increase in
the incidence of medical compli-
cations, treatment costs and
death. Among the 122 patients
evaluated, 44% experienced seri-
ous complications as a result of
their infection and 35% died
within 12 weeks. The study also
demonstrated that S. aureus
bacteremia was associated with

antiDlotcs

substantial medical costs —
individual patients incurred a
mean cost of $82,300 for a hos-
pital-acquired infection.

In 2004, Nabi Biopharm-
aceuticals initiated additional
StaphVAX clinical studies in
other patient groups at risk for
infection, such as cardiovascular
and orthopedic surgery patients.
The goal of the studies is to
prove that StaphVAX stimulates
antibody levels in these patients
comparable to levels shown to
be protective in immune-com-
promised ESRD patients. The
data from the studies will be
important for defining the
potential to expand the use of
StaphVAX beyond the ESRD
patient population to additional
at-risk patient groups.




The Issue of

Resistance

In the U.S. alone, an estimated
12 million patients are put at
risk for acquiring a bacterial
infection as a consequence of
being treated in a hospital, nurs-
ing home or dialysis center each
year. According to the Centers
for Disease Control, over two
million of these patients will
actually develop an infection.
Within the 5,400 acute care hos-
pitals inthe U.S., S. aureus is the
leading cause of these hospital-
acquired bloodstream infections
and is becoming increasingly
resistant to antibiotics. In the
European Union’s 7,600 acute
care hospitals, S. aureus is the
cause of bloodstream infections

19% of the time, a figure that
nearly matches the U.S., where
25% of bloodstream infections
acquired in hospitals are caused
by S. aureus.

Worldwide, it is estimated
that over 95% of patients with
S. aureus infections no longer
respond to first-line antibiotics,
such as penicillin or ampicillin.
Methicillin is an alternative treat-
ment for S. aureus infections,
but the incidence of Methicillin-
resistant S. aureus (MRSA) rose
from 22% in 1995 to 57% in 2002
in the U.S. The Centers for
Disease Control estimate that
in 2002 there were approxi-
mately 100,000 cases of hospi-
tal-acquired MRSA infections in
the U.S. and the number of
these infections is only wors-
ening. Vancomycin is now
considered the treatment of
last resort, but S. aureus has
also developed resistance to

A Cascade of Benefits with StaphVAX

this antibiotic. Resistance to
Vancomycin is expected to
increase significantly over the
next decade.

The European Antimicrobial
Resistance Surveillance System
reported significant increases in
MRSA infections throughout
Europe from 1999-2004. The
greatest percentage increases
were reported in Belgium,
Germany, Ireland, The Netherlands
and the United Kingdom (UK). For
example, the rate of MRSA infec-
tions in the UK rose from 33% in
1999 to 44% in 2004. In early 2005,
The Lancet, a leading, peer-
reviewed journal, published a
study revealing that the overuse
of antibiotics in Spain, Greece,
Italy, Portugal and France is caus-
ing high rates of antibiotic resist-
ance. The rates of MRSA are even
greater in certain Asian countries
{72% MRSA rate in Japan; 74% in
Hong Kong).

CHALLENGE

STAPHVAX SOLUTION

patents in the

\ Infections keep
{
L hospital longer.
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Reduced burden on the healthcare
system by preventing infections
before they occur, cause harm, and
lengthen patient hospital stays.

|
1 Large and

l growi.ng unmet
( medical need.

Potential to prevent S. zureus infections
in the over 20 million at-risk patients in
the U.S. and Europe.

Tl

whelming patients’
immune systems.

“Smart” bugs are over-

Proven, novel technology not
prone to resistance. |




A combination therapy approach with
Altastapn (for treatment) and StaphVAX
upon hospital discharge (for long-term
prevention from relapse) will offer
important therapeutic and preventative
benefits to patdents afflicted with these
life-threatening infections.

StaphVAX and Altastaph:

A Powerful Combination

StaphVAX and Altastaph share a common mechanism of
action. When antibodies to S. aureus attach to the outer
capsule of the bacteria as it circulates in the blood, they
trigger an immune response, enabling the body’s white
blood cells to recognize the bacteria and destroy it before
it can lead to a serious secondary infection.




Nabi Biopharmaceuticals’
Altastaph is being developed
to treat hospitalized adult
patients with persistent S. aureus
bloodstream infections. In early
2005, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals
reported results from a clinical
study that indicated there could
be as much as a 36% reduction
in median time from adminis-
tration of the study drug to hos-
pital discharge in patients treated
with antibiotics in combination
with Altastaph versus patients
treated with antibiotics plus
placebo (nine days in the Altastaph
group versus 14 days in the
placebo group). This substan-
tial reduction in length of hospi-
tal stay for the Altastaph-treated

group indicates that S. aureus
antibodies provided by Altastaph
could be associated with consid-

_ erable medical benefit in the

treatment of persistent S. aureus
infections. Additionally, because
patients were treated effectively
and went home sooner, Altastaph
represents another solution to
reducing the financial burden of
these infections on the health-
care system.

Recent clinical data from
Brigham and Women'’s Hospital
(Clinical Infectious Diseases,
2003; 36: 281-285) showed that
patients treated for a serious
S. aureus infection and released
from the hospital are at a very
high risk for recurrence within a

relatively short period of time.
Nabi Biopharmaceuticals believes
that a combination therapy
approach with Altastaph (for
treatment) and StaphVAX upon
hospital discharge (for long-
term prevention from relapse)
will offer important therapeutic
and preventative benefits to
patients afflicted with these life-
threatening infections.

Recent clinical data from Brigham
and Women’s Hospital showed
that patients treated for a serfous

S. auwrens infecton and released

from the hospital are at a very
high risk for recurrence within a
relatively short period of dme.




THE NABI WAY

t the core of everything

that happens at Nabi

Biopharmaceuticals,
whether it’s advancing our global strategy,
reaching a critical milestone in record time, or
seeking the next blockbuster drug, are a set of five
core values developed by the very employees
who implement them. They define the unique
culture of our company and they will be critical
elements of our future successes.

What are these values?

First, we seek to understand our cus-
tomers’ needs — whether the customer is the
physician prescribing
treatment, the clini-

Third, we believe the best and most
effective way to succeed is through teamwork.
Departmental and cross-functional team mem-
bers openly share information and contribute
their talents and abilities to achieve our goals.
We also look for employees who bring a
diverse set of experiences and perspectives to
enrich our team.

Fourth, we are learning focused.
Operating as we do in an intensely intellectual
and scientfic environment, we seek to contin-
uously update our knowledge and skills to
respond to today’s competitive environment,

Nowhere has effective teamwork mattered more

cian administering  than in entering the European marketplace.

that treatment, the

patient receiving it, or the reimburser paying
for it. We continually search for innovative
solutions that not only improve health, but also
have the potendal to reduce the spiraling cost
of healthcare.

Second, we are results oriented. For
example, our Nabi Biopharmaceuticals
“Balanced Scorecard” monitors individual, team,
department and company performance to
ensure that all our activides are aligned with our
corporate vision, mission and strategy and that
we achieve our goals.
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to anticipate change and to maintain an advan-
tage in all the markets in which we compete.

Fifth, we must be change ready. For
Nabi Biopharmaceuticals employees, there is
no “inside the box” or “outside the box.” We
operate in one seamless environment where
everyone is encouraged to rethink old ways
and pursue new ones to keep the business in
a state of continuous improvement.







A few examples will demonstrate how
these core values translated into Nabi
* Biopharmaceuticals’ success in 2004.

First, the company completed three
European regulatory filings in 2004, far
exceeding the team’s expectations. Most

The company completed three European
regulatory filings in 2004, far exceeding
the team’s expectations.

We completed the StaphVAX filing

24 months ahead of our original plans.

notably, we completed the StaphVAX filing
24 months ahead of our original plans, an
impressive accomplishment by any standard.

The StaphVAX filing was our first
application for a vaccine product and
the first product developed fully from
benchtop to license submission by Nabi
Biopharmaceuticals. It would not have hap-
pened were it not for a tremendous effort
on the part of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals
employees from top to bottom.

This filing is not only an important
milestone for advancing our nephrology fran-
chise and building our commercial presence in

Europe, it addresses one of the European
Union’s most pressing public healthcare con-
cerns: S. aureus infections.

Nabi Biopharmaceuticals’ new vac-
cine manufacturing facility in Boca Raton,
Florida is another example of our drive to
beat the clock — and to
establish ourselves as a
fully integrated biophar-
maceuticals company.

The construction
of this facility which was
completed in only eight
months, versus an industry
norm of two to four years, will greatly enhance
our manufacturing capacity, enabling us to
meet anticipated global demand for our prod-
ucts as soon as they are licensed. When the
capacity of our vaccine facility is combined
with the capacity being developed with our
manufacturing partner, Cambrex Bio Science
Baltimore, Inc., we will be positioned to provide
a smooth and uninterrupted supply of StaphVAX
to the marketplace.







Nabi Biopharmaceuticals’ core values
also contribute to our search for the next
blockbuster drug. We have a deep pipeline of
biopharmaceutical products for Gram-positive
bacterial infections, hepatitis, kidney disease
and nicotine addicton. Behind each of these
products — and
some are not yet in
the pipeline —is a
team of people who
want to contribute
to the answer for
some of today’s
most significant unmet medical needs.

Today, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals has
an array of products being studied in clinical
trials, including experimental vaccines for
S. aureus infections and nicotine addiction
and antibody-based therapies for S. aureus
infections and hepattis B and C. Any or all of
these could help address the significant medical

needs of people around the world.
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Our five core values are part of what
we do everyday. Combined with our com-
mitment to quality, integrity and ethics, they
form the company culture that will drive our
success. All of us believe in the promise of
biotechnology, and we understand that our

In 2004, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals completed the
construction of a new vaccine manufacturing
facility in just eight months — an accomplishment
unheard of for such a complex facility.

work has profound implications for the health
of patients around the world. Our employees
know that what we do affects the lives of millions
of people. People with serious medical needs.
People at risk. People with no other solutons.

What better reasons to be moti-
vated and inspired when we come to work
each morning?
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When 1 was 10 years old, I brought home a tambourine and showed it to my father. With every passing
day, I loved playing the tambourine more and more; I practice every day. I was hooked. I played my first
show when I was 11 and haven’t stopped since. I've played all across the globe — 15 countries in all. I
moved from my native country of Brazil to the United States in 1994 and since then many opportuni-
ties have come my way. I recently published a CD and book on how to play the tambourine and I hope

to start college soon and improve my English. This was a great challenge and a great joy. Music is in
me and always will be.

CarRLOS S1Lva General Custodial Worker




I'd trained hard for a race to benefit juvenile diabetes, and now the day was here. I was hyper — I wanted
to run as fast as I could. But I knew T had to pace myself in order to finish. As I ran, mile-by-mile, my
legs cramped, my knees burned, my eyes stung. But I wasn’t about to quit—I knew I could do it. And
I did — I crossed the finish line running! It was a personal achievement for a great cause.

18 JeaneTTE RUB10 Manager, Customer Relations



When she was six years old, my daughter Jenny was diagnosed with Nephrotic Syndrome, a kidney
condition that, if not treated, can lead to leukemia. No one knows what causes it, but she has to be on
steroids and watch her diet carefully. We've tried acupuncture and herbal medicine too. Yet through
it all, she’s stayed a happy, cheerful child — even though she can’t eat pizza with her brother! It’s been
tough. But thanks to a fantastic team here at work, we’ve been able to handle it all.

Jiviin Xi1a, Pa.D. Senior Scientist, Process Development 19




My wife Heather and I compete in Adventure Races —a grueling, 110-mile non-stop race that combines
running, paddling, biking, and carrying your bike through knee- and waist-high swamps. It’s a team race,
so to successfully complete it, ALL team members must complete the race, from start to finish. Everyone
has to finish, or the whole team loses. We trained for three months, and it was just as intense and
difficult as we expected. After 29 non-stop hours, our team was almost ready to give up — we still had
40 miles to go and one of the team members developed hypothermia. But we kept going and helped him
out. Once he got his strength back, he helped to pull the rest of us over the finish line. We finished at
hour 35, placing 1st in our division. We prepared well, expected the unexpected and refused to quit.

Jim GrEGoRr10s Specialty Program Manager, BioMedical Center



o have been

A few years ago, my best friend gave birth to a baby under 8oo grams — less than two pounds. The
baby, alittle girl named McKenzie, had to stay in the hospital for three months. During that time, my
friend was asked if she would let the baby be part of a clinical trial for a complication of premature birth.
She was worried and didn’t know how to respond. But because I know something about clinical
trials, I was able to reassure her that babies in declared, approved trials usually do fine, largely because
they get so much attention from caregivers. Thankfully, McKenzie did do fine, and today she’s a beautiful,
energetic 18-month old. I'm proud to have been part of her story and in her life today.

Naom1 VENEY Manager, Clinical Projects n




I was born in Denmark, but at 18 I left to find greater opportunity. For a while, I lived in London,
but my real goal was the United States. The journey was filled with joys and challenges — I didn't
know the language or the culture — but I was focused. I knew I wanted an education and a satisfying
career. Today I can say it was all worth it.  know I'm making a difference. Direction, discipline and
patience were the qualities I had with me when I began my journey, and they’re the tools I use every
day, in life and work.

22 PreTER DorrpHO Manager, Sales and Marketing Information




no feeling

ANORLD LIKE

When I was four years old, my father wanted to buy me a pony, but he knew I had to learn to ride horses
first. As it happened, the stable where I had my first riding lesson developed Clympic-level equestrians.
Fortunately, I loved it from the start and I thrived on the pressure of training. By the time I was eight,
I'was riding 24 hours a week. When I was 15, I had earned the right to compete among the best in the
world and by 17, I made the U.S. Olympic team. But one of my most special memories is winning an
event at the Cow Palace in 1991, because I had tried for five years to win it and it defined my endre career
as an equestrian — most of all, because my mom, who worked long hours and usually couldn’t come to see
me ride, was able to share in my win for the first time. There is no feeling in the world like achieving a goal
— and being able to share it.

ReBEcca van Doren Pacific District Manager 23
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With one of the most sophis-
ticated, technologically
advanced vaccine manufac-
turing facilities in the world,
Nabi Biopharmaceuticals is
building an infrastructure
with a global vision in mind.

SCALING

In 2004, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals completed the construction of a new vaccine manufacturing
facility in just eight months — an accomplishment unheard of for such a complex facility.

More than ever before, biotechnology companies must dedicate appropriate resources
to building the most compliant, effective, efficient and safe manufacturing facilities. Patient
health depends on it.

Nabi Biopharmaceuticals’ new world-class vaccine manufacturing facility will support
production of its vaccine product portfolio. Production in the facility will initially be dedicated
to support the commercialization of StaphVAX. Innovative design features were added to
allow for manufacturing flexibility and capacity for the production of NicVAX, being developed

to prevent and treat nicotine addiction, as well as Nabj Biopharmaceuticals’ next generation of
Gram-positive vaccine products.




gy @?éﬁ technicians performing calibration adjustments
s Bing qdaliﬁcation of the state-of-the-art centrifuge, in
f thellistream suites of the facility, prior to initiation of
S g}érial) vaccine lots manufacturing.
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Gram-positive bacteria, most notably S. aureus, S. epidermidis and Enterococcus, are
leading causes of serious hospital-acquired infections. An estimated 12 million U.S. patients are’
at risk of contracting an S. aureus infection each year.
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Tobacco use is the single most preventable cause of death in the U.S. and is responsible for
approximately 440,000 deaths each year. According to the World Health-Organization, over

one billion people around the world smoke. Tobacco use is expected to kill four.miilion.
people worldwide within the next year.
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According to the World Health Organization, approximately 170 million people are infected with
hepatitis C; two to four million will be newly infected every year. In the U.S. .and Europe, 40% of
liver transplants are due to HCV. In the U.S. alone, over one million people are chronic hepatitis
B carriers. HBV rates in the European Union are similar.



There are over one million Americans suffering from chronic kidney disease. Over 330,000
U.S:patients are currently undergoing-dialysis: Over 200,000 European patients are currently
undergoing dialysis,
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StaphVAX Phase 1li
Altastaph \ A Phase i
Next Generation Gram-Positi\\/.e Program g Phase 1111

Nabi Biopharmaceuticals is a\élvancing through the clinic a paradigm-changing franchise of vaccines

designed to prevent and/or treat one of the most pressing and preventable public health challenges

of our time — Gram-positive bacterial infections. .

;
.

Gram-positive bacteria, most notably

S. aureus, S. epidermidis and Entero-

coccus, are leading causes of serious : T
hospital-acquired infections. An esti- ‘

mated 12 million U.S. patients are at S
risk of contracting an S. aureus infection AN ‘
each year. :
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Tobacco use is the single most pre-
ventable cause of death in the U.S.
and is responsible for approximately
440,000 deaths each year. According
to the World Health Organization,
over one billion people around the
world smoke. Tobacco use is expected
to kill four million people worldwide
within the next year.

NicvVAX \ Phase i

NicVAX is a novel and proprietary investigational vaccine to prevent and treat nicotine addiction
and to aid in smoking cessation. Nabi Biopharmaceuticals hopes to obtain external funding in 2004 so
it can complete its Phase II, dose optimizing study for NicVAX and subsequen’%ly initiate a Phase III pivotal trial.
|
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Civacir \ R / - : Phase !/Il
Nabi-HB Intravenous [ v . License Application
Nabi-HB ! Market

\

Civacir, designated as an Orphan\Drug, is being developed to prevent hepatitis C disease in HCV-
positive liver transplant patients. Civacir also is being evaluated for the treatment of chronic
hepatitis C virus infections. If appf‘o\ved, Nabi-HB Intravenous will be the only product available
in the U.S. indicated to prevent re-infection of the hepatitis B virus (HBV). Nabi-HB, currently
on the market, provides short-term protection to patients following exposure to the hepatitis B virus.-

..

— There are over one million Americans

T suffering from chronic kidney dis-
ease. Over 330,000 U.S. patients are
currently undergoing dialysis. Over
200,000 European patients are cur-
rently undergoing dialysis.

According to the World Health Organi-
zation, approximately 170 million
people are infected with hepatitis C;
two to four million will be newly
infected every year. in the U.S. and
Europe, 40% of liver transplants are
due to HCV. In the U.S. alone, over
one million people are chronic
hepatitis B carriers. HBV rates in the
European Union are similar.

PhosLo ESRD (U.S)) \\ Market

PhosLo ESRD (E.U.) \ License Application
Phase lilb

PhosLo Chronic Kidney Disease

With PhosLo, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals is helping to improve the lives (S\f patients who suffer from
the debilitating effects of their dialysis treatments. From a clinical and economic standpoint,
PhosLo remains the binder of choice for physicians and first-line therapy for patients.
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
OVERVIEW

We leverage our experience and knowledge in powering the immune system to develop and market products that
fight serious medical conditions. We are poised to capture large, commercial opportunities in our four core busi-
ness areas: Gram-positive bacterial infecdons; hepatitis; kidney disease (nephrology); and nicotine addicton. We
have four products on the market today and a number of products in various stages of clinical and preclinical
development. We invest the gross margins we earn from sales of our marketed products toward funding the devel-
opment of our product pipeline.

This business model has allowed us to largely self-fund the application of our clinical, regulatory, commer-
cial and manufacturing expertise in developing innovative new products. We believe these products will not only
save lives and improve clinical outcomes for patients, but at the same time will make an important contribution
to reducing the increasing financial burden on the healthcare system.

As an example, our lead product in development, StaphVAX (Stuphylococcus aureus Polysaccharide Conjugate
Vaccine), is positioned to become a new standard of preventative care for patients at risk of contracting life-
threatening S. aureus bacterial infections. In the U.S. alone, $5 billion in additive patient-care costs are incurred
annually because of bacterial infections. S. aureus and other Gram-positive bacteria are the cause of a majority of
these infections and have become serious public health challenges that plague millions of padents around the world.
Current approaches do not adequately prevent or treat the most prevalent and dangerous strains of S. aurens
bacteremia that are becoming increasingly resistant to antibiotic treatments. To combat this problem, thought lead-
ers in government and academic arenas favor preventative approaches to combat bacterial infections. This is based
on a belief that preventon is better for patients and less costly than treatment.

In December 2004, we submitted a Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, to the European Medicines
Agency, or EMEA, under the Centralized Registration Procedure for approval to market StaphVAX within the
European Union. The indication sought under this initial license application is for the prevention of S. aureus
bacteremia in patients with end-stage kidney disease on hemodialysis for up to 40 weeks. These patients are at a
particularly high risk for S. aureus infections; approximately 6% of these patients will develop a S. aurens intecdon
each year. In 2005, following completion of a confirmatory Phase III clinical trial, we intend to file a Biologics License
Application for marketing clearance of StaphVAX in the U.S.

StaphVAX is also an important component of our focus in kidney disease (nephrology). Kidney disease is a
growing, global public health problem driven by the increasing incidence of diabetes, obesity and hypertension
around the world. In the U.S. alone, the annual direct medical costs for end-stage renal disease, or ESRD, are nearly
$23 billion. Our currently marketed product, PhosLo (calcium acetate), is indicated for the treatment of hyper-
phosphatemia, or elevated serum phosphate levels, among patients suffering from ESRD. We believe that, combined,
StaphVAX and PhosLo will position us as a leader in the large and growing global nephrology market.

Furthermore, we plan to broaden the applicaton of StaphVAX beyond kidney disease patients to prevent a
number of dangerous and prevalent Gram-positive bacterial infections in other high-risk patient groups. Globally,
our Gram-positive bacterial infections program could represent a $1-$2 billion market opportunity.

In addition to our biopharmaceutical business, we also collect specialty and non-specific antibodies for use in
our products and sell the excess production to pharmaceutical and diagnostic customers for the subsequent
manufacture of their products.

We are incorporated in Delaware. Our U.S. operations are headquartered in Boca Raton, Florida and our
European headquarters are located in Bray, Ireland. We maintain our commercial and manufacturing operations
in Boca Raton and our research and development operations in Rockville, Maryland.

Nabi Biopharmaceuticals 3




The following table shows our currently marketed and development products:

Products Indication/Intended Use

Status

GRAM-POSITIVE INFECTIONS

StaphVAX® Protection against Types 5 and 8
S. aureus infections

Altastaph™ Treatment of S. gureus infections in adults
in conjunction with standard of care therapy
including antibiotics

Altastaph™ NxG  Prevention of S. aureus and S. epidermidis

infecdons among patents who are wo
immunocompromised to respond to
StaphVAX, or who do not have the time
to respond to StaphVAX

StaphVAX™ 336  Protection against S. gureuts

Type 336 infections

S. Epidermidis
Vaccine

Protection against S. epiderraidis infections

EnteroVAX™ Protection against enterococcal infections

KIDNEY DISEASE

PhosLo® ‘Treatment of hyperphosphatemia in
end-stage renal failure patients

PhosLo® CKD  Treatment of hyperphosphatemia in
pre-dialysis chronic kidney disease patients

HEPATITIS

Nabi-HB® Post-exposure prevention of
hepattis B infection

Nabi-HB® Prevendon of re-infection with hepatitis B in

Intravenous liver transplant patients

(HEBIG in the EU)

Prevention of re-infection with hepatitis C
in liver transplant patients

Civacir™

NICOTINE ADDICTION
NicVAX™ Treatment of nicotine addiction

HEMATOLOGY & ONCOLOGY
WinRho SDF®  ITP

Aloprim® Chemotherapy-induced hyperuricemia

4 Nabi Biopharmaceuticals

EU application for licensure for prevention of S. aureus
infecdons in ESRD patients on hemodialysis filed under
the centralized procedure in December 2004; Ongoing
confirmatory Phase III clinical trial in U.S.; Fast Track
Designation for use in ESRD patients in the U.S.

Phase I/TI clinical trial for treating adults with S. aurens
infections in combination with standard of care therapy,
including antibiotics completed in 2004; Phase IIB or
Phase I1I clinical trial being planned for 2005

Phase II clinical trial in very Jow birth-weight newborns
completed in 2004; Orphan Drug Status and Fast Track
Designation in the U.S. for preventing S. #ureus infec-
tions in very low birth weight neonate patients; Next
generation product being manufactured in 2005;

Phase [IB or Phase IIT clinjcal trial planned for 2006

Phase 1/11 clinical trial planned for 2005

Phase I/1I clinical trial planned for 2005

Pre-clinical

Marketed in U.S.; Application for licensure in the EU
through mutual recognition process filed October 2004;
CARE2 initiated in the fourth quarter of 2004

Phase IIIB clinical trial in Level IV chronic kidney disease
patients planned for 2005

Marketed in U.S.

Application for licensure in the EU through mutual
recognition process filed June 2004; BLA filed and under
review in U.S.; Orphan Drug Designation in the U.S.

Phase I/II clinical trial completed in 2004; Orphan Drug
Designation in the U.S.

Ongoing Phase II clinical trial in Europe; Phase I trial
in U.S. completed in 2004; Phase III clinical trial being
planned for 2005

Marketed in U.S. under a distribution agreement that
ends in March 2005

Marketed in U.S.




PRODUCTS
GRAM-POSITIVE INFECTIONS

Within the approximately 5,400 acute care hospitals in the U.S., S. aureus is the leading cause of hospital-acquired
bloodstream infections. In addition, the U.S. Centers for Disease Control, or CDC, estimates that more than
two million patients in the U.S. each year contract an infection as a result of exposure to a pathogen while receiving
care in a hospital. In the EU’ approximately 7,600 acute care hospitals, SENTRY reports S. aureus to be the cause
of blood stream infections 19% of the time, which is nearly as frequent as in the U.S. where S. aureus is reported
to cause 25% of blood stream infections acquired in acute care hospitals. With its capacity to cause serious com-
plications and its increasing resistance to most antibiotics, S. azreus has become a critically dangerous pathogen
and a global health concern. S. aureus can spread from the blood to the bones or the inner lining of the heart and
its valves, or cause abscesses in internal organs such as the lungs, kidneys and brain.

Staphylococcal infections are difficult to treat because the bacteria that cause them are virulent and often resistant to
antibiotics. The rise of antibiotic resistance as reported by the CDC in the 2003 National Nosocomial Infections
Surveillance Systems report has markedly curtailed options for treating these infections. Methicillin-resistant
S. aureus, or MRSA, from all sites of infection has risen from 22% in 1995 to 57% in 2002 in the U.S. The European
Antimicrobial Resistance Surveillance System reported significant increases in MRSA infections throughout
Europe from 1998 to 2002. The greatest relative increases were found in Belgium, Germany, Ireland, The
Netherlands and the United Kingdom, or UK, with MRSA. in the UK increasing from 33% in 1999 to 43% in 2003.
And, according to the SENTRY Antimicrobial Surveillance Program in the Asia-Pacific region, similar trends have
been described in the Asia-Pacific region with a rate of MRSA of 73% in Japan, and similar rates in certain other
Asian countries.

S. aureus infection rates in patient populations at high-risk for S. aurens infection can be as high as up to 40%.
These infecdons result in longer hospital stays, higher death rates, increased illness and significantly higher medical
costs. A retrospective study completed at the Duke University Medical Center determined that dialysis-dependent
patients hospitalized with MRSA had a mean in-patient stay of 14.2 days. These patients also incurred mean costs
of treatment of $32,655 and had a 35% mortality rate at 12 weeks.

In 2004, investigators from Duke Clinical Research Insttute, Duke University Medical Center, Durham, North
Carolina and Health Economics Consulting, Annapolis, Maryland completed a study evaluatng heart disease patients
with implanted cardiovascular devices such as prosthetic valves, pacemakers and defibrillators, ventricular assist
devices, intra-aortic balloon pumps and non-hemodialysis intravascular stents/grafts who developed S. aureus
bacteremia that was sponsored by us. In this study, 44% of the patients evaluated experienced serious complica-
tions as a result of their infection and 35% died within 12 weeks. The study also demonstrated that S. aureus
bacteremia was associated with substantial medical costs with individual patients incurring a mean cost of $82,300
for a hospital-acquired infecton.

StaphVAX

StaphVAX, our lead product in clinical development, seeks to address this global healthcare issue. StaphVAX
represents a new approach in the available clinical tools against S. aureus infections. It is focused on prevention
rather than treatment. We are developing StaphVAX for patients who are at high risk of S. aurens infection and who
are able to respond to a vaccine by producing their own antibodies. StaphVAX is an investigational polysaccharide
conjugate vaccine based on patented vaccine technology licensed on an exclusive basis from the Public Health
Service/NIH. StaphVAX represents a novel approach to the prevention of S. zureus infections. StaphVAX contains
surface polysaccharides found in the outer coating of Types 5 and 8 S. aureus. The polysaccharide molecules are
linked, or conjugated, to a non-toxic, carrier protein derived from the bacteria Pseudomonas aeruginosa
(Pseudomonas exoprotein A) that causes a strong response by the immune system to the conjugated complex.
Once given the vaccine, the patient’s immune system produces proteins, called antibodies, to the polysaccharides,
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which bind to S. aureus on subsequent exposure to the bacteria. These antibodies help the immune system to
identify the S. aureus bacteria while it is in the blood and eliminate it before significant damage can be inflicted.
Since these antibodies bind to several sites on the bacteria’s surface polysaccharides, we believe that it will be much
more difficult for the bacteria to develop resistance to the antbodies, contrary to what has been observed with
most antibiotics in the treatment of S. aureus bacteria,

The inidal formulation of StaphVAX is intended to stimulate a patient’s immune system to produce anti-
bodies to S. aureus Types 5 and 8, which are responsible for approximately 85% of S. aureus infections.

Potential at-risk populations who may benefit from the use of StaphVAX include;

— elderly patients and those suffering chronic diseases including end-stage renal disease, congestive heart failure,
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease and diabetics who are expected to have long stays in medical or extended
care facilities,

— patients undergoing planned surgery who can be vaccinated at least seven days in advance,

— patients undergoing various types of prosthetic and vascular graft surgery who are at longer-term risk of
S. aureus infections due to their implants,

— chronic osteomyelitis patients, spinal cord injury and spinal fusion patients,

— hematology/oncology patients undergoing chemotherapy and

— patients who have previously been wreated for S. aureus infections.

In December 2004, we filed a MAA in the EU using the Centralized Registration Procedure. This MAA
submission is based on efficacy data obtained from our first Phase III clinical trial. Based on the results of this trial,
we are seeking an inidal indication that StaphVAX prevents S. aureus bacteremia for up to 40 weeks in ESRD patients
on hemodialysis. The MAA submission included manufacturing conformance data generated at Cambrex Bio Science
Baltimore, Inc., or Cambrex Bio Science, our contract manufacturer for StaphVAX. If the MAA is approved, we
will be granted simultaneous regulatory approval to market StaphVAX for this indication throughout the 25 member
states within the EU. Following receipt of regulatory approval, we would then seek reimbursement approval in
specific EU country markets. We also plan to file a supplement to the MAA dossier in the EU upon approval of
the initial application incorporating safety and immune response data from immunogenicity clinical trials that
are being conducted in the U.S. and the EU in patients undergoing orthopedic and cardiothoracic surgery as well
as data from a confirmatory Phase III clinical trial in dialysis patients currently underway in the U.S. The purpose
of this supplemental filing is to expand the indication to the prevention of S. aureus bacteremia and secondary infec-
tons caused by bacteremia in at-risk adults.

In general, reimbursement by government payer systems requires demonstration of the cost-effectiveness of
new products and treatments. We will initially seek reimbursement for StaphVAX in the EU. We are currently
conducting country specific pharmacoeconomic studies for StaphVAX to comply with requirements for pharma-
coeconomic data in reimbursement dossiers. Based on our understanding of the costs of weating S. gurens infections
in hospital settings, we believe that these studies will demonstrate the cost-effectiveness of vaccination of at-risk
patients with StaphVAX.

In August 2004, we completed enrollment in our confirmatory Phase III clinical trial for StaphVAX in the U.S.
with a prospectively defined primary efficacy end point at eight months post-vaccination. This double-blinded,
placebo-controlled, randomized trial is being conducted in ESRD patients undergoing hemodialysis, the same patient
population in which we conducted our initial Phase III clinical trial of StaphVAX. A total of 3,976 patients were
enrolled in the trial, exceeding our target enrollment of 3,600 patients and a total of 3,447 patients have been
randomized for injection with either StaphVAX or placebo, also exceeding our target of 3,240 patients. As
enrolled, the study is powered to demonstrate a 50% reduction in infection with 90% power. At the eight-month
primary end point of this trial, we will administer a booster dose of the vaccine and subjects will be monitored for
antibody levels and infection rates for at least an additional four months as secondary end points. Consequently,
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patients enrolled in the trial will be followed for at least 12 months in total. The study will remain blinded during
the entire period of the trial. If we achieve positive results from this efficacy trial, we plan to file a BLA for StaphVAX
with the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, or FDA by the end of 2005. Our BLA filing will incorporate the
efficacy data from both the current Phase I trial of StaphVAX and the initial Phase I clinical trial as well as safety
and immune response data from immunogenicity trials being conducted in the U.S. and in the EU in padents under-
going orthopedic and cardiothoracic surgery.

Our initial Phase IIT double-blinded, placebo-controlled and randomized clinical trial for StaphVAX was con-
ducted in hemodialysis patients with ESRD. We targeted these patients because of their high infection rate and
they were at long-term risk of infection. A total of 1,804 patients were included in the clinical trial. Half the enrolled
patients were vaccinated with StaphVAX and half received a placebo. All patients were evaluated at intervals for
up to a year for vaccine safety and S. aurens infection rates. Some patients were followed for up to 36 months. The
results of the trial demonstrated that a single injection of StaphVAX was safe and showed a 57% reduction in the
incidence of S. aureus bacteremia through 10 months post-vaccination. The highest effect was seen after 8 months,
where a 63% reduction in S. aureus event rate was observed. After the 8-month time point, the cumulatve reduction
in infections started to wane as antibody levels on average began to fall below what are believed to be protective
levels. The reduction in bacteremia one-year after vaccination, the prospectively defined efficacy end-point of the
trial, was 26% and was not statistically significant. No significant side effects atwributable to the vaccine were noted.
The results in ESRD patients are especially significant because these patients are severely immune-compromised
and generally respond poorly to vaccines. Based upon previous clinical trials in healthy volunteers, immune-
competent patients who are at risk for S. aureus infections are expected to respond with higher levels of antibody
to StaphVAX than ESRD patients. The significance of the results of this trial was confirmed by publicadon in the
New England Journal of Medicine in February 2002.

To evaluate the immune response to a booster dose, for patients at long-term risk for infection, we conducted
a booster trial in 2001, giving a second dose of Staph VAX to 77 hemodialysis patients who had previously received
an initial dose of the vaccine in the first Phase III clinical trial. On average the booster was dosed 36 months after
the initial vaccination. The trial demonstrated that a booster dose of the vaccine given to previously vaccinated
hemodialysis patients significantly increased the concentration of the vaccine-specific antibodies against S. aureus.
Hence, the trial results suggest that periodic booster doses of StaphVAX can be administered to increase and sustain
antibody levels for patients at chronic risk of S. zureus infecton. The average antibody concentrations reached in
this trial were above what were demonstrated to be protective in the Phase III clinical trial, although the levels
were not as high as those following the first dose of vaccine. However, the decline of antibody levels over time was
slower after the booster vaccination than following the initial vaccination.

The FDA has awarded StaphVAX Fast Track Designation for the prevention of S. zureus bacteremia in
ESRD patients.

Altastaph [Sraphylococcus aureus Immune Globulin Intravenous (Human)]

Altastaph is an investigational human polyclonal antibody product that contains high levels of S. aureus Types 5
and 8 specific antibodies. These antibodies are collected from the plasma of healthy donors who have been
vaccinated with StaphVAX at our FDA approved antibody collection centers. Altastaph is also being developed
to treat patients with active S. aureus infections in conjunction with standard of care therapy including anubiotic
weamment. Altastaph can also provide a prevendon option for patients who cannot respond to vaccines due to their
compromised immune system or who do not have the 10 to 14 days time-~period necessary to respond to the
vaccine, prior to being at-risk of infection.

The mechanism of action for Altastaph is the same as for StaphVAX. The S. aurens Types 5 and 8 specific and-
bodies included in Altastaph bind to the polysaccharide capsule of the bacteria at several sites upon exposure to
in the bloodstream, and help the body’s immune system to eliminate it in the bloodstream.

High-risk patient populations that could benefit from Altastaph include patients with persistent S. zureus
infections, very low birth-weight newborns, emergency surgery patients, trauma patients and patients in inten-
sive care and burn units.
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Patients with active S. aurens infections could also benefit from a combination therapy of Altastaph plus
StaphVAX at the conclusion of their treatment to reduce the otherwise high risk for re-infection. Re-infection with
S. aureus following initial treatment and release from hospital has been reported in up to 30% of patients within
18 months after discharge.

In January 2003, we announced results from our U.S. Phase I/II clinical trial using Altastaph to treat adult
in-hospital patients with persistent S. aureus bloodstream infections, or bacteremia. The study was a double-blinded,
placebo-controlled, randomized trial in 40 patients designed to evaluate the safety of Altastaph and to measure
S. aureus specific antibody levels. Patients were randomly allocated to receive two intravenous doses of Altastaph
or saline placebo in combination with standard-of-care treatment, which included treatment with antibiotics. The
results of the study demonstrated that Altastaph was well tolerated and no drug-related, serious adverse events were
reported. Padents were able to maintain antibody titers at or above levels previously demonstrated to be protective
against S. aureus infections in patients with ESRD. In this study there was an observed 36% reduction in median
time from administration of the study drug to hospital discharge in the Altastaph-treated patients as compared to
the placebo-treated patients, representing nine days in the Altastaph group versus 14 days in the placebo group.
Because this overall resultin a small safety/immunogenicity trial approached statistical significance, we believe this
reduction in the length of hospital stay for the Altastaph-treated group indicates that the S. zurens antibodies in
Altastaph could be associated with a measurable medical benefit in the treatment of persistent S. aureus infections.

In November 2004, we announced the results of our Phase II clinical trial for the prevention of S. aureus
infections in very low birth-weight newborns, defined as newborns with birth weights between 500 and 1500 grams.
This randomized, double-blinded, placebo-controlled Phase IT clinical trial was conducted in approximately 200
newborns at 20 neonatology centers throughout the U.S. Newborns were randomly selected to receive Altastaph
at one of two dose levels or placebo and followed for up to 42 days for safety and incidence of infections. The results
from this study showed that Altastaph was safe and was able to elevate Types 5 and 8 S. aureus specific antbodies
to what are believed to be protective levels, the primary endpoints of the trial. However, the rate of serious S. aureus
infections reported in each arm of this trial was 3%, too low to allow us to make any inferences about the efficacy
of Altastaph as administered in this study. In order to maximize the clinical and commercial potential for Altastaph
in preventing bacterial infections in very low birth-weight neonates, we plan to advance development of a next
generation Altastaph product, or Altastaph NxG which could prevent a majority (up to two-thirds) of bacterial
infections observed in neonates, specifically S. aurens Types 5 and 8 plus Type 336 and S. epidermidis. S. epidermidis
is one of the most prevalent and dangerous bacteria to infect very low birth-weight neonates.

Alrastaph for prevention of S. zureus in very low birth-weight neonates has been designated an Orphan Drug
by the FDA, entitling us to marketing exclusivity for this indication for a period of seven years post licensure, and
has received Fast Track Designation from the FDA for this indication.

Next Generation Products and Other Anti-Bacterial Vaccines in Development
We have identified and patented an antigen called Type 336, found on a serotype of S. aureus. Based on all isolates
we have tested to date, Type 336 accounts for 15% to 20% of all clinically significant S. aurens infections. We have
purified and characterized the Type 336 antigen and have prepared a prototype conjugate vaccine that is capable
of protecting animals from challenge with clinical isolates of the serotype. In 1998, we were issued a U.S. patent
for the Type 336 antigen. Included in the patent were claims relating to vaccines made from Type 336 antigen as
well as the corresponding monoclonal and polyclonal antibodies reactive to the andgen. Patents for Type 336 antigen
and its use are being pursued worldwide. Next generation StaphVAX and Altastaph products are expected to contain
S. aureus Type 336 antigen in addition to S. aurens Types 5 and 8 andgens. We expect the next-generation StaphVAX
and Altastaph products to provide protection against virtually all clinically significant S. azrens infecdons today.
S. epidermidis and Entevococcus faecalis are the two other clinically significant Gram-positive bacteria that
cause hospital-acquired infectdons. We intend to extend product coverage to these two Gram-positive bacteria in
subsequent generations of StaphVAX and Altastaph. We have been issued 18 patents containing claims covering
both a S. epidermidis vaccine as well as the corresponding human monoclonal and polyclonal antibodies and have
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filed patent applications on selected enterococcal antigens. Prototypical S. epidermidis and enterococcal vaccines
produced by us have been shown to induce antibodies that are protective in animal models and facilitate eliminadon
of bacteria by the same type of immune system response as StaphVAX. We have prepared a clinical lot of S. epidermis
conjugate vaccine and plan to initiate a Phase I/ clinical trial using this material during 2005.

KIDNEY DISEASE

PhosLo (calcium acetate)

PhosLo is a prescription calcium acetate phosphate binder indicated for the control of elevated blood, or serum,
phosphorus levels, or hyperphosphatemia in ESRD patients. The Kidney Disease Outcome Quality Initiative, or
K/DOQJ, guidelines issued by the National Kidney Foundation, or NKEF, specifies that controlling elevated phos-
phorus levels in dialysis patients is critical because these patients are unable to eliminate excess phosphorus on their
own. Elevated levels of phosphorus are associated with significant increases in illness including calcification of the
arterial walls, heart valves and joints, bone pain and bone deformity and may result in death.

We acquired the worldwide rights to PhosLo in August 2003 as our initial step to establish our commercial
presence in the nephrology market and with the physicians who treat ESRD patients. This will be an important
early market for our lead product in clinical development, StaphVAX. We currently market PhosLo in the U.S.
In October 2004, we filed a MAA in the EU under the Mutual Recognition Procedure, or MRP, for PhosLo. The
MRP provides that following approval of a product in one country, other countries within the EU may approve
a product on the basis of the initial approval. The filing used the Common Technical Document, or CTD, format,
which is widely accepted on a global basis. Under this format, the filing can be readily submitted in other coun-
tries around the world, facilitating our ability to expand the marketing of PhosLo in key ESRD markets beyond
the U.S. and the EU.

When given with food, the calcium acetate in PhosLo combines with dietary phosphorus to form insoluble
calcium-phosphate complexes that are eliminated from the body, thereby reducing phosphorus absorption and
lowering serum phosphorus levels.

PhosLo is distinct from calcium carbonate containing phosphate binder products, typically prescription
products in the EU or over-the-counter products such as TUMS in the U.S., due to its higher phosphate binding
activity. Hence, PhosLo achieves control of serum phosphorus levels as well as calcium-phosphorus product in
accordance with the K/DOQI guidelines to a greater extent than calcium carbonate products. Many ESRD patients
in the U.S. use over-the-counter calcium carbonate based products to treat elevated phosphorus levels for reasons
of cost despite its inferior activity.

According to the U.S. Renal Disease Service, or USRDS, at December 2001, 406,000 patients in the U.S. met
the criteria for ESRD. The USRDS also projects that the population of ESRD padents will grow to over 2.2 million
patents by 2030. This growth in the number of ESRD patients is largely attributable to increases in the incidence
of diseases, such as diabetes and hypertension, the primary causes of kidney failure, the overall aging of the U.S.
population and increased life expectancy for dialysis patients. Based on our market research, we believe ESRD patients
undergoing chronic dialysis are likely to experience elevated phosphorus levels at some point during each year of
their treatment and therefore will require phosphate binder therapy to control their blood phosphorus levels for
a period of time.

Kidney disease is the ninth leading cause of death in the U.S. It has been estimated in the Morbidity and
Mortality Weekly Report that approximately 19 million people in the U.S. suffer from chronic kidney failure.
According to the American Journal of Kidney Disease, of these patients, an estimated 5.9 million individuals suffer
from level 1 kidney failure, the lowest level of kidney failure, 5.3 million individuals were estimated to be at level
2 kidney failure, 7.6 million individuals were estimated at level 3 kidney failure, 400,000 individuals were estimated
at level 4 kidney failure and 300,000 individuals had level 5 kidney failure. Level 5 kidney failure typically requires
dialysis treatment. :
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According to national renal associations, in Germany, France, Italy, Spain and the UK alone, there are currendy
approximately 176,000 padents undergoing chronic renal dialysis. This figure increases to nearly 230,000 patients
when Europe is looked at in total. This patient population is expected to grow due to increased incidence of
diabetes, hypertension and the overall aging of the EU population. Consistent with treatment practices in the U.S,,
European nephrologists utilize phosphate binders on a regular basis. Currently, the phosphate binder market in
the five largest European markets exceeds 200 million Euros and is primarily served by Renagel (sevelamer
hydrochloride) as well as a number of calcium acetate and calcium carbonate products.

In the U.S., dialysis providers are primarily reimbursed by the Federal government through the ESRD Program.
The Federal government reimburses approved providers for 80% of allowed dialysis costs. The remainder is paid
by other sources, including Medicaid, private insurers and through state renal programs. Reimbursement for
dialysis services is made via the Composite Rate, which includes all dialysis services and supplies, including certain
drugs, but excluding oral products such as PhosLo and other phosphate binders. Effective January 1, 2006, The
Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act, or MMA, will include an outpatient
prescription drug benefit, under a new Part D that will incorporate PhosLo and other prescription phosphate binders.

For those patients who meet defined qualification for financial assistance, PhosLo is available at no charge
under our Patient Assistance Program.

In the EU, the Reference Pricing System, or RPS, is typically applied to pharmaceutical products that derive
from the same therapeutic class as an alternative pharmaceutical product for which the patent has expired. Using
the RPS, prices may be set at the average of prices in effect for the same class of pharmaceutical products currently
available or prices may be set within a range below the price of the most expensive product in the group and above
the least expensive product in the group. Patients have to pay the difference if the price charged exceeds the
reference price. The RPS is expected to be applied to PhosLo following regulatory approval in the EU as certain
EU countries currently reimburse for calcium acetate products that would compete with PhosLo.

In the May 2004 issue of Kidney International, the study: Treatment of Hyperphosphatemia in Hemodialysis
Patients: The Calcium Acetate Renagel Evaluation, or CARE, was published as a full original paper. This is the
only double-blinded, randomized controlled comparison study of PhosLo and Renagel. The results of the study
showed that patents treated with PhosLo were able to control serum phosphorus levels more effectively than patients
treated with Renagel throughout the 8-week study period. Specifically, patients in the CARE study treated with
PhosLo achieved K/DOQI guideline targets for phosphorus and calcium-phosphorus product levels more often
and for longer periods of time than padents treated with Renagel. In addition, the CARE study identified there
were significant differences in the cost of treatment between PhosLo and Renagel. The mean daily cost of treatment
with PhosLo, based on the level of treatment provided to patients in the study at the end of the study period was
$2.14 compared to $11.70 for Renagel. Based on average wholesaler prices in January 2004, and assuming condnuous
use, on an annualized basis, this would translate into $753 in projected treatment costs for PhosLo compared to
$4,319 for Renagel, a potential cost-savings of $3,566 per year for patients treated with PhosLo.

Cardiac illness is a leading cause of death among ESRD patients. Training and education recommendations
issued by the American Society of Nephrology in their NEPHSAP publication during the first quarter of 2004
focused on a number of factors instrumental to the ESRD patient’s cardiac health, including the control of serum
phosphorus, calcium phosphorus product and lipid levels in the blood. We believe any difference in cardiac
calcification between patients treated with PhosLo versus patients treated with Renagel is due to the lipid lowering
benefit associated with Renagel. During 2004 we initated the CARE 2 study that will compare the efficacy, safety
and arterial calcification in patdents treated with PhosLo plus Lipitor (atorvastatin calciumy), and Renagel plus Lipitor.
Lipitor will be added to patients in each treatment regimen as appropriate to secure Low Density Lipoprotein,
or LDL, levels in accordance with the guidelines recently issued by the National Cholesterol Education Program.
These guidelines recommend that LDL levels in very high-risk patients such as ESRD patients should be at or
below 70mg/dL of blood. The goal of the CARE 2 study is to demonstrate that when patients with ESRD treated
with either PhosLo or Renagel achieve the same level of lipid control, there will be no significant difference in
the development of coronary artery calcification thereby refuting the hypothesis that calcium intake as part of the
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PhosLo treatment is associated with cardiovascular calcification. The study is further designed to demonstrate that
the combination of PhosLo and Lipitor will achieve superior control of serum phosphorus levels and calcium
phosphorus product. It is expected that the total annual cost of PhosLo plus Lipitor in combination will be
significanty less than the cost of Renagel alone. Preliminary data evaluating serum phosphorus levels, serum calcium
levels, calcium phosphorus product and lipid levels are expected to be available in the second half of 2005. Final
data evaluating arterial calcification using electron beam computer tomography, or EBCT is expected in the second
half of 2006.

In line with recommendations included in the K/DOQI guidelines that pre-dialysis chronic kidney disease,
or CKD, patients may benefit from phosphate binder therapy, we expect to initiate a study using PhosLo in CKD
patents in the first half of 2005 entitled Effect of PhosLo in Chronic Kidney Disease, or EPICK. PhosLo is well
positioned for the CKD patient, as it is likely to control serum phosphorus and a secondary endpoint of parathyroid
hormone levels without causing very low calcium levels, or hypocalcemia, or high levels of acidity in the blood,
or metabolic acidosis. The EPICK trial will seek to demonstrate that PhosLo can safely and effectively control
parathyroid hormone levels, serum phosphorus levels and calcium phosphorus product in CKD patients. This
possible extension of the labeled use for PhosLo is significant because of estimates that there are approximately
400,000 CKD patients suffering level IV kidney failure in the U.S. alone.

HEPATITIS

Nabi-HB [Hepatitis B Immune Globulin (Human)]

Nabi-HB is a human polyclonal antibody product indicated to prevent hepatitis B following accidental exposure
to hepatitis B virus, or HBV. However, we believe the majority of our Nabi-HB sales are for use to prevent
re-infection with hepatids B disease in HBV-positive liver transplant patients. In November 2002, we filed a BLA
with the FDA for Nabi-HB Intraveneous, to prevent re-infection with hepatitis B disease in HBV-positive liver
transplant patients. In June 2004 we filed a MAA in Europe for regulatory approval for Nabi-HB Intravenous under
the MRP.

Nabi-HB reflects the application of our clinical, regulatory, manufacturing and commercial expertise in anti-
body technology to the treatinent of patients exposed to HBV and HBV liver transplant patients. We produce the
anti-HBV plasma raw material at our FDA approved antibody collection centers, manufacture Nabi-HB in our
state of the art fractionation and purification facility and make medical education materials available to physicians
through our medical liaison activities.

Nabi-HB is a purified human polyclonal antibody product collected at our FDA approved antibody collection
centers from plasma donors, which have been previously vaccinated with a hepatitis B vaccine. Hepatitis B
vaccines contain the hepatitis B surface antigen, which is known to provide protection against HBV. When
administered, the anti-hepatitis B antibody contained in Nabi-HB binds to the Hepatitis B virus and triggers its
clearance by the body’s immune system.

HBV is a major global health concern. In a January 2004 issue of the Morbidity and Mortality Weekly Report,
the CDC estimated that in the U.S. alone there are approximately 1.3 million chronic hepatitis B carriers, 73,000
new hepatitis B infections per year, and 5,000 individuals who die annually from hepatitis B or its complications.
Rates of HBV infection throughout the EU are reported as similar to those in the U.S. Chronic HBV infection
is a frequent cause of end-stage liver disease and according to the United Network for Organs Sharing, or
UNOS, over 4% of liver transplants through November 2004 were due to underlying hepatitis B liver disease.
Moreover, during surgery and in the period immediately following transplant surgery, patients do not have any
licensed treatiment options to prevent re-infection of the transplanted liver. Re-infection of the transplanted liver
is almost inevitable after surgery in HBV-positive patients without treatment with a hepatids B immunoglobulin
product such as Nabi-HB.
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When used peri-operatively in liver transplantation, Nabi-HB is administered in the in-patient hospital
setting and included in the Diagnosis Related Group, or DRG, reimbursement amount for the procedure. When
Nabi-HB is administered as part of the patient’s follow-up care in a physician office setting, the MMA establishes
the reimbursement rate to average sales price plus 6% from January 2004. Beginning in January 2006, the MMA
will allow physicians to choose to purchase and store pharmaceutical products in their offices, or to order the
product from a distributor who will be responsible for securing reimbursement from the government or other third
party payers.

In the EU, RPS is expected to be applied to Nabi-HB Intravenous as certain EU countries currently reimburse
for hepatitis immune globulin products that would compete with Nabi-HB Intravenous.

Nabi-HB Intravenous has received Orphan Drug Designation from the FDA for prevention of re-infection
of hepatitis B disease in HBV-positive liver transplant patients, entitling us to marketing exclusivity in the U.S.
for this indication for a period of seven years post licensure.

Civacir [Hepatitis C Immune Globulin (Human})]

Civacir is an investigational human polyclonal antibody product that contains antibodies to hepatitis C virus, or
HCV. Pre-clinical studies indicate that Civacir contains antibodies that are neutralizing to HCV. We are developing
Civacir to prevent re-infection with hepatitis C disease in HCV-positive liver transplant patients, an unmet
medical need among these patients. During surgery and in the period immediately following transplant surgery,
patients do not have any licensed treatment options to prevent re-infection of the transplanted liver. Re-infection
of the transplanted liver is 100% after surgery in HCV-positive patents.

Civacir aligns with our commercial model for Nabi-HB, focused on infectious disease and the organ trans-
plant market. The product applies our clinical, regulatory, manufacturing and commercial expertise in antibody
technology to the treatment of HCV liver transplant patients. We intend to manufacture Civacir in our state-of-
the-art fractionation and purification facility and market the product through our own sales force.

Civacir is derived from human plasma enriched with HCV antibodies collected from screened donors at our
nine FDA licensed antibody collection centers. Using the process of fractionation we purify and concentrate the
antibodies that neutralize HCV. The antibodies in Civacir have been shown in animal studies to neutralize HCV.
It is believed that the antibodies against HCV in Civacir bind to the virus in the blood stream and help the
body’s immune system to clear these viruses before they re-infect critical organs, such as a transplanted liver
in a HCV-positive patient.

HCV is a major cause of acute hepatitis C and chronic liver disease, including cirrhosis and liver cancer. The
World Health Organization, or WHO, estimates that about 170 million people, or 3% of the world’s population
are chronically infected with HCV and 2 to 4 million people are newly infected each year. The CDC currently
estdmates there are approximately 2.7 million individuals in the U.S. chronically infected with HCV.

HCV has significant social impact because it causes chronic infections in a large percentage of those infected
and often results in severe illness and death in later stages of the disease. Chronic HCV infection is a frequent cause
of end-stage liver disease resulting in the need for liver transplantation. In the U.S. and EU, approximately 40%
of liver transplants are due to HCV infection. Moreover, during surgery and in the period immediately following,
these patients have no treatment options to prevent re-infection of the transplanted liver. Re-infection of the
transplanted liver is 100% within weeks to months after surgery and can occur within days of transplantadon. HCV
infection also contributes to frequent hospitalizations and failure of the transplanted liver when it occurs in
transplant patients.

In 2004, we announced results from a Phase I/II clinical trial of Civacir in HCV-positive liver transplant patents
funded by The Nadonal Instdtute of Allergy and Infectious Diseases, or NIAID, which is a part of the NIH. The
trial was conducted by the NIAID sponsored Collaborative Anti-Viral Study Group at four study sites in the U.S.
This trial was a three-armed, randomized, controlled clinical study evaluating two different dose levels of Civacir
in a rotal of 18 patients undergoing liver transplantation. In this trial, the NIH evaluated the safety of dosing patents
with Civacir during and after transplant surgery. The NIH also evaluated the level of HCV-specific antibodies in
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trial subjects following dosing, as well as liver enzyme levels, a measure of liver damage, and HCV levels in the
transplanted livers. Although this trial was not designed to show efficacy, the results contributed to supporting the
safety of Civacir in this patient population and will assist us in defining the efficacy markers that may be important
in subsequent Phase II and III clinical trials. Preliminary results from this trial were released in February 2004.
The results showed that Civacir was well tolerated at both dose levels. In addition, a trend towards a reduction in
ALT levels, an important indicator of improved liver function, was observed. There also appeared to be a reduction
in viral levels in liver tissue in the group receiving high dose Civacir. This data will be used to define our continued
development strategy for Civacir.

Civacir has received Orphan Drug Designation from the FDA for use in prevention of re-infection with
HCV in HCV-positive liver transplant patients, entitling us to seven years marketing exclusivity post licensure for
this indication.

NICOTINE ADDICTION

NicVAX (Nicotine Conjugate Vaccine)
NicVAX is an investigational vaccine designed as an aid to smoking cessation, as well as an aid to prevent relapses
of a treated smoker.

NicVAX represents an opportunistic application of our conjugate vaccine technology that allows us to
address a significant medical need. We believe that broad commercialization of NicVAX will be in conjunction
with a marketing partmer that has a demonstrated expertise in executing large scale sales and marketing programs
because the physician audience will be very broadly and focused outside the hospital setting.

Nicotne is a small molecule that upon inhalation into the body quickly passes into the bloodstream and sub-
sequently reaches the brain by crossing the blood-brain barrier. Once in the brain, the nicotine binds to specific
nicotine receptors that result in the release of sumulants, such as dopamine, providing the smoker with a positive
sensation, which causes addiction. NicVAX is designed to stimulate the immune system to produce antibodies that
bind to nicotine in the bloodstream and prevent it from crossing the blood-brain barrier and entering the brain.
The net effect is that the brain does not produce the positive sensation stimulants as a response to nicotine. Pre-
clinical animal studies with NicVAX have shown that vaccination could prevent nicotine from reaching the brain and
block the effects of nicotine, including effects that can lead to addiction or can reinforce and maintain addiction.

According to the World Health Organizaton, or WHO, there are approximately 1.3 billion smokers worldwide,
including 65 million in the U.S. Among the 65 million smokers in the U.S., 70% have an expressed desire to quit.
However, of smokers who do attempt to quit, up to 90% relapse. In addition, according to CDC estimates,
smoking is directly responsible for approximately 440,000 deaths in the U.S. each year, which makes it one of the
largest causes of preventable death in the U.S. The financial implications are equally staggering and it is estimated
that smoking results in an annual health-related economic cost of approximately $157 billion. According to the
WHO, tobacco use is expected to kill 4 million people worldwide within the next year.

Nicotine addiction is difficult to treat effectively. We believe NicVAX has advantages over existing treatment
therapies because NicVAX effect is irreversible for potentally six to 12 months following vaccination as antibodies
to nicotine continue to be produced by the body’s immune system. This is important due to the extremely high
relapse rate that has been observed when a smoker attempts to quit smoking. Currently, the smoker being treated
for nicotine addiction can stop using the therapy and resume their addiction.

In September 2004, we announced the results of a Phase IT dose response, double-blinded, placebo-controlled,
randomized clinical trial in 63 smokers. The objectives of the study, which were met, were to demonstrate that
NicVAX was able to safely generate nicotine-specific antibodies in smokers, and to assess its potential use as an
aid in smoking cessation among smokers who wanted to quit. The effect of the vaccine in the limited number of
smokers included in the trial, and therefore not statistically significant, indicated a 33% quit rate in smokers who
received NicVAX at the highest dose level versus 9% in the placebo group. The results represented a vaccine-only
effect, as patients were only given NicVAX without any supplemental treatinents, behavioral support or counseling.
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This trial was funded in part by a grant from the National Institute of Drug Abuse, or NIDA. Based on these results,
we have inidated a second Phase II clinical trial in the EU dosing NicVAX at doses equal to and higher than those
administered in the first Phase II clinical trial and at more frequent intervals. The clinical end points of this trial
are also to assess safety, measure nicotine specific antibody titers and measurement of smoking cessation.

In February 2004, we announced the results of a placebo controlled, double-blinded Phase I/1I clinical trial
of NicVAX in smokers, ex-smokers and non-smokers in collaboration with researchers at the University of
Maastricht in The Netherlands. The primary end point of this trial was to evaluate the development of nicotine
specific antibody levels and safety of the vaccine in study participants. The results showed that multiple injections
of NicVAX were well tolerated and resulted in a rapid and boosted immune response that generated nicotine
specific antibodies.

OTHER - HEMATOLOGY AND ONCOLOGY

WinRho SDF [Rhy(D) Immune Globulin Intravenous (Human)]

WinRho SDF is a human polyclonal antibody based product approved and marketed for the treatment of ITP,
an autoimmune disease that manifests itself in abnormally low platelet levels, or thrombocytopenia, that can result
in excessive bleeding.

We market WinRho SDF in the U.S. under a license and distribution agreement with Cangene Corporation,
or Cangene. We pay a royalty to Cangene equal to approximately half of the net profits from sales of WinRho SDF
after accounting for the cost of production and marketing and sales expense. Our license and distribution agreement
with Cangene ends on March 24, 2005 and we will no longer market WinRho SDF after that date.

WinRho SDF is generally administered as a part of the patient’s care in a physician office setting. The MMA
establishes the reimbursement rate to average sales price plus 6% from January 2004. Beginning in January 2006,
the MMA will allow physicians to choose to purchase and store pharmaceudcal products in their offices or to order
the product from a distributor who will be responsible for securing reimbursement from the government or third

party payers.

Aloprim [(Allopurinol sodium) for injection]

Aloprim is indicated for the treatment of chemotherapy-induced hyperuricemia, or elevated uric acid levels, for
patents with leukemia, lymphoma or solid organ tumors that cannot tolerate oral therapy. Complications associated
with chemotherapy-induced hyperuricemia in these patients include renal failure.

The Leukemia and Lymphoma Society estimates that approximately 96,000 patients will be diagnosed with
leukemia and lymphoma in the U.S. in 2004. These patients could potendally be at-risk for developing chemotherapy-
induced hyperuricemia.

Aloprim is generally administered in the in-patient hospital setting. When administered as part of in-patient
care in a hospital, Aloprim is included in the DRG reimbursement amount for the related procedure.

In 2004, we exercised our right under our distribution agreement to acquire Aloprim from DSM
Pharmaceuticals, Inc., or DSM. In conjunction with acquiring Aloprim, we entered into a manufacturing agree-
ment with DSM for DSM to continue to supply product to us for a term of up to five years.

CONTRACT MANUFACTURING

We have a state-of-the-art facility for the fracdonation and purification of human immunoglobulin. Our facility
was designed to accommodate manufacture of Nabi-HB, as well as our antibody-based products in clinical develop-
ment, Altastaph and Civacir. Based on current utilization forecasts, we have available manufacturing capacity for
the manufacture of the antibody-based products of other companies on a contract basis. Although we do not
consider contract manufacturing to be a core operating strategy, we utilize contract manufacturing to pardally
offset the fixed costs for maintaining the facility.
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Potential contract manufacturing customers are primarily research and development stage companies that do
not possess their own manufacturing capacity or companies that possess mature products that are being manufactured
in older facilities that would require significant capital expenditure to upgrade to current compliance requirements.

Our facility has been licensed by the FDA since 2001 and, as such, is among the most recently licensed
fractionation and purification facilides in the U.S.

CURRENTLY MARKETED ANTIBODIES

We operate nine FDA licensed antibody collection centers located in six states within the U.S. that supply
specialty antibodies and non-specific antbodies to our customers in the pharmaceutical and diagnostic industries.
Our operating strategy for these products is to sell our excess production under contracts that provide a consistent
operating cash flow. As we are able to achieve licensure for antibody-based biopharmaceutical products in our
research and development pipeline, we anticipate a strategic shift in our antibody segment of converting
production of non-specific antibodies into the production of specialty antibodies which we will use to manufacture
our own antibody-based biopharmaceudcal products.

Specialty Antibodies

Specialty antibody products contain high concentrations of a specific antibody and are used primarily to manu-
facture antabody-based biopharmaceutical products to treat chronic immune disorders and to prevent and treat
viral and bacterial diseases as well as to develop diagnostic products.

We identify potential specialty antibody donors through screening and testing procedures. We also have
developed FDA-licensed programs to vaccinate potential donors to stimulate their production of specific
antibodies. We believe that our antibody collection capabilities, operational expertise in donor immunization pro-
grams, clinical and medical experience in conducting clinical trials under Investigational New Drug Applications,
or IND’, and access to a diverse antibody donor base provides us with the ability to produce specialty antibodies.

Our specialty antibody products include hepatitis B, RhoD, tetanus, cytomegalovirus, or CMV, Varicella Zoster
Virus, or VZV, and rabies antibodies as well as other plasma products sold to diagnostic customers. Hepatits B
antibodies are the primary raw material in the manufacture of Nabi-HB.

Non-specific Antibodies
Our nine FDA licensed antibody collection centers also supply non-specific human antibodies from normal healthy
donors to our customers.

Although non-specific antibodies lack high levels of antbodies to specific antigens, such antibodies are used
by our customers to manufacture standard IVIG, a product used to fight infections, and in the treatment of several
conditions, including bone marrow transplantation, B-cell chronic lymphocytic leukemia, hypogammaglobulinemia,
Kawasaki syndrome and other chronic immune deficiencies.

SALES AND SEGMENT SALES

Sales of our biopharmaceutical products totaled $131.8 million in 2004 compared to $109.5 million in 2003 and
$89.5 million in 2002. In 2004, biopharmaceutical products accounted for 73% of our sales and 96% of our gross margin.

Tortal sales of our antibody products were $48.0 million in 2004 compared to $67.1 million in 2003 and
$106.5 million in 2002. These decreases were expected due to the conclusion in April 2003 of a single supply contract
that generated no gross margin. We retained this contract after the sale of the majority of our antibody collection
business and testing laboratory in September 2001. In 2004, antibody products accounted for 27% of our sales and
4% of our gross margin.
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RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMS

The following table provides the estimated amounts spent during the last three fiscal years on our research and
development programs:

For the Years Ended
December 25, 2004 December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002

StaphVAX $ 47,392 $15,031 $ 8,515
Altastaph 3,073 1,849 691
Other Gram-positive products 482 390 517
Total Gram-positive 50,947 17,270 9,723
Other clinical programs including Civacir
and NicVAX, net of reimbursed amounts 5,803 6,219 5,805
Gther, pre-clinical programs 271 446 524
PhosLo, including PhosLo CKD 2,506 533 -
Nabi~HB and Nabi-HB Intravenous and other
currently markered products 1,476 4,572 5,044
Total $ 61,003 $29,040 $ 21,09

Research and development expenses of approximately $0.3 million, $1.3 million and $1.2 million related to the
NicVAX program were reimbursed by the National Institute on Drug Abuse, or NIDA, for fiscal years 2004, 2003
and 2002, respectively.

STRATEGIC ALLIANCES

We enter into strategic alliances for the manufacture and commercialization of some of our marketed and
pipeline products. Our current key strategic alliances are discussed below.

Cambrex Bio Science Baltimore, Inc.
In October 2003, we entered into a contract manufacturing agreement with Cambrex Bio Science to produce
commercial quantities of StaphVAX.

We entered into our contract manufacturing agreement with Cambrex Bio Science in order to have available
commercial scale manufacturing capacity to launch the product in Europe and the U.S. The manufacturing process
for StaphVAX has been transferred to Cambrex Bio Science from a previous contract manufacturer, as well as from
our research and development pilot plant in Rockville, Maryland. In August 2004, we completed the manufacture
of three consistency lots of StaphVAX,, thereby completing the transfer of the manufacturing process to Cambrex
Bio Science. The manufacturing and other technical data from these lots was included in the MAA we filed for
StaphVAX December 2004.

Our manufacturing agreement has an initial seven-year term and requires us to make certain payments to
Cambrex Bio Science to secure future access to commercial vaccine manufacturing capacity and to enable
Cambrex Bio Science to ready its facility for the future commercial scale manufacture of StaphVAX. The agreement
can be extended an additional three years. The agreement also sets the terms for future purchases of manufactured
bulk vaccine.
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Public Healch Services/National Institutes of Health

Under a license agreement with the Public Health Services/National Institute of Health, or PHS/INIH, we have
the exclusive, worldwide right to use their patented conjugation process to manufacture vaccines against
staphylococeal infections including StaphVAX.

During the term of the license we are obligated to pay PHS/NIH a royalty based on net sales of products made
using this technology. This agreement remains in effect unul the expiration of the last-to-expire licensed patent,
or April 20, 2010. After this date, no further royalties will be due to PHS/NIH for use of the subject technology.
In addition to our license with PHS/NTH we own an extensive global portfolio of issued patents and pending patent
applications directed to our novel vaccine products and methods of using such products as described in further
detail below under “Patents and Proprietary Rights”

Chiron Corporation

We have an agreement with Chiron Corporation, or Chiron, that grants us an exclusive supply agreement for four
vaccines, including hepatitis C. In addition, we have rights to 10 additional Chiron vaccines for use in humans to
produce immunotherapeutic products. The agreement may also grant us access to a vaccine adjuvant, MF 59.

This agreement may be important to the development of the next generation of our investigational
product, Civacir.

We will be responsible for all development, manufacturing and worldwide distribution of these products. We
may terminate the agreement on a product-by-product basis in which event we must transfer to Chiron all of our
rights with respect to the product as to which the agreement has been terminated. Similarly, Chiron may terminate
its obligations to supply immunizing agents to us on a product-by-product basis, in which event Chiron shall
grant to us a license of the technology necessary for us to manufacture the applicable immunizing agent and
the financial arrangements in the Chiron Agreement with respect to such agent shall continue.

Pfizer

In April 2003, we licensed the worldwide rights to our whole cell vaccine technology for the prevention and
treatment of S. aurens infections in cattle to Phzer. In a letter dated March 2, 2005, Pfizer notified us that they would
not pursue further development of this product and were terminating the license agreement with us. Pursuant to
the license agreement, we retain our full rights to information and data generated under this agreement and have
no further obligations to Pfizer.

CUSTOMER RELATIONSHIPS

We sell our biopharmaceutical products to wholesalers, distributors, hospitals and home healthcare companies and
sell our antibody products to pharmaceutcal and diagnostic product manufacturers.

We sell biopharmaceutical products to AmerisourceBergen, Cardinal Health, Inc. and McKesson Drug Co.
under purchase orders placed by them on terms that are generally between 30 days, net and 60 days. During 2004
and in February 2005, we have entered into inventory distribution services agreements with two of our major
wholesaler customers that establish that these customers will provide us defined services for a fee measured as at
least a minimum discount from our standard prices. We do not believe that these fees will exceed to any material
extent the negotiated discounts that have been provided to these customers for the 2004 fiscal year.

In connection with the sale of the majority of our antibody collecdon business and testing laboratory, we entered
into an agreement for the purpose of assuring that each party would have the ability to meet supply commitments
to customers of the transferred business after completion of the sale. Under this agreement we were obligated to
provide to the purchaser Rh,D antibodies at our cost plus a handling fee in order that the purchaser might fulfill
its obligations under a contract it assumed. This agreement, which ended on December 31, 2004, limited our
ability to sell these antibodies to other customers at higher margins during 2004.
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Pricing for product deliveries under our antibody contract products is fixed for the contract term, generally
one year or less, although the contracts generally provide for price increases/decreases during the contract term
to reflect changes in customer specifications or new governmental regulations. In addition, in 2004 we expect to
sell antibody products in individually negotiated wansactions that will be subject to market conditions at the time
of negotiation. Qur profit margins for these transactions may be adversely or beneficially affected by market
conditions for antibody products at those times.

Sales for the year ended December 25, 2004 to significant customers included sales to three customers of our
biopharmaceutical products segment, Cardinal Health, Inc., McKesson Drug Co., AmerisourceBergen and one
customer of our antibody products segment, Bayer Corporation, representing 26%, 25%, 23% and 15% of total
consolidated 2004 sales, respectively.

SUPPLY AND MANUFACTURING

Biopharmaceutical Products

We manufacture Nabi-HB in our FDA approved biopharmaceutical manufacturing facility in Boca Raton, Florida.
Additionally, we manufacture clinical lots of our investigational products, Altastaph and Civacir, in this facility. We
have constructed a state-of-the-art bulk vaccine manufacturing capacity within available space in our Boca Raton
manufacturing facility. The vaccine production capacity, once licensed, will be used initially to support the
commercial manufacture of StaphVAX following FDA approval. We designed this manufacturing capacity to be
flexible and expandable so as to support the manufacture of StaphVAX and NicVAX, as well as our next
generation Gram-positive vaccines in our research and development pipeline.

In Cctober 2003, we entered into an agreement with Cambrex Bio Science in order to have commercial scale
manufacturing in place to support the launch of StaphVAX in Europe and in the U.S. In August 2004, we completed
manufacture of the consistency Jots that were required to support the MAA. We also intend to incorporate the
Cambrex Bio Science manufacturing facility into our BLA for StaphVAX that we expect to file by the end of 2005.

Third parties manufacture each of our marketed products other than Nabi-HB for us. PhasLo is manufactured
for us by Braintree Laboratories, Inc. under an agreement that can be extended until 2018. PhosLo is also
manufactured for us by another third-party. DSM Pharmaceudcals, Inc. manufactures Aloprim for us under an
agreement that extends to June 2009.

Antibody Collection Process
We currendy collect and process antibodies from our nine collection centers located in six states across the U.S.
Each center is licensed and regulated by the FDA.

PATENTS AND PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

Our success depends in part on our ability to maintain our rights to our existing marketed biopharmaceutical
products and our ability to obtain patent protection for product candidates in clinical development. Currently, we
have over 30 granted patents and over 60 patent applications pending.

MARKETED PRODUCTS

PhosLo

We have two patents granted in the U.S., one patent granted in Canada and one patent application allowed in the
U.S. relating to PhosLo. The granted patents contain claims directed to methods of using calcium acetate in an
orally ingested form to inhibit gastrointestinal absorption of phosphorus. The patent claims support the use of
PhosLo for our approved application in ESRD patents. Patent coverage for these claims expires in April 2007 in
the U.S. and in 2012 in Canada. We also have another U.S. patent granted and a U.S. patent application allowed
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with claims to a second-generation, phosphorus-binding capsule formulation. The next generation capsules are
intended to enhance ease of patient use and, as a result, improve treatment management. This granted U.S. patent
expires in April 2021 and any patent granted on the pending U.S. applicadon would expire in October 2022.

Products in development

We have 25 patents issued including six U.S. patents, 15 patents in European countries and four in other coun-
tries and 38 patents pending worldwide relating to our Gram-positive infections program. With respect to
Staphylococcus, the patents and pending patent applicadons relate both to polysaccharide antigens—our “336”
S. aureus antigen and “PS-1" S. epidermidis antigen—and to a glycopeptide antigen common to S. epidermidis,
S. baemolyticus and S. homimis. Additional issued patents relate to Enterococcus and describe polysaccharide antigens
from E. faecalis and E. faecium, respectively.

In addition to the PHS/NIH patent with respect to which we license rights that relate to the manufacture of
StaphVAX, our granted U.S. patents and ex-U.S. patents in our S. gurens program contain claims directed to vaccines,
antibody based therapies, methods of preparing antigen and diagnostic assays and kits against surface antigens of
S. aureus. These patents all expire in September 2016. The patent underlying our PHS/INTH licensed rights expires
on April 20, 2010. After this date, no further royalties will be due to the PHS/NIH for use of the technology.
Addidonal patent applications still pending include claims directed to the antigens, as well as to compositions, or
conjugates, of the antgens, vaccines containing the antigens, antibodies to the antigens, and immunotherapy and
diagnostic methods using the antigens and/or the antibodies to the antgens. In addition, we have filed a U.S. patent
application covering methods directed to the use of StaphVAX, among other compositions. These two applications,
which address a method of protecting a human being with a compromised immune system from Staphylococcal or
enterococcal bacterial infection, include claims that prescribe our use of proprietary antigens. The applications also
encompass a method for the use of Types 5 and 8 S. aureus antigens. With regard to S. epidermis, we have issued
U.S. patents and ex-U.S. patents, including European countries. The patents contain claims to vaccines and
hyperimmune globulins against S. epidermis surface antigen. Most of these patents expire in 2016.

In addition, we have an issued U.S. patent and ex-U.S. patent applicadons pending that contain claims
directed to a pharmaceutical composition containing a glucan and intravenous hyperimmune globulin, which can
be specific for a given pathogen like S. azreus. This combination produces an unexpected antimicrobial effect that
is greater than that obtained when either the glucan or the intravenous hyperimmune globulin is used separately.

NICVaX

Our patent portfolio for technology related to the NicVAX product comprehends both compositions and thera-
peutic methodology for treating or preventing a nicotine addiction. Our patent claims are directed to compositions,
or conjugates, that comprise nicotine-like molecule linked to a carrier protein and to the methods for the use of these
conjugates to treat or prevent nicotne addiction. We also have claims to a pharmaceutical composition that contains
nicotine specific antibodies induced by conjugate antibodies, as well as to methods for using those antibodies against
nicotine addiction.

Trade Secrets and Trademarks

We rely on unpatented proprietary technologies in the development and commercializadon of our products. We
also depend upon the skills, knowledge and experience of our scientific and technical personnel, as well as those
of our advisors, consultants and other contractors that cannot be patented. To help protect our proprietary know-how,
we often use trade secret protection and confidentiality agreements to protect our interests. We require employees,
consultants and advisors to enter into agreements that prohibit the disclosure of confidental information and where
applicable require disclosure and assignment to us of the ideas, developments, discoveries and inventions that arise
from their activities for us.
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We own or license trademarks associated with each of our products, including several international trademark
registrations or common law rights, for each of our marketed and development products.

GOVERNMENT AND INDUSTRY REGULATION

The collection, processing and sale of our products, as well as our research, pre-clinical development and clinical
trials, are subject to regulation for safety and efficacy by numerous governmental authorities including the U.S.,
UK, Germany, Spain, Ttaly, Australia and France. In the U.S,, the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetc Act, the Public
Health Service Act, and other Federal and state statutes and regulations govern the collecton, testing, manufacturing,
safety, efficacy, labeling, storage, record keeping, transportation, approval, advertising and promotion of our
products. We believe we are in compliance with all relevant material laws and regulations.

Biopharmaceutical Producrs

Vaccines and human polyclonal antibody products are classified as biological products under FDA regulations. The
steps required before a biological product may be marketed in the U.S. generally include pre-clinical studies and
the filing of an Investigational New Drug application, or IND application, with the FDA, which must be accepted
by the FDA before human clinical studies may commence. The initial human clinical evaluation, called a Phase I
clinical trial, generally involves administradon of a product to a small number of normal, healthy volunteers to test
for safety. Phase IT clinical trials involve administration of a product to a limited number of patients with a particular
disease to determine dosage, immunogenicity and safety. In some cases Phase II clinical trials may provide
limited indications of efficacy. Phase 1T clinical erials examine the efficacy and safety of a product in an expanded
padent population. Phase IV clinical trials primarily monitor for adverse effects and are undertaken post-licensure,
such as additional large-scale, long-term studies of morbidity and mortality. The FDA reviews the clinical plans
and the results of trials and can stop the trials at any time if there are significant safety issues. Biological products,
once approved, currently have no provision allowing competitors to market generic versions. Each biological
product must undergo the entire development process in order to be approved.

The results of all trials are submitted in the form of a BLA or a New Drug Application, or NDA, for smal}
molecules. The BLA or NDA must be approved by the FDA prior to commencement of commercial sales. For
BLA/NDA approval, the FDA requires that the sponsor demonstrate a favorable risk-benefit ratio. This often
involves treatment of large numbers of patients, typically in double-blinded, placebo controlled or comparative
randomized trials, followed for protracted periods of time. The actual size of the trials, and the length of follow-up
vary from indication to indication. In addition, the prospective manufacturer’s methods must conform to the agency’s
current Good Manufacturing Process, or cGMP regulations, which must be followed at all ames. The prospective
manufacturer must submit three conformance lots in support of the application. In complying with standards set
forth in these reguladons, manufacturers must continue to expend time, money and effort in the area of production,
compliance and quality control to ensure full regulatory compliance. The approval process is affected by several
factors, including the severity of the disease, the availability of alternative treatments, and the risks and benefits
demonstrated in clinical trials. The FDA also may require post-marketing surveillance to monitor potential adverse
effects of the product. The U.S. Congress, or the FDA in specific situations, can modify the regulatory process.

The overall regulatory process is similar within the EU insofar as the sponsor needs to demonstrate a favorable
risk-benefit ratio of the drug product, as well as reproducible manufacturing methods. The European equivalent
of the BLA/INDA is called the MAA. There are two different procedures to file a MAA, the Centralized Registration
Procedure and the Mutual Recognition Procedure. The Centralized Procedure allows for simultaneous approval
throughout the EU. The Mutual Recognition Procedure provides for initial approval in one country that can be
used to seek approval in additional countries within the EU. There have been different requirements from country
to country with regard to initiating clinical trials, however, that is also in the process of being standardized. A new
standardized procedure, the Clinical Trials Application was introduced in the EU during 2004.
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Medicare Prescription Drug Improvement and Modernization Act and Reimbursement
Effective January 1, 2006, the MMA will include an outpatient prescription drug benefit, under a new Part D.
This benefit will provide reimbursement for PhosLo. The new benefit is designed such that after paying an initial
estimated premium fee of approximately $37 per month the patient would be responsible for the following
CO-payment structure:

Prescriptions costs Patient Responsibility Patient Responsibility

$ 0-5%250 $250 100%
§ 251-%2,250 $500 25%
$2,251 - 85,100 $2,850 100%
$5,100 - above 5% of all costs 5%

The Medicare Part D program will be administered through a combination of Prescription Drug Plans, or PDP%,
or Medicare Advantage Plans. The plan design is for the PDP’s to assuine 100% of the financial risk for this patient
population. The MMA requires that each plan offer a minimum of two products in each therapeutc class.
Because of the risk bearing nature of the Part D program, PDP% are likely to seek to manage their risk by selecting
products that are both efficacious and low cost. As the lowest cost prescription phosphate binder currently
market in the US, we believe that the Part D benefit may provide us an opportunity to grow sales and increase
market share of PhosLo following implementation of the MMA in January 1, 2006. Prior to the enactment of Part
D, the U.S. Federal government introduced a Medicare Discount Card as an interim step until full implementation
of the Part D in 2006. Enrollment in the drug discount card program has been relatively low among Medicare
participants. We did not participate in the card program.

Antibody Products

The FDA strictly regulates the collection, storage and testing of antibodies and antibody-based products derived
from human plasma. In order to operate in the U.S., an antibody collection facility must hold a Biologics License
issued by the FDAS Center for Biologics Evaluatdon and Research. Each collection facility must be regularly inspected
and approved in order to maintain licensure. In addition, collection centers require FDA product licenses to collect
each specialty antibody product. We are also subject to and are required to be in compliance with pertinent
regulatory requirements of countries to which we export antibody products.

Orphan Drug Act
In January 2004, the FDA granted our investigational product Altastaph, Orphan Drug Designation for use in
neonate patients for protection against S. aureus infections. Nabi-HB Intravenous has received Orphan Drug
Designation under this Act for prevention of hepatitis B re-infection in liver transplant recipients. We filed a BLA
for this product in November 2002. In November 2002, the FDA granted our investigational product, Civacir,
Orphan Drug Designation for prevention of hepatitis C infection in HCV-posidve liver transplant recipients.
Under the Orphan Drug Act, the FDA may designate a product as having Orphan Drug status to treat
a “rare disease or condition”, which currently is defined as a disease or condition that affects populations of less
than 200,000 individuals in the U.S. at the time of designation, or, if vicims of a disease number more than 200,000,
for which the sponsor establishes that costs of development will not be recovered from U.S. sales in seven years.
When a product is designated an Orphan Drug, the sponsor is entitled to receive certain incentives to undertake
the development and marketing of the product. In addition, the sponsor that obtains the first marketing approval
for a designated Orphan Drug for a given indication effectvely has marketing exclusivity for a period of seven years.
There may be multdple designations of Orphan Drug status for a given drug and for different indications.
However, only the sponsor of the first BLA approved for a given drug for its use in treating a given rare disease
may receive marketing exclusivity.

Nabi Biopharmaceuticals 21



Fast Track Designation
StaphVAX has been granted Fast Track review designation for the ESRD patient indication while Altastaph has
been granted Fast Track review designation for use in very low birth weight neonate patients.

Fast Track designation refers to a process of interacting with the FDA during drug development. The Fast
Track mechanism is described in the Food and Drug Adminiswation Modernization Act of 1997. The benefits of
the Fast Track designadon include scheduled meetings to seek FDA input into development plans, the option of
submitting a BLA in sections rather than all components simultaneously and the option of requesting evaluation
of studies using surrogate endpoints. The Fast Track designation is intended for a combination of a product and
a claim that addresses an unmet medical need. The Fast Track mechanism is independent of Priority Review and
Accelerated Approval.

COMPETITION

Biopharmaceutical Products

PhosLo competes with Renagel, a prescription product marketed by Genzyme Corporation, and over-the-counter
calcium carbonate products, such as TUMS in the U.S. PhosLo competes with these products on the basis of its
efficacy as a phosphate binder and its compliance with key elements of the K/DOQI guidelines issued by the NKF
as demonstrated in the CARE study. As compared to Renagel, PhosLo also competes on the basis of a cost of
treatment advantage that was also established in the CARE study. Review of third party prescription data indicates
that PhosLo is prescribed at approximately the same rate as Renagel among ESRD patients.

The FDA approved Shire Pharmaceuticals’, or Shire’s, product Fosrenol for the control of hyperphosphatemia
in September 2004. To date Shire’s marketing activities have been limited, but we andcipate that we will begin to
compete with Fosrenol in the U.S.

In the EU, PhosLo will compete with Renagel, Fosrenol and other calcium acetate products, as well as calcium
carbonate products, which are generally prescription products in the EU.

There is one anabody-based therapy for prevention of hepatitis B post exposure currently on the market that
competes with Nabi-HB in the U.S. Based on our internal market studies, we believe that Nabi~HB has achieved
a significant share of the U.S. market. We believe the majority of our Nabi-HB sales are for use to prevent
re-infection with hepatitis B disease in HBV-positive liver transplant patients. In November 2002, we submitted
a BLA to the FDA for Nabi-HB Intravenous seeking the indication that Nabi-HB Intravenous prevents re-infection
with hepatitis B disease in HBV-positive liver transplant patients and have received Orphan Drug Designation
for this indication. If approved, Nabi-HB Intravenous will have seven years marketing exclusivity on the basis of
its Orphan Drug Designation.

In June 2004, we submitted a MAA filing for Nabi-HB Intravenous, known as HEBIG in the EU to European
regulators. If approved in the EU, Nabi-HB Intravenous will compete in the market to prevent re-infection with
hepatitis B disease in HBV-positive liver transplant patients. Unlike the U.S., competitive intravenous hepatitis B
immune globulin products are already marketed in most of the EU.

In addition, Nabi-HB also competes in the U.S. and, if approved, in the EU with anti-viral products that, like
Nabi-HB, are not currently indicated for use to prevent re-infection in HBV-positive liver transplant patients.

WinRho SDF is the only Rh,D antbody based biopharmaceutcal product approved for the treatment of ITP.
Competing therapies include, steroids, intravenous immune globulin and splenectomy, a surgical procedure to
remove the spleen. We believe that Rituxan is also being used to treat refractory I'TP patients. Cangene manu-
faccures WinRho SDF for us under an agreement that ends in March 2003,

Aloprim was the first intravenous allopurinol therapy available for the treatment of chemotherapy-induced
hyperuricemia. Aloprim provides a therapeutic option for patients that cannot tolerate oral allopurinol therapy.
In the third quarter of 2004, a competitive intravenous allopurinol product formulation was introduced to the U.S.
market and is competing based on price.
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Antibody Products

We sell antibody raw materials to pharmaceuntical companies that process this raw material into finished products.
Although these pharmaceutical companies generally own plasmapheresis centers, in the aggregate they purchase
a portion of their antbody requirements from independent suppliers. There is competition with independent sup-
pliers as well as fractionators who own their own plasmapheresis centers. We compete for sales by maintaining
competitive pricing and by providing customers with high-quality products and superior customer service.

EMPLOYEES

We believe that the relations between our management and our employees are generally good. None of our
employees are covered by a collective bargaining agreement.
We had a total of 727 employees at December 25, 2004.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ABOUT SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

We have provided financial information about (i) our industry segments, and (i) our domestic and foreign oper-
ations for each of the last three fiscal years in Note 21 to our consolidated financial statements set forth in Part IT
of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our Internet address is http://www.nabij.com. We make available, free of charge, through our Internet website our
annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, current reports on Form 8-K, and amendments
to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon
as reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and
Exchange Commission.

RISK FACTORS

This dacument contains forward-looking statements that reflect our current expectations regarding future events.
Any such forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future performance and involve significant risks and
uncertaintes. Actual results may differ significantly from those in the forward-looking statements as a result of
any number of factors, including, but not limited to, risks relating to the possibility that our confirmatory Phase
1T clinical trial for StaphVAX or our plans to commercialize StaphVAX in the EU and the U.S. may not be
successful; our inability to raise additonal capital on acceptable terms; the possibility that we may not realize the
value of our acquisition of PhosL.o; our dependence upon third parties to manufacture our products; our ability
to utlize the full capacity of our manufacturing facility; the impact on sales of Nabi-HB from patient treatment
protocols and the number of liver transplants performed in HBV-positive patients; reliance on a small number of
customers; the future sales growth prospects for our biopharmaceutical products; and our ability to obtain regulatory
approval for our products in the U.S. or in markets outside the U.S. or to successfully develop, manufacture and
market our products. These factors and others are more fully discussed below.
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Each of the following risk factors could adversely affect our business, operating results and financial condition.

Our initial Phase III clinical trial for StaphVAX did not achieve statistical significance
for the specified end point and neither may our confirmatory Phase 111 clinical trial.
In late 2000, we completed our initial Phase ITI placebo-controlled clinical trial for StaphVAX in hemodialysis patients
with end-stage renal disease. The specified end point for this trial was a statistically significant reduction in S. zzreus
infections in end-stage renal disease patients after 12 months. The trial did not achieve this end point. We have
now completed enrollment for a Phase III clinical trial for StaphVAX with a primary efficacy end point at eight
months post-vaccination. The results from this trial may not establish statistical significance for the eight-month
end point. Our inability to achieve statistically significant results in our confirmatory Phase III clinical trial would
adversely affect our future business, financial condition and results of operations.

Our plan to commercialize StaphVAX may not be sunccessful.
We filed a MAA for StaphVAX in the EU using the Centralized Registration Procedure in December 2004. We
plan to file a BLA for StaphVAX in the U.S. by the end of 2005. There can be no assurance that we will file the
BLA by the end of 2005, or that we will receive approval to begin commercial sales of StaphVAX in the EU or
the U.S., or that such approval will be timely. If we receive regulatory approval in Europe we will then need to
seek reimbursement approval in specific EU country markets. There can be no assurance that Staph VAX will receive
reimbursement pricing from any or all of the markets where we seek such approval or that reimbursement, if
approved, will be at sufficient levels in each market. Any delays in or failure to obtain EU licensure or reimbursement
approvals, or the failure to obtain reimbursement approvals at sufficient levels, and any delays in commercialization
could adversely affect our market valuation, results of operations and our financial position and could impact the
overall commercial success of StaphVAX. We have no direct experience in obtaining licensure or reimbursement
for vaccines in the EU, U.S,, or other markets.

Although we believe that our U.S. sales and marketing model can be readily translated to other markets, we
may not be successful in doing so. We have no direct experience marketing and selling biopharmaceutical products
in the EU, and currently we have no sales or marketing organization to sell and distribute StaphVAX in the EU.

A number of our product candidates and marketed products in development are in or
will undergo clinical trials and the results from these trials may not be favorable.
Aside from the current Phase I clinical trial for StaphVAX, a number of our products in development are in, or
will undergo clinical trials. These trials may not meet their defined endpoints, and, even if they do achieve their
endpoints, we cannot be certain that results from future clinical trials will be positive. Unfavorable clinical trial
results at any stage could adversely affect our market valuation and our future business.

For instance, in Novermber 2004, we announced the results of our Phase II clinical trial for prevention of
S. aureus bloodstream infections in very low birth-weight newborns. The study met its primary endpoints, namely,
Altastaph was safe and well tolerated and patients dosed with Altastaph were on average maintained above protective
levels of antibodies for the entire 42-day study period. However, the rate of S. aurens infections in the overall
clinical trial population in this trial was 3%, well below the event rate reported in relevant medical literature. This
rate was too low to allow us to make any inferences about the efficacy of Altastaph from this study. Our inability
to establish statistically significant efficacy in subsequent confirmatory trials of Altastaph could adversely affect our
business, operating results and financial condition. Further, our studies related to Altastaph have been in a limited
number of patients. To date, we have not observed any significant adverse events related to Altastaph. However,
the product safety profile will continue to be monitored in our clinical trials and if there is a significant adverse
event related to the product this could have an adverse effect on our future business, financial condition, and results
of operations.
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In 2004, we imitated the CARE 2 study to demonstrate that when patients with ESRD treated with either
PhosLo or Renagel achieve the same level of lipid control, there will be no significant difference in the development
of coronary artery calcification thereby refuting the hypothesis that calcium intake as part of the PhosLo treatment
is associated with cardiovascular calcification. The study is further designed to demonstrate that the combination
of PhosLo and Lipitor will achieve superior control of serum phosphorus levels and calcium phosphorus product.
Our inability to establish at least an equivalent result between the study arms could adversely affect our business,
operating results and financial condition.

Claims and concerns may arise regarding the safety or efficacy of our product
candidates and marketed products, which could lead to delayed development, product
withdrawals, reduced sales, or product recalls.

In order to receive regulatory approval for the commercialization of our product candidates, we must conduct
extensive clinical trials to demonstrate their safety and efficacy. Our clinical trials may not demonstrate the safety
and efficacy of our potential products, and we may encounter unacceptable side effects or other problems in our
clinical trials. Should this occur, we may have to delay or discontinue development of our potential products. Once
obtained, any regulatory approvals may be withdrawn for a number of reasons, including the later discovery of
previously unknown problems with the product, such as a previously unknown safety issue. In addition, post-
marketing studies, which may be sponsored by our competitors, may present evidence that another product is safer
or more effective than one of our products, which could lead to reduced sales of our product. For example, Genzyme
is conducting a study called Dialysis Clinical Outcomes Revisited, or D-COR, examining the difference in morbidity
and mortality outcomes based on arterial calcification for patients receiving Renagel and those receiving calcium-
based phosphate binders, including PhosLo. First results from this study are expected in mid-2005 per Genzyme’s
public statements. While we believe the calcium acetate tormulation of PhosLo is differentgated from the calcium
formulations of other binders being used in the comparative product group in the study, if the study’s outcome
demonstrates a significant advantage to Renagel it may have a negative impact on sales of PhosLo. Finally, claims
and concerns may arise regarding the safety or efficacy of one of our marketed products, which could lead to a
product recall. Delayed development, product withdrawals, reduced sales, and product recalls could adversely affect
our future business, financial condition, and results of operations.

Our plans to commercialize Nabi-HB Intravenous and PhosLo in the EU may not
be successful.

Using the Mutual Recognition Process, we filed MAA’s for Nabi-HB Intravenous and PhosLo in the EU during
2004. There can be no assurance that we will receive approval to begin commercial sales of these products in this
or any other country in the EU, or that such approval will be timely. Following approval in each country, we will
then need to seek reimbursement in that country. There can be no assurance we will receive reimbursement approval
from any or all of the countries where we seek such approval or that reimbursement, if approved, will be at sufficient
levels in each country. Any delays in or failure to obtain licensure or reimbursement approvals, or the failure to
obtain reimbursement approvals at sufficient levels, and any delays in commercialization could adversely atfect our
market valuation, results of operations and our financial position. We have no direct experience in obtaining
licensure of these products in the EU or other non-U.S. markets. We have no direct experience marketing and
selling biopharmaceutical products in the EU, and currently we have no direct sales or marketing organization to
sell and distribute Nabi-HB Intravenous and PhosLo in the EU.
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We may not be able to raise necessary additional capital on acceptable terms, if at all.
We may need to raise additional capital to expand our product research, development and marketing activities or
to acquire additional products or technologies. In particular, we may need to raise additonal capital to support
commercialization of StaphVAX, to fund the development of clinical trials of Altastaph or to acquire new products
and technologies. We may seek additonal funding through public or private equity or debt financing, collaborative
arrangements with strategic partners or from other sources. There can be no assurance, that additional financing
will be available on acceptable terms, if at all. If adequate funds are not available, we may have to defer certain
investments in research, product development, manufacturing, commercialization or business development, or other-
wise modify our business strategy, and it could adversely affect our market valuation, results of operations and
financial position.

We may not realize the value of our acquisition of PhosLo.

On August 4, 2003, we acquired the worldwide rights to PhosLo through the purchase of various intangible assets
for $60.3 million in cash, 1.5 million shares of our common stock and an obligation to pay $30.0 million in cash
over the period ending March 1, 2007. These intangible assets represent approximately one-fourth of the total assets
reflected on our balance sheet at December 25, 2004. PhosLo is marketed to physicians caring for padents suffering
kidney failure who have developed elevated phosphorus levels in their blood. This is a market in which we had no
experience prior to the acquisidon of PhosLo. In the U.S., PhosLo currently competes with three other products,
two prescription medications and a non-prescription medication. In the EU, PhosLo will compete with multiple
prescription products. A number of these products are or will be produced, marketed and sold by companies that
have substandally greater financial and marketing resources than we have.

For example, Genzyme is conducting a study called Dialysis Clinical Outcomes Revisited, or D-COR, examining
the difference in morbidity and mortality outcomes based on arterial calcification for patients receiving Renagel and
those receiving calcium-based phosphate binders, including PhosLo. If D-COR achieves its defined endpoints, it may
negatively impact physicians’ willingness to prescribe PhosLao and, hence, negatively impact future sales of PhosLo.
In addidon, we expect the maker of Fosrenol, another competitive product, to begin promotion of that product. If
we do not achieve the necessary level of success in marketing PhosLo to recover the value of the intangible assets we
acquired, we will be required to write down or write off some or all of the PhosLo intangible assets. If this occurs,
our market valuation, balance sheet, results of operations and financial positdon could be adversely affected.

We depend upon third parties to manufacture our biopharmaceutical produces.
We manufacture only one of our marketed biopharmaceutical products and depend upon third parties to manu-
facture PhosLo, Aloprim and WinRho SDF for us. At times, contract manufacturers have failed to meet our needs
in the past. Our biopharmaceutical product sales were constrained in 2000 because of the inability of the contract
manufacturer for WinRho SDF to supply product for a period of time. Since 2000, our ability to market Aloprim
has been adversely affected at certain times by our inability to obtain necessary quantities of this product from our
contract manufacturer. In addidon, our research and development product pipeline significantly involves conjugate
vaccines. We currently rely on a third party, Cambrex Bio Science, to manufacture StaphVAX. The agreement with
Cambrex Bio Science contemplates that it will provide us with product for our clinical needs and for the inidal
commercial launch of StaphVAX but not for all of our forecasted needs if StaphVAX is a commercial success in
Europe and the U.S.

The failure of our contract manufacturers to supply us with sufficient amounts of product to meet our needs,
or to renew their contracts with us on commercially reasonable terms, would have a material adverse effect on our
future business, financial condition and results of operations.
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The market may not be receptive to our products upon their introduction.
There can be no assurance that any of our products in development will achieve market acceptance. The degree
of market acceptance will depend upon a number of factors, including:

— the clinical efficacy and safety of our products and their potential advantages over existing treatment methods
to the medical community,

— regulatory approvals,

— any limitation of indicatons in regulatory approvals,

— the prices of such products, and

— reimbursement policies of government and third-party payers.

The failure of our clinical, research and development product pipeline and marketed products to gain market
acceptance could have a material adverse effect on our furure business, financial condition and results of operations.

We may not be successful in licensing or operating an internal commercial scale
vaccine manufacturing facility currently under development.
We have constructed a vaccine plant in our Boca Raton, Florida manufacturing facility designed to allow us to pro-
duce vaccines in our product pipeline. We plan to submit a BLA to the FDA for licensure for the manufacture of
StaphVAX in this facility in 2005 or 2006. In additon, we plan to submit a supplemental MAA to EU regulatory
authorities for licensure for the manufacture of StaphVAX in this facility with a goal of being a back-up site for
the production of StaphVAX for commercial sale in the EU following approval. No assurance can be given that we
will be able to obtain such licensure on a timely basis or at all, and failure to obtain such licensure on a timely basis,
or at all, would have a material adverse effect on our future business, financial condition and results of operations.
The new plant is designed to process several vaccines on a commercial scale. We have not previously owned
or operated such a facility and have no direct experience in commercial, large-scale manufacturing of vaccine
products. There can be no assurance that, if FDA and EU licensures are received, the facility can be operated efficiently
and profitably. Our failure to successfully operate our new manufacturing facility would have a material adverse
effect on our future business, financial conditon and resuits of operations.

We are not currently able to utilize the full capacity of our plasma fractionation facility.
We began commercial manufacture of Nabi-HB at our Boca Raton biopharmaceutical manufacturing facility in
the fourth quarter of 2001 and intend to expand the use this facility for the manufacture of polyclonal antibody
products in our clinical product pipeline including, Altastaph and Civacir, and for the manufacture of products of
other parties. For the foreseeable future, we may not utilize the full manufacturing capacity of the facility and there
can be no assurance that we will ever operate the facility efficiently. There can be no assurance that we will have
either our own products to manufacture or those of others to offset the cost of the facility’s operation. Further,
we have limited experience manufacturing our clinical product candidates. Qur failure to fully utilize the capacity
of the plant or to manufacture products successfully could have a material adverse effect on our furure business,
financial conditon and results of operations.

A disaster at our sole manufacturing sites would interrupt our manufacruring capability
for the products produced there.

Manufacturing products at a single site presents risks because a disaster, such as a fire or hurricane, may interrupt
manufacturing capability. In such an event, we will have to resort to alternative sources of manufacturing that could
increase our costs as well as result in significant delays while required regulatory approvals are obtained. Any such
delays or increased costs could have 2 material adverse effect on our future business, financial condition and results
of operations.
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Our BLA license application for Nabi-HB Intravenous may not be approved.

Our BLA license application for Nabi-HB Intravenous that was filed in November 2002 may not be approved by
the FDA. Nabi-HB is a2 human polyclonal antibody product currently indicated to prevent hepatitis B, or HBV,
infection following accidental exposure to the virus. We believe the majority of our Nabi-HB sales are used to
prevent re-infection with hepatitis B disease in HBV-positive liver transplant patients. Nabi-HB is not currently
labeled for this use. Our inability to obtain licensure from the FDA for Nabi-HB Intravenous could have an adverse
effect on our future business, financial condidon and results of operations.

Our sales of Nabi-HB are directly related to patient treatment protocols and the
number of liver transplants performed in HBV positive patients, over which we have
no control.

Our sales of Nabi-HB are primarily for the care of HBV-positive liver transplant padents at the time of and for
a maintenance period following liver transplant. The number of liver ransplants that occur depends on the number
of livers available for transplant. The number of livers used for HBV-positive liver transplant candidates as well
as the dosing of Nabi-HB may vary from time to time based on the following factors:

— changes in overall organ availability,

— allocations of available organs to eligible potential recipients,

— changes in the treaunent protocols applied to HBV-positive patients;

— availability of alternative treatments and competitive products, such as anti-viral products; and

— changes in reimbursement regimes including the MMA in the U.S,, that may provide a negative incentive for
the use of certain of our products in future periods.

Each of these factors is outside our control. Sales of Nabi-HB will be adversely affected if patient treatment
protocols change or the number of hepatitis B liver transplants decreases. Sales of Nabi-HB Intravenous, if it
is licensed, will be similarly affected. This could have an adverse effect on our future results of operations and
financial condition.

A reduction in the availability of specialty antibodies could adversely affect our
ability to manufacture an adequate amount of Nabi-HB, Altastaph or Civacir or to
fulfill contractual obligations.

Our ability to manufacture Nabi-HB today and Nabi-HB Intravenous, HEBIG, Altastaph and Civacir, if they are
licensed, will depend upon the availability of specialty antibodies that we primarily obtain from our FDA-~approved
antibody collection centers. We also have contractual obligations to supply other specialty antibodies to third
parties that we also obtain from our FDA-approved antibody collection centers. Specialty antibodies are more
difficult to obtain than non-specific antibodies. Reduced availability of the necessary specialty antibodies would
adversely affect our ability to manufacture an adequate amount of Nabi-HB, Nabi-HB Intravenous, HEBIG,
Altastaph and Civacir, or to fulfill our contractual obligations, with the result that our future business, financial
condition and results of operations would suffer.

We sell our products to a small number of customers. The loss of any major customer
could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations or financial condijtion.
We sell a significant portion of our biopharmaceutical products to pharmaceutical wholesalers and distributors.
In 2004, three such customers accounted for 74% of our total consolidated sales. These customers maintain
inventories of our products at levels that can range as high as six to eight months of end padent demand as measured
by prescriptions written. A loss of any of the customers or a material reduction in such customer’s purchases or
inventories on hand at their sites could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial
condition. We also maintain a significant receivable balance with each of these customers. If these customers become
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unable or unwilling to pay amounts owed to us, our financial condition and results of operations could be
adversely affected.

Our antibody sales in 2004 were primarily to a single customer. The loss of this customer or a material reduction
in its purchases of antibodies could have a material adverse effect upon our future business, financial conditon and
results of operations.

New treatments may reduce the demand for our antibodies and antibody based
biopharmaceutical products.

Most of the antibodies we collect, process and sell to our customers are used in the manufacture of biopharma-
ceutical products to treat certain diseases. Several companies are marketing and developing monoclonal antibody
products to treat some of these diseases based on technology that would reduce or eliminate the need for human
antibodies. Such products could adversely affect the demand for antibodies and antibody based biopharmaceutical
products. We are unable to predict the impact of future technological advances on our business.

We may not generate sufficient cash flow from our biopharmaceutical and antibody
products or obtain financing necessary to fund our research and development activity
at an appropriate level.

We generate revenues from sales of our biopharmaceutical and antibody products. We will cease to generate revenues
from sales of one of these products, WinRho SDF¢ in March 2005 when our exclusive distribution agreement in
the U.S. ends. Sales of WinRho SDF may be negatively impacted in the period ended March 2005 due to this change
in relationship. We have incurred and expect to continue incurring significant expenses associated with our
biopharmaceutical research and development acuvities, including the cost of clinical trials and marketing expenses.
These expenses adversely affect our current ability to be profitable. Products under development may not generate
sales for several years or at all. We do not have the financial resources to fund concurrenty all of our biopharma-
ceutical product development programs to completion. Our ability to continue to fund all of our ongoing research
and development activites depends on our ability to generate sales from our biopharmaceutical and antibody
products or to obtain external financing. There can be no assurance, therefore, that we will be able to continue
to fund our research and development activities at the level required to commercialize all of our biopharmaceu-
tical product development programs. If we are required to reduce the funding for certain of our research and
developrment actvities, this could have a material adverse effect on our future prospects.

We may enter into strategic alliances that may not be successful and may adversely
atfect our ability to develop our products.

We intend to pursue strategic alhances with third partes to develop and/or commercialize certain of our biopharma-
ceutical products. No assurance can be given that we will be successtul in these efforts or, if successful, that our
collaborative partners will conduct their activites in a timely manner. If we are not successful in our efforts, our
ability to continue to develop our products may be affected adversely. Even if we are successful, if any of our
collaborative partners violates or terminates their agreements with us or otherwise fails to conduct their collaborative
activities in a timely manner, the development or commercializatdon of our products could be delayed. This might
require us to devote significant additional resources to product development and commercialization or terminate
certain development programs. In addition, there can be no assurance that disputes will not arise in the future with
respect to the ownership of rights to any technology developed with third parties. These and other possible dis-
agreements between our collaborative partners and us could lead to delays in the collaboratve research, develop-
ment or commercialization of certain products, or could require or result in liagation or arbitration, which would be
dme consuming and expensive and could have a material adverse effect on our future business, financial condition
and results of operations.
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We may not be able to develop and commercialize new biopharmaceutical products

successtfully or in a timely manner, which could adversely impact our future operations.
Our future success will depend on our ability to achieve scientific and technological advances and to translate such
advances into commercially competitive products on a timely basis. Our biopharmaceutical products under devel-
opment are at various stages, and substandal further development, pre-clinical testing and clinical trials will be
required to determine their technical feasibility and commercial viability. Our proposed development schedules
for these products may be affected by a variety of factors, including:

— technological difficultes,

— competition,

— failure to obtain necessary regulatory approvals,

— failure to achieve desired results in clinical trials,

— proprietary technology positions of others,

— positve clinical results for competitive therapies in the future,
— reliance on third parties for manufacturing,

— failure to market effectively,

— changes in government regulation and

— funding.

Positive results for a product in a clinical trial do not necessarily assure that positive results will be obtained
in future clinical trials or that we will obtain government approval to commercialize the product. In addition, any
delay in the development, intraducton or marketing of our products under development could result either in such
products being marketed at 2 ime when their cost and performance characteristics might not be competitive in
the marketplace or in a shortening of their commercial lives. There can be no assurance that our biopharmaceutcal
products under development will prove to be technologically feasible or commercially viable or that we will be
able to obtain necessary regulatory approvals and licenses on a timely basis, if at all. Our failure to develop and
commercialize successfully our biopharmaceutcal products in a timely manner and obtain necessary regulatory
approvals could have a material adverse effect on our future operations. In particular, our failure to obtain regulatory
approval for StaphVAX on a timely basis could adversely affect our market valuation.

We are unable to pass through certain cost increases to our antibody product customers
with which we have supply contracts.

A significant amount of our antibodies are sold under contracts that have a remaining term of up to four years.
Certain contracts do not permit us to increase prices during the contract term except to reflect changes in customer
specifications and new governmental regulations. If our costs of collecting antibodies under these contracts rise
for reasons other than changes in customer specifications and new governmental regulations, we are unable to pass
on these cost increases to our andbody product customers except with the customer’s consent.

30 Nahi Biopharmaceuticals



An increase in the supply of or a decrease in the demand for antibody products could
materially and adversely affect our future business, financial condition and results
of operations.

The worldwide supply of antibodies has fluctuated historically. Future changes in government regulation relating
to the collection, fractionation and use of antibodies or any negative public perception about the antibody collection
process or the safety of products derived from blood or antibodies could further adversely affect the overall
supply of or demand for antibodies. Increases in supply or decreases in demand of antibody products could have
a material adverse effect on our future business, financial condition and results of operations.

Jf we fail to comply with extensive regulations enforced by the FDA, European
Medicines Agency, or EMEA, the Paul Erlich Institute in Germany, or PEI, the
German Federal Institute for Drugs and Medical Devices, or BfArM, and other agencies,
the sale of our current products and the commercialization of our product candidates
would be prevented or delayed.

Research, pre-clinical development, clinical trials, manufacturing and marketing of our products are subject to exten-
sive regulation by various governiment authorides. The process of obtaining FDA, EMEA, PEL, BfArM and other
required regulatory approvals are lengthy and expensive, and the ume required for such approvals is uncertain.
The approval process is affected by such factors as:

— the severity of the disease,

— the quality of submission,

— the clinical efficacy and safety of the product,

— the strength of the chemistry and manufacturing control of the process,
— the compliance record and controls of the manufacturing facility,

— the availability of alternative treatments and

— the risks and benefits demonstrated in clinical trials.

Regulatory authorities also may require post-marketing surveillance to monitor potential adverse effects of
our products or product candidates. The U.S. Congress, or the FDA in specific situations, can modify the regulatory
process. Many of our clinical trials are at a relatively early stage and, except for Nabi-HB, WinRho SDF, PhosLo,
Aloprim and certain non-specific and specialty antibody products, no approval from the FDA or any other
government agency for the manufacturing or marketing of any other products under development has been granted.
"There can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain the necessary approvals to manufacture or market any
of our pipeline products. Failure to obtain additdonal regulatory approvals of products currently marketed or reg-
ulatory approval for products under development could have a miaterial adverse effect on our future business, financial
condition and results of operations. Once approved, a product’s failure to comply with applicable regulatory
requirements could, among other things, result in warning letters, fines, suspension or revocation of regulatory
approvals, product recalls or seizures, operating restrictions, injunctions and criminal prosecutions.

Although we do not have material sales of our biopharmaceutical products outside the U.S. today, our goal
is to expand our global presence for these products. Distribution of our products outside the U.S. is subject to exten-
sive government regulation. These regulations, including the requirements for approvals or clearance to market,
the time required for regulatory review and the sanctions imposed for violations, vary from country to country.
There can be no assurance that we will obtain regulatory approvals in such countries or that we will not be required
to incur significant costs in obtaining or maintaining these regulatory approvals. In addition, the export by us of
certain of our products that have not yet been cleared for domestic commercial distribution may be subject to FDA
export restrictions. Failure to obtain necessary regulatory approvals, the restriction, suspension or revocation of
existing approvals or any other failure to comply with regulatory requirements would have a material adverse effect
on our future business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Our U.S. manufacturing, antbody collection, labeling, storage and distribution activities also are subject to
strict regulation and licensing by the FDA. Our biopharmaceutical manufacturing facility in Boca Raton, Florida
is subject to periodic inspection by the FDA, the EMEA, PET and other regulatory authorities and from time to
time, we may receive notices of deficiencies from these agencies as a result of such inspections. Our antibody
collection centers in the U.S. also are subject to periodic inspection by the FDA, the EMEA and other regulatory
authorities and from time to time, we may receive notices of deficiencies from these agencies as a result of such
inspections. Our failure, or the failure of our biopharmaceutical manufacturing facility or our antibody collection
centers, to continue to meet regulatory standards or to remedy any deficiencies could result in corrective action
by the FDA, including closure of our biopharmaceutical manufacturing facility or one or more antibody collection
centers and fines or penalties. New regulations may be enacted and existing regulations, their interpretation and
enforcement, are subject to change. Therefare, there can be no assurance that we will be able to continue to
comply with any regulations or that the costs of such compliance will not have a material adverse effect on our
future business, financial condidon and results of operations.

Heightened concerns over antibody products and screening measures could adversely
affect our antibody production.

Our antbody collection centers and our customers for antibody products are subject to extensive regulation by
the FDA and non-U.S. regulatory authorities. Concern over the safety of antibody products have in the past resulted
and will likely result in the future in the adoption of more rigorous screening procedures by regulatory authori-
ties and manufacturers of antibody products. In prior years, these changes have resulted in significantly increased
costs to us in providing non-specific and specialty antibodies to our customers. New procedures, which include a
more extensive investigation into a donor’s background, as well as more sensitive tests, also have disqualified numer-
ous potental donors and discouraged other donors who may be reluctant to undergo the screening procedures.
These more stringent measures could adversely affect our antibody production with a corresponding, adverse effect
on our future business, financial condition and results of operations. In addition, our efforts to increase production
to meet customer demand may result in higher costs to attract and retain donors.

We may be subject to costly and damaging liability claims relating to antibody
contamination and other claims.

Antibodies we collect, antibody based products we manufacture, antibody based products we market or are
developing, such as Nabi-HB, WinRho SDF, Altastaph and Civacir, and antibody based products our customers
manufacture run the risk of being contaminated with viruses. As a result, suits may be filed against our customers
and us claiming that the plaintiffs became infected with a virus as a result of using contaminated products. Such
suits have been filed in the past related to contaminated antibodies, and in a number of suits we were one of sev-
eral defendants. No assurance that additional lawsuits relating to infection with viruses will not be brought
against us by persons who have become infected with viruses from antibody based products.

Pharmaceutical and biotechnology companies are increasingly subject to litigation, including class action
Jlawsuits, and governmental and administrative investigations and proceedings related to product pricing and mar-
keting practices. There can be no assurance that lawsuits will not be filed against us or that we will be successful
in the defense of these lawsuits. Defense of suits can be expensive and tme consuming, regardiess of the outcome,
and an adverse result in one or more suits could have a material adverse effect on our furure business, financial
condition and results of operations.
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We may not be able to maintain sufficient product liability and directors and officers
insurance to cover claims against us.

Product liability and directors and officers insurance for the biopharmaceutical industry is generally expensive to
the extent itis available at all. There can be no assurance that we will be able to maintain such insurance on accept-
able terms or that we will be able to secure increased coverage if the commercialization of our products progresses,
or that existing or future claims against us will be covered by our insurance. Moreover, there can be no assurance
that the existing coverage of our insurance policy and/or any rights of indemnification and contribution that we
may have will offset existing or future claims. A successful claim against us with respect to uninsured liabilides or
in excess of insurance coverage and not subject to any indemnification or contribution could have a material adverse
effect on our future business, financial condition and results of operations. Further, if we were unable to obtain
directors and officers liability insurance, it could affect adversely our ability to attract and retain directors and
senior officers.

We may not be able to maintain sufficient property insurance on our facilities in Florida.
We maintain significant real property assets in Florida. Property insurance for companies with a high concentration
of property assets in Florida is generally expensive to the extent it is available at all. There can be no assurance that
we will be able to maintain such insurance on acceptable terms or that we will be able to secure increased coverage
if the value of our property increases.

Qur patents and proprietary rights may not provide sufficient protection, and patents
of other companies could prevent us from developing and marketing our products.
The patent positions of biopharmaceutical firms generally are highly uncertain and involve complex legal and factual
questions. There can be no assurance that existing patent applications will result in issued patents, that we will be
able to obtain additional licenses to patents of others or that we will be able to develop additional patentable
technology of our own. We cannot be certain that we were the first creator of inventions covered by our patents
or pending patent applications or that we were the first to file patent applications for such inventions. There can
be no assurance that any patents issued to us will provide us with competitive advantages or will not be challenged
by others. Furthermore, there can be no assurance that others will not independently develop similar products,
or, if patents are issued to us, design around such patents.

A number of pharmaceutical companies, biotechnology companies, universities and research institutions have
filed patent applications or received patents relating to products or processes competitive with or similar to ours.
Some of these applications or patents may compete with our applications or conflictin certain respects with claims
made under our applications. Such a conflict could result in a significant reduction of the coverage of our patents,
if issued. In addition, if patents that contain competitve or conflicting claims are issued to others and such claims
are ulumately determined to be valid, we may be required to obtain licenses to these patents or to develop or obtain
alternative technology. If any licenses are required, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain any
such licenses on commercially favorable terms, if at all. Our failure to obtain a license to any technology that we
may require in order to commercialize our products could have a material adverse effect on our future business,
financial condition and results of operations. Litigation, which could result in substantal cost to us, may also be
necessary to enforce any patents issued to us or to determine the scope and validity of third-party proprietary rights.

We also rely on secrecy to protect our technology, especially where patent protection is not believed to be
appropriate or obtainable. We maintain strict controls and procedures regarding access to and use of our proprietary
technology and processes. However, there can be no assurance that these controls or procedures will not be
violated, that we would have adequate remedies for any violation, or that our trade secrets will not otherwise become
known or be independently discovered by competitors.
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We compete with larger, better-financed and more mature pharmaceutical and

biotechnology companies, which are capable of developing new products and
approaches that could make our products obsolete.

Competition in the development of biopharmaceutical products is intense, both from pharmaceutical and
biotechnology companies, and is expected to increase. Many of our competitors have greater financial resources
and larger research and development staffs than we have, as well as substantially greater experience in developing
products, obtaining regulatory approvals, and manufacturing and marketing biopharmaceutical products. We
compete with our competitors:

— to develop products,
— to acquire products and technologies and
— to attract and retain qualified scientific personnel.

There can be no assurance that our compettors will not succeed in developing technologies and products that
are more effective or affordable than those that we are developing. In addition, one or more of our competitors
may achieve product commercialization of or patent protection for competitive products earlier than us, which
would preclude or substantially limit sales of our products. Further, several companies are attempting to develop
and market products to treat certain diseases based upon technology that would lessen or eliminate the need for
human andbodies. The successful development and commercialization by any of our competitors of any such prod-
uct could have a material adverse effect on our future business, financial condition and results of operations.

There are potential limitations on third-party reimbursement and other pricing-
related matters that could reduce the sales of our products and may delay or impair
our ability to generate sufficient revenues.

Our ability to commercialize our biopharmaceutical products and related treatments depends in part upon the
availability of, and our ability to obtain adequate levels of, reimbursement from government health administration
authorities; private healthcare insurers and other organizations. Significant uncertainty exists as to the reimbursement
status of newly approved healthcare products, and there can be no assurance that adequate third-party payer coverage
will be available, if at all. Inadequate levels of reimbursement may prohibit us from maintaining price levels
sufficient for realization of an adequate return on our investment in developing new biopharmaceutical products
and could result in the termination of production of otherwise commercially viable products.

In the U.S,, government and other third-party payers are increasingly attempting to contain healthcare costs
by limiting both the coverage and level of reimbursement for new products approved for marketing by the FDA
and by refusing, in some cases, to provide any coverage for disease indications for which the FDA has not granted
marketing approval. Also, the trend towards managed healthcare in the U.S. and the concurrent growth of organ-
izations such as HMOs, which could control or significantly influence the purchase of healthcare services and
products, as well as legislative proposals to reform healthcare or reduce government insurance prograrmus, may all
result in lower prices for our products. The cost containment measures that healthcare providers are institudng
and the impact of any healthcare reform could have an adverse effect on our ability to sell our products and may
have a material adverse effect on our future business, financial condition and results of operations.

Within the EU, a number of countries use price controls to limit the reimbursement for pharmaceutical
products. These price control limits are often derived from the chemical endty of the product, the compettive
environment for a product and pricing in relation to other products. Further, price increases in these settings in
future periods may be significantly restricted or price decreases in future periods may be mandated. Reimbursement
for products within the EU is negotiated in each country. There can be no assurance that that we will receive

34 Nabi Biopharmaceuticals



reimbursement approval from any or all of the countries where we seek such approval or that reimbursement, if
approved, will be at sufficient levels in each country. Any delays in or failure to obtain licensure or reimbursement
approvals, or the failure to obtain reimbursement approvals at sufficient levels, and any delays in commercialization
could adversely affect our market valuation, results of operations and our financial position.

There can be no assurance that reimbursement in the U.S,, the EU or other markets will be available for our
products, or, if available, will not be reduced in the future, or that reimbursement amounts will not reduce the demand
for, or the price of, our products. The unavailability of government or third-party reimbursement or the inadequacy
of the reimbursement for medical treatments using our products could have a material adverse effect on our future
business, financial condition and results of operations. Moreover, we are unable to forecast what additional
legislation or regulation, if any, relating to the healthcare industry or third-party coverage and reimbursement may
be enacted in the future or what effect such legislation or regulation would have on our future business.

Anti-takeover provisions in our charter documents, under Delaware law and under our
stockholder rights plan could make an acquisition of us more difficulr.

Provisions of our certificate of incorporation and bylaws will make it more difficult for a third party to acquire us
on terms not approved by our board of directors and may have the effect of deterring hostile takeover attempts.
For example, our certificate of incorporation currently contains a fair price provision and also authorizes our board
of directors to issue substantial amounts of preferred stock and to fix the price, rights, preferences, privileges and
restrictions, including voting rights, of those shares without any further vote or action by the stockholders. The
rights of the holders of our common stock will be subject to, and may be harmed by, the rights of the holders of
any preferred stock that may be issued in the future. The issuance of preferred stock could reduce the voting power
of the holders of our common stock and junior preferred stock and the likelihood that holders of our common
stock and junior preferred stock will receive payments upon liquidation.

We also are subject to provisions of Delaware law that could have the effect of delaying, deferring or preventing
a change in control of our company. One of these provisions prevents us from engaging in a business combination
with any interested stockholder for a period of three years after the date the person becomes an interested stockholder,
unless specified conditions are satisfied.

We also have implemented a stockholder rights plan, or poison pill, that would substantally reduce or eliminate
the expected economic benefit to an acquirer from acquiring us in a manner or on terms not approved by our board
of directors. These and other impediments to a third-party acquisition or change of control could limit the price
investors are willing to pay in the future for our securities.

Currency exchange rate fluctuations could adversely affect our results from operations.
We conduct business in countries outside of the U.S., which expose us to fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates may affect our results of operations, which in turn
may adversely affect reported earnings and the comparability of period-to-period results of operations.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

We own an 87,300 square foot facility that houses our corporate headquarters, our licensed biopharmaceutical
manufacturing facility and our vaccine manufacturing facility in Boca Raton, Florida. We also own a 46,000 square
foot facility in Boca Raton that houses our laboratory and cold storage facility.

We lease office, laboratory, pilot manufacturing and warehouse space in Rockville, Maryland with terms
expiring through December 2008 with various options for lease extensions.

We occupy antibody collection centers ranging in size from approximately 3,200 to 20,800 square feet leased
from non-affiliates under leases expiring through 2012. A majority of these leases contain renewal options that
permit us to renew the leases for varying periods up to ten years at the then fair rental value. We believe that in
the normal course of our business, we will be able to renew or replace our existing leases.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

We are a party to lidgation in the ordinary course of business. We do not believe that such litigation will have a
material adverse effect on our future business, financial condition or results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS
No matter was submitted to a vote of security holders in the fourth quarter of the year ended December 25, 2004.
ITEM 44, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The executive officers of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals are as follows:

Name Age Position
Thomas H. McLain 47 Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President
Richard G. Clark 61 Senior Vice President, Administration and

Chief Administrative Officer

Raafat E.F. Fahim, Ph.D. 51 Senior Vice President, Technical and
Production Operations

H. LeRoux Jooste 49 Senior Vice President, Global Sales and Marketng

Henrik S. Rasmussen, M.D., Ph.D. 46 Senior Vice President, Clinical, Medical and
Regulatory Affairs

Mark L. Smith 43 Senior Vice President, Finance, Chief Financial Officer,

Chief Accounting Officer and Treasurer

MR. MCLAIN has served as Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President since May 2004 and has been a
director since April 2002. From June 2003 through May 2004 Mr. McLain served as Chief Executive Officer and
President. From November 2002 to June 2003, Mr. McLain served as President and Chief Operating Officer. From
April 2001 to November 2002, Mr. McLain served as Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer. From
1998 to April 2001, Mr. McLain served as Senior Vice President, Corporate Services and Chief Financial Officer.
From 1988 to 1998, Mr. McLain was employed by Bausch & Lomb, Inc., a global eye care company, where, as Staff
Vice President, Business Process Reengineering, he led a cross-functional team to restructure the global finance
and purchasing organizations. During his tenure with Bausch & Lomb, Mr. McLain held various positions of
in¢reasing responsibility, including Staff Vice President, Accounting and Reporting and Assistant Corporate
Controller. Before joining Bausch & Lomb, Mr. McLain practiced with the accounting firm of Ernst & Young
LLP. In February of 2004, Mr. McLain was elected to the Board of Directors of Eastman Chemical Company,
based in Kingsport, Tennessee.
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MR. CLARK has served as Senior Vice President, Administration and Chief Administraave Officer since May 2004,
Mr. Clark was employed from 1994 to 2004 by Right Management Consultants where he served for ten years in
positions of increasing responsibilities, most recently as Chief Operating Officer for the Florida/Caribbean
region. In his role as Chief Operating Officer, Mr. Clark specialized in senior executive leadership development,
strategic planning, organizational performance and career transition services. Prior to joining Right Management
Consultants, Mr. Clark was the president of the Clark Development Group, Inc., an organizational consultng firm
whose practice focused on strategic planning and business development. Previously Mr. Clark worked for twenty-two
years in CEO and President capacides in the field of voluntary association management.

DR. FAHIM has served as Senior Vice President, Technical and Production Operatons since May 2003 having
been employed as Vice President of Vaccine Manufacturing Operations in March 2003. From 2002 to 2003,
Dr. Fahim was an independent consultant, working with Aventis Pasteur and other companies worldwide on
projects that included manufacturing, process improvement, quality operations and regulatory issues. From 2001
t0 2002, he served as President and Chief Operating Officer of Lorus Therapeutics, Inc., a biopharmaceutical
company. From 1987 to 2001, Dr. Fahim was employed by Aventis Pasteur where he was instrumental in developing
several vaccines from early research to marketed products. During his employment with Avenus Pasteur, Dr. Fahim
held the positions of Vice President, Industrial Operations, Vice President Development, Quality Operations and
Manufacturing, Director of Product Development, and head of bacterial vaccines research/research scientist.

MR. JOOSTE has served as Senior Vice President of Global Sales and Marketing since December 2004. From
July 2002 to December 2004, Mr. Jooste was Vice President of Worldwide Product Planning for Cephalon, Inc.
From June 2001 to June 2002, Mr. Jooste served as Chief Operating Officer for Aton Pharma, Inc. Prior to joining
Aton Pharma, Mr. Jooste served with Wyeth and Eli Lilly and Company from 1983 to 2001, where he held positions
of increasing international sales and marketing responsibility working in the U.S., Europe and the Pacific Rim.
Mr. Jooste has acquired extensive knowledge and experience in marketing and sales of oral and injectable antibiotics
as well as specialty products in oncology, psychiatry, endocrinology and rheumatology. Throughout his career
he has had several assignments in the U.S., Europe and Australia where he was responsible for building and
expanding a commercial organization and creating capabilities to support marketing and sales of leading brands.

DR. RASMUSSEN has served as Senior Vice President, Clinical, Medical and Regulatory Affairs since May 2003
having been employed as Vice President of Clinical and Regulatory Affairs in February 2003. From April 1999 to
February 2003, Dr. Rasmussen was employed as Vice President/Senior Vice President of Clinical Research &
Regulatory Affairs for GenVec, Inc., a biotech company focused on gene therapy. From November 1994 to March 1999,
Dr. Rasmussen was employed as Vice President of Clinical Research/Senior Vice President of Clinical
Research/Regulatory Affairs with British Biotech. From 1989 to 1995, Dr. Rasmussen held various management
positions within the worldwide clinical development group of Pfizer Central Research in the UK. From 1985 to
1989, Dr. Rasmussen worked with a major university hospital in Denmark, focusing on internal medicine, including
cardiology, gastroenterology and infectious disease.

MR. SMITH has served as Senior Vice President of Finance, Chief Financial Officer and Chief Accounting Officer

- since April 2001, From August 1999 to April 2001, Mr. Smith served as Vice President of Finance and Chief
Accounting Officer and as Senior Director of Finance and Chief Accounting Officer. From 1998 to 1999, Mr. Smith
served as Vice President of Finance and Administration and Chief Financial Officer of Neuromedical Systems, Inc,,
where he played a leadership role in that company’s strategic restructuring and sale in connection with a pre-packaged
Chapter 11 proceeding under federal bankruptey laws. From 1996 to 1998, Mr. Smith served in various financial
executive capacities at Genzyme Corporation. From 1991 to 1996, Mr. Smith was employed by Genetrix, Inc., most
recently as its Chief Financial Officer. Before joining Genetrix Inc., Mr. Smith practiced with the accounting firm
of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP in both the U.S. and Australia.
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ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER
MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock is quoted on the Nasdag National Market under the symbol “NABL” The following table sets
forth for each period the high and low sale prices for our common stock (based upon intra-day trading) as reported

by the Nasdaq National Market.

High Low

2004
First Quarter ending March 27, 2004 17.100 12.000
Second Quarter ending June 26, 2004 17.900 13.550
Third Quarter ending September 25, 2004 14.440 8.750
Fourth Quarter ending December 25, 2004 15.780 11.600

2003
First Quarter ending March 29, 2003 6.590 5.000
Second Quarter ending June 28, 2003 8.000 5.600
Third Quarter ending September 27, 2003 9.600 5.250
Fourth Quarter ending December 27, 2003 12.370 8.000

The closing price of our common stock on March 3, 2005 was $12.36 per share. The number of record holders

of our common stock on March 3, 2005 was 1,021.

No cash dividends have been previously paid on our common stock and none are anticipated in 2005.
The following table provides information about purchases made by us of our common stock for each month

included in our fourth quarter:

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Total Number Approximate
of Shares  Dollar value of Shares
Total Number Purchased as Part of the May Yer Be
of Shares Average Pricc  Publically Announced  Purchased Under the

Period Purchased Paid per share Plans or Programs" Plans or Programs®
9/26/04 - 10/30/04 0 N/A 0 $3.1 million
10/31/04 - 11/27/04 0 N/A 0 $3.1 million
11/28/04 - 12/25/04 0 N/A 0 $3.1 million
Total: 0 N/A 0 $3.1 million

(1) On September 19, 2001, our Board of Directors approved the buyback of up to0 $5.0 million of our commion stock in the open market
or in privately negotiated transacons. We have acquired 345,883 shares of our common stock for a total of $1.9 million since the incep-

tion of the buyback program. Repurchased shares have been accounted for as treasury stock.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

As described under Item 7, amortzation expense related to an intangible manufacturing right asset and the write
off of the intangible manufacturing right asset have been restated for the years ended December 27, 2003 and
December 28, 2002.

The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial data for the five vears ended December 25, 2004
that was derived from our audited consolidated financial statements.

The data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified by reference to, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals’
Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.” All amounts in the following table are expressed in thousands, except for
per share data.

For the Years Ended
December 23, 2004 December 27, 2003 December 28,2002 December 29,2001 December 30, 2000

(as restated) (as restated) (as restated)

Statements of Operations Dara:
Sales $179,763 $176,570 $195966  $234829  $228,783
Costs of products sold, excluding

amortization of intangible assets 76,345 81,354 119,170 152,613 160,766
Rovyalty expense 17,569 18,387 12,883 12,093 11,175
Gross margin, excluding

amortzadon of intangible assets 85,849 76,829 63,913 70,123 56,842
Selling, general and

adnmunistrative expense 55,286 43,867 38,380 40,501 37,168
Research and development expense 61,003 29,040 21,096 15,330 14,266
Amortzation of intangible assets 8,673 5,393 1,116 1,075 1,121
Other operating expenses,

principally freight 521 477 583 715 706
Write-off of manufacturing right - 9,735 - - -
Gain on disposition of assets -~ - - (104,219)® -
Other non-recurring items -~ - - - (3,875)
Operating (loss) income (39,634) (11,683) 2,738 116,721 7,456
Interest income 1,628 614 1,287 1,204 33
Interest expense (2,199 (1,350) (2,130 (2,128) (3,581)
Other income (expenses), net 213 204 (157) (28) 551
(Loss) income before (provision)

benefit for income taxes (39,992) (12,213) 1,738 115,769 4,459
(Provision) benefit for

income raxes (10,398) 6,149 (264) (11,272) (100)
Net (loss) income $ (50,390) $ (6,066) $ 1,474 $ 104,497 $ 4359

Basic (loss) earnings per share: $  (0.86) $ (014 $ 004 § 275 $ 012

Diluted (loss) earnings per share: $  (0.86) § 0.19 $ 004 $ 236 $ 012
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For the Years Ended

December 25,2004 December 27,2003 December 28,2002 December 29,2001%  December 30, 2000

(as restated) (as restated) (as restated)

Balance Sheet Data:
Working capital $ 98,182 $ 142,905 $ 74,495 $ 154,425 $ 39,594
Total assets 368,171 387,301 231,595 314,334 224,487
Notes payable and capital lease '
obligations, including
current maturities 23,844 27,393 - 78,500 109,535
Tortal stockholders’ equity 284,321 319,316 . 188,263 187,021 77,394

(2) On September 6, 2001, we sold the operating assets of a majority of our antibody collection business and testing laboratory for $156.3
million in cash generating a net gain on disposition of $104.2 million. The assets sold were certain real estate, leasehold interests, fix-
tures, furniture, tools, machinery and equipment, other fixed assets, antbody inventories and related supplies, contracts, agreements, arrange-
ments and/or commitments, licenses and permits, business and financial records, intellectual property and goodwill related to the operadon
of the 47 antibody collection centers and our testing laboratory included in the wansaction.

ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION
AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

OUR STRATEGY

Our business strategy is to leverage our knowledge of the immune system and our clinical, regulatory, manufac-
turing and commercial expertise to improve human health by reducing patient mortality and morbidity and deliver
products to the marketplace that reduce the financial burden on the healthcare system.

Our currently marketed products assist us in pursuing this strategy by generating gross margin that helps fund
our clinical and research and development programs. Through commercialization of our currently marketed prod-
ucts, we have developed a specialty sales and marketing model focused on a differentiated consultative selling style designed
to develop strong physician relationships in hospital and dialysis center settings. We believe this model can be scaled
up in the U.S. and is readily wanslated in ex-U.S. markets as we prepare for the launch of addidonal products.

We maintain clear commercial synergies between our currently marketed products and products in our research
and development pipeline. Through our marketing of PhosLo (calcium acetate), we have developed an understanding
of the nephrology market that will be an important initial patient population for StaphVAX (Staphylococcus aureus
Polysaccharide Conjugate Vaccine). Our specialty sales force will be applied in the commercialization of our
products in clinical development, StaphVAX, Alrastaph [Staphylococcus aurens Immune Globulin (Human)] for adults
and very low birth weight neonates and Civacir [Hepauatis C Immune Globulin (Human)].

KEY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

During 2004 we began our transformation to become a global company by initiating the commercialization process
for StaphVAX, Nabi-HB Intravenous [Hepatitis B Immune Globulin (Human)] and PhosLo in Europe. We have
hired clinical and regulatory employees in the European Union, or EU, to support our European regulatory filings
and have initiated marketing and pricing studies for our products currently under EU regulatory consideration.
On December 21, 2004, we filed 2 Marketing Authorization Application, or MAA, for StaphVAX in the EU
via the Centralized Registration Procedure. Our MAA was based on efficacy data from our first Phase III clinical
trial of StaphVAX and the successful transfer of the commercial scale manufacturing process for StaphVAX to
Cambrex Bio Science Baltimore, Inc., or Cambrex Bio Science, that was completed in August 2004. Also dur-
ing 2004, we filed MAAS for PhosLo in October and Nabi-HB Intravenous in June using the Mutual Recognition
Procedure, or MRP. Each of the filings for StaphVAX, PhosLo and Nabi-HB Intravenous was prepared using the
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Common Technical Document, or CTD, format, which is widely accepted on a global basis. Under this format,
the filings can be readily submitted in other countries around the world, facilitating our ability to expand the
marketng of our products into markets beyond the EU and the U.S.

Our U.S. clinical strategy for Staph VAX was significantly advanced through fully enrolling our confirmatory
Phase I clinical trial in the third quarter of 2004. We also completed a Phase /11 clinical trial of Altastaph in adults
with persistent S. aureus infections, announcing the results in January 2005, and announced the results from our Phase
1 clinical trial of Altastaph in very low birth-weight neonates and our Phase I/II clinical trial for NicVAX in 2004.
Based on the results of these clinical trials we are currendy designing our clinical programs and undertaking further
clinical trials to advance the development of each of these programs toward future commercialization.

During 2004, we began construction of a vaccine manufacturing plant within available space in our Boca Raton,
Florida facility. We anticipate that this plant will initially manufacture StaphVAX. The vaccine plant also can be
used to manufacture our other vaccine product candidates.

In July 2004, Cangene Corporation, or Cangene, informed us that it would not renew the WinRho SDF license
and distribution agreement with us when the agreement expires in March 2005. We will contnue to distribute
WinRho SDF exclusively in the U.S. through March 2005.

KEY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

On December 7, 2004, we filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission. Upon being declared effective by the SEC, this registration statement will permit us, from time to
time, to offer and sell up to $175 million of equity or debt securities. We plan to use net proceeds from sales of
securities under this shelf registration statement to provide additional funds for general corporate purposes,
including but not limited to clinical trials, research, development and marketing expenses, and new acquisition
and licensing costs.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations for each of the three years
ended December 25, 2004, December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002, should be read in conjunction with the
Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto and with the information contained under “Risk Factors”
in Item 1. All amounts are expressed in thousands, except for per share and percentage data.

Information concerning our sales by industry segment, for the respective periods, is set forth in the following table.

. For the Years Ended
Segment December 25, 2004 December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002
Biopharmaceutical Products:
PhosLo $ 37,580  20.9% $ 12,875 7.3% $ - -%
Nabi-HB 40,176 22.3 37,638 213 41,185 21.0
WinRho SDF 47,882 26.7 49,957 283 33,995 17.4
Other Biopharmaceuticals 6,175 3.4 8,989 5.1 14,286 7.3
131,813 73.3 109,459 62.0 89,466 45.7
Anubody Products:
Specialty antibodies 23,270 13.0 21,425 12.1 32,749 16.7
Non-specific antgbodies 24,680 13.7 45,686 25.9 73,751 37.6
47,950 26.7 67,111 38.0 106,500 54.3
Total $179,763 100.0% $176,570 100.0% $ 195,966 100.0%
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RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEARS FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements for 2004, we determined that we had received
a benefit from our intangible manufacturing right asset related to our right to manufacture StaphVAX at Dow
Biopharmaceutical Contract Manufacturer of Dow’s, site in prior fiscal years when we had recorded no
amortizadon expense. This determination led to our decision to restate the financial statements for these periods
to record additional amortization expense. The following table summarizes the impact of the restatement on our
statements of operations:

In Thousands December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001
Increase in amortization expense $(1,618) $(932) $ (290)
Decrease in write-off manufacturing right 2,840

Decrease net operating loss
(decrease net operating income) $ 1,222 $(932) $ (290

(Increase)/decrease in (provision) benefit
for income taxes (456) 351 105
Decrease net loss/(decrease net income) $ 766 §(581) $(185)

Net (loss) income originally reported as $(6.8) mitlion or $(0.16) per share for the year ended December 27,2003,
$2.1 million or $0.05 per share for the year ended December 28, 2002 and $104.7 million or $2.36 per share for
the year ended December 29, 2001 have been restated as $(6.1) million or $(0.14) per share, $1.5 million or $0.04
per share and $104.5 million or $2.36 per share, respectively.

In October 2003 we made a decision to establish a2 new manufacturing relationship with Cambrex Bio
Science. to support an opportunity for earlier commercialization of our vaccine against S. aurens infections, Staph VAX
in Europe. As a result, we terminated our contract manufacturing agreement with Dow Biopharmaceutical
Contract Manufacturing Services or Dow, on October 9, 2003 and reported a non-cash write off equal to the recorded
value of the manufacturing right asset as of that date. As restated, this write off amount totals $9.7 million versus
$12.6 million reported previously. The restatement of amortization expense related to this asset will not require
restatement of the previously reported balance sheet as of December 27, 2003.

The following table sets forth selected consolidated financial data for the five years ended December 25,2004
that was derived from our audited consolidated financial statements.

The data should be read in conjunction with, and are qualified by reference to, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals’
Consolidated Financial Statements and the Notes thereto and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial
Condition and Results of Operations.” All amounts in the following table are expressed in thousands, except for
per share data.
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2004 AS COMPARED TO 2003 (AS RESTATED)

Sales

Total sales for 2004 were $179.8 million compared to sales of $176.6 million for 2003.

Biopharmaceutical sales
Biopharmaceutical sales for 2004 were a record $131.8 million compared to $109.5 million for 2003, an increase
0f 20%.

PhosLo

Sales of PhosLo were $37.6 million for 2004 compared to $12.9 million for the period of August 4, 2003 through
December 27, 2003. We acquired PhosLo on August 4, 2003 and began selling the product utilizing our sales force
and distribution channels in September 2003. In planning for 2005, we took the strategic decision to move
aggressively to convert patients from the PhosLo tablet formulation to the PhosLo gelcap formulation. We believe
the PhosLo gelcap formulation, which is easier for patients to use, will enhance overall panent compliance with
their prescriptions. In line with this decision and orders received from wholesaler customers, we significantly reduced
our inventory of PhosLo tablet formulation. We believe wholesaler customers increased their inventory levels in
response to increased patient demand, anticipated transition to PhosLo gelcaps and our announced price increases
that occurred in January 2004 and September 2004. Sales of PhosLo in 2004 included stocking of our gelcap
formulation of PhosLo by our wholesaler customers in the first quarter as we increased manufacturing capacity
for PhosLo gelcaps in order to facilitate transition to this formulation. Patient prescriptions for PhosLo have
increased in 2004 compared to 2003 based on our review of third party prescription data. Overall reported sales
of PhosLo in 2004 further benefited from the price increases that went into effect in January 2004 and September 2004
and from our pricing strategies that have resulted in lower rebate deductions from our gross selling price thereby
increasing net average selling price for PhosLo.

We have entered into inventory management agreements with two of our major wholesaler customers and,
as a result, expect our customers to reduce their inventory levels in 2005. We are aware that a compettive product
to PhosLo, Renagel (sevelamer hydrochloride) marketed by Genzyme Corporation, has initiated a clinical trial
examining the difference in morbidity and mortality outcomes based on arterial calcification for patients receiving
Renagel and those receiving calcium-based phosphate binders, including PhosLo. If the results of this trial are
favorable to Renagel, they may impact sales of PhosLo. The results from this trial may impact sales ot PhosLo in
2005. We have initiated the CARE 2 study in 2004 that seeks to demonstrate that when a patient’ lipid levels are
equally controlled, there is no clinical difference in arterial calcification between patients treated with PhosLo and
Renagel. We control lipid levels in CARE 2 through use of Lipitor (atorvastatin calcium) administered to all study
participants, as required to maintain lipid levels at established target levels. Interim results from this clinical trial
for serum phosphorus, serum calcium calcium phosphorus product and lipid levels are expected to be available in
the second half of 2005 with final data on arterial calcification measured by electron beam computer tomography
being available in the second half of 2006.

Nabi-HB

Sales of Nabi-HB increased 7% in 2004 compared to sales reported in 2003. Sales of Nabi-HB in 2004 benefited
from initial sales under our new agreement with Novation LLC, or Novation, entered into during the first quarter
of 2004. Under the terms of the agreement, we will supply finished Nabi-HB product to Novation for distribution
through their Novaplus® Private Label Program. We believe the most significant use of Nabi-HB is for the treatment
of hepadtis B positive liver transplant recipients and hence, sales of Nabi-HB are direcily related to the number
of hepatitis B liver transplants in the U.S. Our internally generated data indicates that the number of liver trans-
plants for hepatitis B patients for 2004 have increased by approximately 20% compared to the number for 2003.
Sales of Nabi-HB have benefited from this increase in liver wansplants for hepands B padents and increased pricing
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that went into effect at the beginning of 2004 offset by the impact of changes in treatment protocols for
HBV-positive liver transplant patients that have resulted in lower doses of antibody based therapies such as
Nabi-HB. Sales reported for 2003 benefited from product backorders of $3.5 million at December 28, 2002, that
were filled in 2003. At December 25, 2004 we had unfilled product orders for Nabi-HB totaling $3.8 million.

WinRho SDF [Rho (D) Immune Globulin Intravenous (Human)}

Sales of WinRho SDF were 4% lower in 2004 compared to sales in 2003. Based on internally generated padent use
data, we believe patient demand for WinRho SDF in 2004 has decreased in-line with the decrease in reported sales
in 2004 as compared to 2003. Our agreement with Cangene to distribute WinRho SDF will end in March 2005.

Other biopharmaceutical products

Other biopharmaceutical products, which include Aloprim [(Allopurinol Sodium) for injection], Autoplex T
[Anti-Inhibitor Coagulant Complex, Heat Treated], intermediate products manufactured in our plant and contract
manufacturing, generated sales of $6.2 million in 2004 compared to $9.0 million in 2003. Sales of Aloprim were lower
in 2004 compared to 2003 due to the impact from the introduction of a new compettive product. We expect sales of
Aloprim to continue to be affected by competition from this new product. Sales of Autoplex T were consistent in
2004 and 2003. Our contract with the manufacturer of Autoplex T ended on May 11, 2004 and sales subsequent to that
date were limited to existing inventory on hand. Sales of intermediate products, which are not a strategic focus for
us, were lower in 2004 compared to 2003 in line with manufacturing activity and contract-manufacturing revenue
was consistent between 2004 and 2003.

Antibody products

Total anubody product sales for 2004 were $48.0 million compared to $67.1 million for 2003. Total antibody
product sales decreased approximately 29% from 2003 levels due to the completion of a zero margin supply agree-
ment for supply of non-specific antibodies in April 2003.

Non-specific antibodies

"Total non-specific anabody sales were $24.7 million in 2004 compared to $45.7 million in 2003. Non-specific andbody
sales from our own antibody collection centers were $24.7 million in 2004 compared to $27.1 million in 2003
reflecting decreased production levels and decreased unit sales for 2004. In additon, non-specific antibody sales in
2003 included shipments to a single customer under a supply contract that expired in April 2003 under which we
earned no margin. This supply contract was retained by us following the sale of the majority of the antibody
collection business and testing laboratory in September 2001. We reported sales under this arrangement because
we retained the risk of credit loss with this customer. Such non-specific antibody sales totaled $18.6 million in
2003. In December 2003, we entered into a long-term supply contract for the sale of non-specific antibodies
to Bayer Corporation that is expected to generate a consistent cash flow from the excess non-specific antibody
production in our centers.

Specialty antibodies

Specialty antibody sales were $23.3 million for 2004 compared to $21.4 million for the comparable period of 2003,
an increase of approximately 9%. The increase in specialty antibodies primarily reflects increased sales of rabies,
CMYV and anti-HBs antibodies parnally offset by a decrease in sales of tetanus antibodies and diagnostic products.
Hepatitis B antibodies produced at our antibody collection centers were primarily retained by us to support the
manufacture of Nabi-HB in 2003, limiting the amount of these antbodies available for sale. Hepatitis B antibodies
are the primary raw material in the manufacture of Nabi-HB. Throughout 2003 and 2004 we had a contractual
commitment to supply substantial quantities of Rh,D antibodies to the purchaser of the majority of our antibody
collection and laboratory testing business. This commitment limited our ability to sell these antibodies produced
at our own centers to other customers at higher margins during 2004. This contract ended on December 31, 2004.
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Gross margin

Gross margin for 2004 was $85.8 million, or a record level of 48% of sales, compared to $76.8 million, or 44% of
sales, for 2003. The increase in gross profit for 2004 compared to 2003 reflects the increased proportion of our
biopharmaceutical product sales to total sales, led by increased sales of PhosLo. Gross margin for 2004 and 2003
also benefited from non-performance penalty amounts from the manufacturer of Autoplex T of $2.0 million and
$8.1 million, respectively. During 2004, our Boca Raton, Florida manufacturing facility underwent renovations related
to compliance with EU regulations, as well as routine maintenance, that limited utilization of the facility and resulted
in excess plant capacity expense of $6.4 million. Excess plant capacity expense was $2.2 million for 2003,
Additionally, in the fourth quarter of 2004 we reserved Nabi-HB inventory valued at $3.0 million due to certain
units of product falling outside strict compliance with our product specifications.

Royalty expense for 2004 was $17.6 million, or 13% of biopharmaceutical sales, compared to $18.4 million,
or 17% of biopharmaceutical sales, for 2003. The decrease in royalty expense as a percentage of biopharmaceutical
sales reflects the increase in total biopharmaceutical sales, primarily sales of PhosLo for which we pay no royalties,
during 2004, and lower sales of WinRho SDF and Aloprim. Royalty expense includes a 4% patent usage
royalty related to the manufacturing process of Nabi-HB and a royalty related to Aloprim that is set at 15% of
net Aloprim sales.

Selling, general and administrative expense

Selling, general and administrative expense was $55.3 million for 2004 compared to $43.9 million for 2003. Increased
selling, general and administrative expenses for 2004 was primarily related to full year selling and marketing
expense for PhosLo, inital commercialization activities in the EU, employee incentive expenses and costs related
to implementation of the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Selling, general and administrative
expense for 2003 included a charge of $3.3 million related to the redrement of our former Chief Executive Officer.

Research and development expense

Research and development expense increased more than two-fold to $61.0 million for 2004 compared to $29.0 million
for 2003. Consistent with the strategic focus of our research and development acuvites, the majority of research
and development expense in 2004 and 2003 was incurred to support our Gram-positive infections program composed
of StaphVAX and Altastaph as well as our next generation Gram-positive products. These activites included our
confirmatory Phase III clinical trial for StaphVAX that was fully enrolled in August 2004, transferring the
StaphVAX manufacturing process to our new contract manufacturer, Cambrex Bio Science, establishing StaphVAX
vaccine manufacturing capability within our Boca Raton, Florida facility, preparing the filing of our MAA for
StaphVAX in the EU and completing our Phase I/II and Phase 11 clinical trials of Altastaph in adults with persistent
S. aureus infections and in very low birth weight newborns. During 2004, we incurred approximately $17.9 million
in outside clinical trial costs for the confirmatory Phase I clinical trial for StaphVAX compared to $2.0 million
in 2003.

Research and development expense during 2004 and 2003 also included costs to support our currenty marketed
products as well as the other products in our development pipeline. In 2004 these costs included expenses to support
our MAAS filed in the EU for PhosLo and Nabi-HB Intravenous as well as ongoing costs to support our Biologics
License Application, or BLA, filing for Nabi-HB Intravenous seeking an indication for the prevention of re-infection
with hepatitis B in HBV-positive liver transplant patients. In addition, we incurred costs related to our Phase II
clinical trial of NicVAX in smokers in the U.S. from which we reported results in September 2004, continuing costs
related to our Phase II clinical trial of NicVAX in smokers and ex-smokers in The Netherlands, reporting of our
Phase /I clinical trial of Civacir and manufacture of clinical trial Civacir material. During 2003, we incurred costs
to support our BLA filing for Nabi-HB Intravenous, costs related to clinical work for PhosLo and support of our
Phase I/II clinical trials for NicVAX and Civacir.
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We expect research and development expense to increase by more than 10% in 2005 above 2004 levels reflecting
completion of the confirmatory Phase III clinical trial of StaphVAX and other clinical trial programs to support
the BLA that is expected to be filed by the end of 2005 and the supplemental MAA that is expected to be filed by
the end of 2005 in the EU for StaphVAX, advancing our other Gram-positive programs including Altastaph and
next generation Gram-positive vaccines and increased clinical work in support of PhosLo including continuation
of the CARE 2 study, pursuit of label expansion into the pre-dialysis chronic kidney disease patient population
through our EPICK clinical trial and support of our initial commercialization activities in the EU.

Amortization of intangible assets
Amortzation expense was $8.7 million for 2004 compared to $5.4 million for 2003. The increase in 2004 is due
primarily to full year amortization related to the intangible assets acquired in conjunction with the acquisition of PhosLo.

Write-off of Manufacturing Right

In order to meet the filing timeline for our MAA filing in the EU for StaphVAX,, we entered into a contract
manufacturing reladonship with Cambrex Bio Science and we ended our agreement with the previous manufacturer
on October 9, 2003. As a result of this action, we wrote off costs we had capitalized in prior periods relating to the
right to manufacture StaphVAX at this manufacturer’s facility in future periods and recorded a charge of $9.7 million
in 2003.

Interest income

Interest income for 2004 was $1.6 million compared to $0.6 million for 2003. Interest income is earned from
investing cash and cash equivalents on hand in money market funds and auction rate securities with maturities or
reset periods of three months or less. The increase in interest income in 2004 compared to 2003 is due to higher
average cash balances in 2004 following completion of an equity offering that raised net proceeds ot $91.5 million
in December 2003.

Interest expense

Interest expense for 2004 was $2.2 million compared to $1.4 million for 2003. Effective March 26,2004, we terminated
our credit agreement with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc. in order to avoid future costs for unused credit fees and other
service charges. As a result of terminating the credit agreement, we incurred an early termination fee of $0.6 million
and wrote off previously capitalized loan origination costs of $0.5 million. In addition, interest expense included
$1.2 million for amortization of the discount on the notes payable entered into in connection with the acquisition
of PhosLo. Interest expense in 2003 included interest expense incurred under our credit facility entered into on
June 20, 2003, amortization of loan origination fees and unused limit fees related to the credit agreement and
non-cash interest expense imputed to our non interest bearing notes payable entered into in connection with the
acquisition of PhosLo on August 4, 2003. Capitalized interest relating to construction of our vaccine manufacturing
facility in Boca Raton, Florida was $0.3 million for 2004 and related to construction of our laboratory and cold
storage facility in Boca Raton, Florida was $0.1 million for 2003.

Income taxes

The provision for income taxes was $10.4 million for 2004, compared to a benefit of $6.1 million for 2003. As a
result of licensing the right to market StaphVAX and PhosLo in the EU to one of our ex-U.S. subsidiaries and in
recognition of the value of the product rights developed and acquired by us, we realized a gain for U.S. tax reporting
purposes of approximately $55 million. Although we recognized a consolidated operating loss on a GAAP basis
during 2004, we nevertheless incurred income tax expense due to the U.S. taxable gain arising from licenses of these
product rights to our non-U.S. subsidiary. We anticipate realizing deferred tax assets related to net operating loss
carryforwards incurred in prior periods and the exercise of employee stock options to offset future cash payment
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of income taxes on the reported U.S. taxable gain in 2004. For 2003, the provision for income taxes reflected a
benefit of $6.1 million due to the recognition of research and development tax credits as a result of our activities
toward licensing the right to market StaphVAX and PhosLo in the EU that were completed in 2004. If we determine
in future periods that it is not more likely than not that we will utilize our deferred tax assets, we may be required
to record a valuation allowance against some of our deferred tax assets.

Fluctuating fiscal year periods

Our fiscal year ends on the last Saturday of December. Consequently, we will periodically have a 53-week fiscal year.
The fiscal years ended December 25, 2004, December 27, 2003, and December 28, 2002, were 52-week years. The
fiscal year ending December 31,2005, will be a 53-week year. The extra week will be included in the fourth quarter
of 2005.

Stock option expensing

We will have an expense in 2005 related to our equity compensation plans as a result of the implementation of
Financial Accounting Statement, or FAS, 123(R). Share-Based Payment that is effective for our accounting periods
beginning after June 13, 2005. Using the Black-Scholes model for valuing stock options under FAS 123(R) would
result in expense for options granted in prior years on a pre-tax basis in the amounts of $9.0 million, $9.4 million
and $7.3 million for the years ending in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

2003 (AS RESTATED) AS COMPARED TO 2002 (AS RESTATED)

Sales
Total sales for 2003 were $176.6 million compared to sales of $196.0 million for 2002.

Biopharmaceutical sales

Biopharmaceutical sales for 2003 were $109.5 million compared to $89.5 million for 2002, an increase of 22%.
Biopharmaceutical sales as a percentage of total sales increased, reflecting the increasing importance of our
biopharmaceutical products. Sales for 2003 benefited from the initial sales of PhosLo as well as a significant
increase in sales of WinRho SDF.

PhosLo

We acquired PhosLo on August 4, 2003 and began selling the product utilizing our sales force and distribution
channels in September 2003. Sales of PhosLo totaled $12.9 million for the period August 4 through
December 27, 2003. Sales of PhosLo benefited from new prescriptions for the product in 2003 compared to 2002
as reported by an external prescription monitoring service and demand for the product by wholesaler and distributor
customers in anticipation of future patient demand.

Nabi-HB

Sales of Nabi-HB decreased 9% in 2003 compared to sales reported in 2002. We believe the most significant use
of Nabi-HB is for the treatment of hepatitis B positive liver transplant recipients in the period of and following
liver transplant. As reported by the United Network for Organs Sharing, liver transplants for hepatitis B patients
for 2003 decreased approximately 30% from 2002 levels. Further, use of antibody-based products such as Nabi-HB
was affected by increased use of anti-viral therapies by physicians during the period following transplant. Sales of
Nabi-HB in 2003 also benefited from $3.5 million of back ordered product at December 28, 2002 that was shipped
in 2003. In addidon, wholesaler and distributor customers increased inventory levels of Nabi-HB in 2003. Sales of
Nabi-HB in 2002 benefited from completion of the transition to Nabi-HB product manufactured in our Boca Raton
facility in that period, the ininal period of manufacrure at that facility.
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WinRho SDF

Sales of WinRho SDF increased 47% in 2003 compared to 2002. Patient utilization of WinRho SDF reflected higher
dose protacols utilized by treating physicians as a result of findings reported in the March 2002 issue of the New
England Journal of Medicine as well as our success versus competitive products, the growth in the overall number
of ITP patients and increased pricing. In additon, sales of WinRho SDF in 2002 were negatively impacted by an
inventory build-up by our wholesaler and distributor customers in 2001 in response to product supply shortages
from the manufacturer of this product in 2000.

Other biopharmaceuvtical products

Other biopharmaceutcals sales, which primarily comprise sales of Autoplex T and Aloprim, decreased 37% in 2003
compared to 2002. Aloprim sales in 2003 were impacted by product supply shortfalls from the manufacturer of the
product in the first quarter of 2003, which resulted in patient weatment being supported by alternate products.
Aloprim supply from the manufacturer resumed in April 2003 and benefited sales of this product for the balance
of 2003. For the full year 2003, patient utilization of Aloprim was consistent with 2002. Aloprim sales in 2002
benefited from receipt of two back-ordered lots that were substantally sold in that period.

Antibody producrs

Total andbody product sales for 2003 were $67.1 million compared to $106.5 million for 2002. In December 2003,
we entered into a Jong-term supply contract for non-specific antibodies with Bayer Corporation that is expected
to generate a consistent cash flow from the excess non-specific antibody production in our centers.

Non-specific antibodies

Non-specific andbody sales included shipments to a single customer under a supply contract that expired in April 2003
under which we earned no margin. The supply contract was retained by us following the sale of the majority of the
antibody collection business and testing laboratory in September 2001. We reparted sales under this arrange-
ment because we retained the risk of credit loss with this castomer. Such non-specific antibody sales totaled
$18.6 million in 2003 and $55.6 million in 2002. Non-specific antibody sales from our own antibody collection
centers were $27.1 million in 2003 compared to $18.2 million in 2002 reflecting increased production levels and
increased unit sales for 2003.

Specialty antibodies

Specialty andbody sales were $21.4 million for 2003 compared to $32.7 million for the comparable period of 2002,
a decrease of approximately $11.3 million. This decrease primarily reflected decreased sales of rabies, tetanus,
hepatitis B and Rh,D antibodies. Sales of rabies andbodies have decreased due to the conclusion of a contract to
provide this product to a single pharmaceutical customer in 2002. Sales of tetanus antibodies decreased due to reduced
demand from the international market. Hepatitis B antibodies produced at our antibody collection centers were
primarily retained by us to support the manufacture of Nabi-HB in 2003, limiting the amount of these andbodies
available for sale. Hepatitis B antibodies are the primary raw material in the manufacture of Nabi-HB. We had a
contractual commitment to supply substantial quantities of Rh,D antibodies to the purchaser of the majority of
our antibody collection and laboratory testing business at a low margin that ended on December 31, 2004. This
commitment limited our ability to sell these antibodies produced at our own centers to other customers at higher
margins during 2003.
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Gross margin
Gross margin for 2003 was $76.8 million, or 44% of sales, compared to $63.9 million, or 33% of sales, for 2002.
The increase in gross profit for 2003 compared to 2002 primarily reflects the increased proportion of higher
margin biopharmaceutical sales compared to total sales, including inidal sales of PhosLo. During 2003, we also
benefited from increased utlization of our Boca Raton manufacturing facility compared to 2002 resulting in excess
plant capacity expense of $2.2 million compared to an excess plant capacity expense of $3.5 million for 2002. Gross
margin for 2003 and 2002 also benefited from gross non-performance penalty amounts from the manufacturer of
Autoplex T of $8.1 million and $3.5 million, respectively. Offsetting these gross margin gains were reduced margin from
sales of specialty antibodies, increased costs of manufacture for Nabi-HB and the impact of inventory write-offs.
We incur royalty expense by reason of our license and distribution agreements for WinRho SDF and Aloprim
that provide for profit sharing from sales of these products. In addition, royalty expense includes a 4% patent usage
royalty related to the manufacturing process of Nabi-HB. Royalty expense for 2003 was $18.4 million, or 17% of
biopharmaceutical sales, compared to $12.9 million, or 14% of biopharmaceutical sales, for 2002. The increase in
royalty expense primarily reflected increased sales of WinRho SDF in 2003 over 2002.

Selling, general and administrative expense

Selling, general and administrative expense was $43.9 million for 2003 compared to $38.4 million for 2002.
Increased selling, general and administrative expense for 2003 included a charge of $3.3 million related to the
retirement of our former Chief Executive Officer, increased use of a tax consultant compared to 2002 and costs
to launch PhosLo.

Research and development expense

Research and development expense was $29.0 million for 2003 compared to $21.1 million for 2002. Consistent
with the strategic focus of our research and development actvities, the majority of research and development expense
in 2003 and 2002 was incurred to support activity under our Gram-positive infections program including
StaphVAX and Altastaph as well as pre-clinical programs. Increased research and development expense in 2003
resulted from a number of actvites, including preparation for and initiation of our confirmatory Phase I clinical
trial for StaphVAX| transfer of the StaphVAX manufacturing process to our new contract manufacturer, Cambrex
Bio Science, development costs related to the preparation of our MAA filing for StaphVAX in the EU, initiation
of a Phase I clinical mial of Altastaph in very low birth weight newborns, initiadon of a Phase II clinical trial of NicVAX
in smokers in the U.S. and a Phase I/II clinical trial of NicVAX in smokers and ex-smokers in The Netherlands,
ongoing clinical support for our Phase I/II clinical trial of Civacir and manutacture of clinical trial Civacir matertal,
and research and development costs to support our Nabi-HB Intravenous BLA filed with the FDA seeking an
indication for the prevention of re-infecton with hepadds B in HBV-positive liver transplant patients.

Amortization of intangible assets

Amortization expense was $5.4 million for 2003 compared to $1.1 million for 2002. The increase in 2003 1s due
primarily to amortization related to the intangible assets acquired in conjunction with the acquisition of PhosLo
in August 2003.

Write-off of Manufacturing Right

In conjunction with establishing our new contract manufacturing relatdonship with Cambrex Bio Science, we ended
our agreement with the previous manufacturer on October 9, 2003. As a result of this action, we wrote off costs
we had capitalized in prior periods relating to the right to manufacture StaphVAX at this manufacturer’s facility
in future periods and recorded a charge of $9.7 million in 2003.
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Interest income

Interest income for 2003 was $0.6 million compared to $1.3 million for 2002. Interest income is earned from
investing cash and cash equivalents on hand in money market funds and auction rate securities with maturities or
reset periods of three months or less. The decrease in interest income in 2003 compared to 2002 is due to lower
average cash balances in 2003. Our cash balance at December 27, 2003 included the proceeds from our underwritten
public offering of our common stock that closed on December 23, 2003 raising net cash proceeds of approximately
$91.5 million. A total of $9.5 million of the funds were used to pay off our term loan on December 23, 2003.
In September 2001, we received proceeds of $135 million, net of repayment of then outstanding bank debt and clos-
ing costs, from the sale of the majority of our antibody collection business and testing laboratory. These funds were
invested in the financial instruments described above in 2002. In April 2002, a portion of these funds was utilized
to redeem our $78.5 million 6.5% Convertible Subordinated Notes.

Interest expense

Interest expense for 2003 was $1.4 million compared to $2.1 million for 2002. Interest expense in 2003 includes
interest expense incurred under our credit facility entered into on June 20, 2003, amortization of loan origination
fees and unused limit fees related to the credit agreement and non-cash interest expense imputed to our non
interest bearing notes payable entered into in connection with the acquisition of PhosLo on August 4, 2003. Interest
expense in 2002 relates to interest on the 6.5% Convertible Subordinated Notes which were redeemed in April 2002.
Capitalized interest related to constructon of our laboratory and cold storage facility in Boca Raton, Florida was
$0.1 million for 2003.

Income taxes

The provision for income taxes reflected a benefit of $6.1 million for 2003, compared to a provision of $0.3 million
for 2002. The 50% effective tax rate for 2003 differs from the statutory rate of 34% due to the recognition of research
and development tax credits as a result of our European strategy and our determination that it is more likely than
not that this strategy will result in realizaton of these tax credits because of the completion of our equity financing
in December 2003.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Net cash provided by operating actvites for the year ended December 25, 2004 was $8.7 million. The total of our
cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities balances at December 25, 2004 was $103.1 million compared
to cash and cash equivalents of $115.8 million at December 27, 2003.

In conjunction with the acquisition of PhosLo in August 2003, we entered into an obligation to pay the seller
$30.0 million over the period ending March 1, 2007. As of December 25, 2004, our remaining obligation, net of
discount, was $23.3 million. We will repay $10.9 of this obligation in 2005. During 2004, we repaid $5.3 million
of this obligation.

Under terms of an agreement entered into in October 2003 with Cambrex Bio Science, at December 25, 2004
we have a remaining commitment of $0.2 million including costs to acquire the rights to future commercial
manufacturing capacity for StaphVAX at Cambrex Bio Science’s facility and to transfer commercial scale manu-
facture of StaphVAX to this facility. Through December 25,2004, we have incurred $9.6 million in costs, of which
a total of $3.0 million has been capitalized as a Manufacturing Right and included in intangible assets.

In April 2004, we entered into an agreement to construct a commercial scale vaccine manufacturing facility
and install equipment within available space in our Boca Raton, Florida manufacturing plant. Under the terms of
the agreement, as of December 23, 2004, we have a remaining commitment of $0.7 million that we expect to
complete before the end of 2005. To date, we have incurred a total of $17.8 million to construct this vaccine
manufacturing facility, including $14.7 million under our contractual commitment. We antcipate the total cost
for the facility, including equipment, to be approximately $18.5 million to $20 million.
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Capital expenditures were $22.6 million for 2004. Our capital expenditures are primarily related to the
construction of a commercial scale vaccine manufacturing facility at our Baca Raton, Florida manufacturing plant.
In addition, capital expenditures included costs to complete our laboratory and cold storage facilides in Boca Raton,
Florida as well as fixed assets to support our gesearch and development activides in Rockville, Maryland.
During 2005, we expect capital expenditures to be between $10 million to $11 million, primarily to support research
and development activities, manufacturing and information technology.

In connection with an agreement related to the retirement of our former Chief Executive Officer as of
December 25, 2004, we have a remaining net obligation of $1.9 million in cash payments through December 2006.
The current portion of this obligation totaling $1.0 million is recorded in accrued expenses and the long-term
portion is recorded in other Liabilities at December 25, 2004.

During 2004, we received $9.8 million from the exercise of employee stock options.

Although we incurred income tax expense for 2004 due to the U.S. taxable gain arising from licensing of prod-
uct rights to one of our non-U.S. subsidiaries, we do not anticipate a significant cash outflow for income taxes. We
anticipate realizing deferred tax assets related to net operating loss carryforwards incurred in prior periods and
deduction of employee stock option exercises for income tax reporting purposes to offset cash payment of income
taxes on the reported U.S. raxable gain in 2004.

On December 7, 2004, we filed a shelf registration statement on Form S-3 with the U.S. Securities and Exchange
Commission. Once declared effective by the SEC, this registration statement will permit us, from time to time,
to offer and sell up to $175 million of equity or debt securities. We plan to use net proceeds from sales of securities
under this shelf registration statement to provide additional funds for general corporate purposes, including but
not limited to clinical trials, research, development and marketing expenses, and new acquisition and licensing costs.

On March 26, 2004, we ended our credit facility with Wells Fargo Foothill, part of Wells Fargo & Company.

On September 19, 2001, our Board of Directors approved the expenditure of up to $5.0 million to repurchase
shares of our common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. Repurchases will allow us
to have treasury stock available to support our stock option and stock purchase programs. We acquired no shares
under this program during 2004. We will evaluate market conditions in the future and make decisions to repurchase
additional shares of our common stock on a case-by-case basis in accordance with our Board of Directors’
approval. We have acquired 345,883 shares of our common stock for a total of $1.9 million since the inception of
this buy back program.

We believe that cash flow from operations and cash and cash equivalents on hand will be sufficient to meet
our anticipated cash requirements for operations for at least the next twelve months.
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The following table provides information as of December 25, 2004 with respect to the amounts and timing
of our known contractual obligations as specified below:

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

After
In Thousands 20035 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Total
Open purchase orders $ 3866 § - $ - $ - $§ - $ - § 3,866
Operatng leases 2,625 2,059 1,447 1,233 155 378 7,897
Capital leases 240 240 109 - - - 589
Notes Payable,

PhosLo acquisition 10,856 8,877 4,934 ~ - ~ 24,667
Retirement obligatons 1,329 1,184 ~ - - - 2,513
Contractual obligations to

purchase inventory 636 636 636 636 424 - 2,968
Cambrex Bio Science 220 - - ~ - - 220
Capital commitments

for vaccine

manufacturing facility 666 ~ - - - - 666

Total $ 20,438 $12,996 $ 7,126 $ 1,869 $ 579 § 378 $43,386

The preceding table does not include informaton with respect to the following contractual obligations because
the amounts of the obligations are currently not determinable: contractual obligations in connection with clini-
cal trials, which are payable on a per-patient basis and royalty obligations, which are payable based on the sales
levels of some of our biopharmaceutical products. In additon, the payment terms provided in the PhosLo acqui-
sition agreement are a combination of fixed semi-annual payments and variable annual payments calculated as a
percentage of net revenue, and therefore, the PhosLo notes payable amounts in 2006 and 2007 are based on our
current estimates.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
sales and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Intangible Assets — PhosLo Intangibles

On August 4, 2003 we acquired the worldwide rights to PhosLo. Under the terms of the acquisition agreement
we purchased patent rights, trade secrets, the PhosLo trademarks, regulatory approvals and licenses, certain
customer and regulatory data and finished product inventory. All assets purchased, except for inventory, have been
recorded at their estimated fair value, adjusted by a pro rata portion of the excess of purchase price, and are included
in intangible assets.
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Management believes the estimated remaining useful lives of the acquired intangible assets are as follows:

Estimared

Remaining
Doflars in Thousands December 25, 2004 Useful Life
PhosLo Intangibles
Trademark/tradename $ 1,423 16.3 years
Tablet patent 11,381 2.3 years
Gelcap patent 80,670 16.3 years
Customer relationships 2,337 3.6 years
Covenant-not-to-compete 508 13.6 vears
Total PhosLo intangible assets 96,319
Accumulated amortization (11,690)
"Jotal PhosLo Related Intangible Assets $ 84,629

The wademark/tradenames and gelcap patent useful lives are estimated as the remaining patent life of the gelcap
patent based on our assessment of the market for phosphate binders to treat hyperphosphatemia in end stage renal
failure patients including our assessment of competitive therapies, forecasted growth in the number of patients and
wends in patient care. The tablet patent’s useful life is estimated as the remaining patent life for the tablet patent
in the U.S. based on the direct competitive benefits derived from the patent. The covenant not-to-compete is based
on the seller’s contractual agreement not to compete directly with PhosLo in dialysis markets for a period of
15 years. We have established a useful life of 5 years for customer relationships based on our review of the time
that would be required to establish markets and customer relationships within the nephrology and dialysis
market place. In future periods, if we assess that circumstances have resulted in changes to the carrying value of
the intangible assets or their estimated useful life, we will record those changes in the period of that assessment.

Intangible Assets -~ Manufacturing Right

In October 2003, we entered into a contract manufacturing agreement with Cambrex Bio Science. Under our
agreement with Cambrex Bio Science, at December 23, 2004, we are committed to make future payments of at
least $0.2 million including costs to acquire the rights to commercial manufacturing capacity for StaphVAX vaccine.
We have commenced amortization of the Manufacruring Right. Due to StaphVAX being a new product and the
exact period of future economic benefit that will be derived from the sale of Staph VAX being difficult to determine,
we have elected to amortize the Manufacturing Right on a straight-line basis over the extended term of our
contract manufacturing agreement with Cambrex Bio Science, which ends in October 2013. The contract exten-
sion is permitted under terms of the agreement with notice from us to Cambrex Bio Science. At December 25,2004,
we have capitalized $3.0 million as a Manufacturing Right on our balance sheet. If we determine that the manu-
facture of StaphVAX will not occur at Cambrex Bio Science’s facility, or we assess that circumstances have
resulted in changes to the carrying value of the intangible asset, we will write off this Manufacturing Right in the
period of that determination.
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Property, Plant and Equipment and Depreciation

We incurred costs of $90.3 million to construct our biopharmaceutical manufacturing facility in Boca Raton, Florida
and received approval to manufacture our own antibody-based biopharmaceutical product, Nabi-HB, at this facility
from the FDA in October 2001. In constructing the facility for its intended use, we incurred approximately
$26.8 million in direct costs of acquiring the building, building systems, manufacturing equipment and computer
systems. We also incurred a total of $63.5 million of costs related to validation of the facility to operate in an FDA
approved environment and capitalized interest. Costs related to validation and capitalized interest has been allocated
to the building, building systems, manufacturing equipment and computer systems. Buildings and building systems
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over 39 vears and 20 years, respectvely, the estimated useful lives of these
assets. The specialized manufacturing equipment and computer systems are depreciated using the units-of-
praduction method of depreciation subject to a minimum level of depreciation based on straight-line depreciation.
The units-of-producton method of depreciation is based on management’s estimate of production levels.
Management believes the units-of-production method 1s appropriate for these specialized assets. Use of the units-
of-production method of depreciation may result in significantly different financial results of operation than
straight-line depreciadion in periods of lower than average or higher than average production levels. However, this
differential is limited in periods of lower than average production, as we record a minimum of 60% of the depre-
ciation that would have otherwise been recorded had we used the straight-line method. In 2004, 2003 and 2002,
we recorded additional depreciation of $2.5 million, $1.6 million and $2.3 million, respectively, under this policy.

Accounts Receivable and Revenue Recognition
In the year ended December 25, 2004, we had biopharmaceutical product sales of $131.8 million. At December 25, 2004,
we had $32.4 million of accounts receivable including $25.4 million from biopharmaceuticals sales.

Our primary customers for biopharmaceutical products are pharmaceutical wholesalers. In accordance with
our revenue recognition policy, revenue from biopharmaceutical product sales is recognized when tide and risk
of loss are transferred to the customer. Reported sales are net of estimated customer prompt pay discounts,
contractual allowances in accordance with managed care agreements known as chargebacks, government payer
rebates, customer returns of PhosLo and other wholesaler fees. At December 25, 2004, we had $8.6 million recorded
in other current liabilities related to these contractual obligations as accrued sales deductions. Cur policy regarding
sales to customers is that we do not recognize revenue from, or the cost of, such sales where we believe the
customer has more than a demonstrably reasonable level of inventory. We make this assessment based on historical
demand, historical customer ordering patterns for purchases and estimated inventory levels. If our actual
experience was greater than our assumptions we would then record additional expenses in that period.

We estimate allowances for revenue dilution items using a combination of information received from third
parties, including market data, inventory reports from our major U.S. wholesaler customers, historical information
and analysis that we perform. The key assumptions used to arrive at our best estimate of revenue dilution reserves
are estimated customer inventory levels, contractual prices and related terms. Our estimates of inventory at whole-
saler customers and in the distribution channels are subject to the inherent limitations of estimates that rely on
third-party data, as certain third-party information may itself rely on estimates, and reflect other limitations.
Provisions for estimated rebates and other allowances, such as discounts, promotional and other credits are estmated
based on historical payment experience, historical relationship to revenues, estimated customer inventory levels and
contract terms and actual discounts offered. We believe that such provisions are determinable due to the limited
number of assumptions involved and the consistency of historical experience. Provision for chargebacks involves
mare subjective judgments and are more complex in nature. This provision is discussed in further detail below.
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Chargebacks — The provision for chargebacks is a significant and complex estimate used in the recognition of revenue.
We market products directly to wholesalers, distributors and homecare companies. We also market products
indirectly to group purchasing organizations, managed care organizations, physician practice management groups
and hospitals, collectively referred to as indirect customers. We enter into agreements with indirect customers to
establish contract pricing for certain products. The indirect customers then select wholesalers from which to actually
purchase the products at these contracted prices. Under this arrangement, we will provide credit to the whole-
saler for any difference between the contracted price with the indirect party and the wholesaler’s invoice price.
Such credit is called a chargeback. The provision for chargebacks is based on our historical chargeback experience
and estimated wholesaler inventory levels, as well as expected sell-through levels by our wholesaler customers to
indirect customers, Our estimates of inventory at wholesaler customers and in the distribution channels are subject
to inherent limitations of estimates that rely on third-party data, as certain third-party information may itself rely
on estimates, and reflect other limitations. We continually monitor our provision for chargebacks and make
adjustments when we believe that actual chargebacks may differ from established reserves.

The following table represents the amounts we have accrued for sales deductions as of:

Accrued Other accrued

Accrued Accrued sales sales Total sales

In Thousands chargebacks rebates discounts deductions deductions
Balance at December 28, 2002 $ 2,496 $ 200 § 894 § 313 $ 3,903
Provision for sales 6,287 2,238 4,331 808 13,664
Actual credits utlized during 2003 (4,286) (71) (4,573) (804) (10,234)
Balance at December 27, 2003 4,497 1,867 652 317 7,333
Provision for sales 7,831 3,819 7,266 1,087 20,003
Actual credits utilized during 2004 (7,911) (3,106) (6,851) (916) (18,784)
Balance at December 25, 2004 $ 4417 $ 2,580 $ 1,067 $ 488 $§ 8,552

INVENTORY AND RESERVES FOR SLOW MOVING OR OBSOLETE INVENTORY

At December 25, 2004, we had inventory, net on hand of $20.2 million. In the year ended December 25, 2004, we
recorded a provision for inventory valuation allowance of $4.0 million. We review inventory on hand at each
reporting period to assess that inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market and that inventory on hand is saleable.
Our assessment of inventory includes review of selling price compared to inventory carrying cost, recent sales trends
and our expectations for sales trends in future periods, ongoing validation that inventory is maintained within
established product specifications and product shelf life expiration. Based on these assessments, we provide for an
inventory valuation allowance in the period in which the requirement is idenafied. If our actual experience is greater
than our assumptions we will record additional expenses in that period.

We have made, are in the process of making and/or will scale-up and make commercial quantities of certain
of our product candidates prior to the date we anticipate that such products will receive final EU regulatory or
FDA marketing approval (i.e., pre-launch inventories). The scale-up and commercial production of pre-launch
inventories involves the risk that such products may not be approved for marketing by the governmental agencies
on a imely basis, or ever. This risk notwithstanding, we plan to continue to scale-up and build pre-launch inventories
of certain products that have not yet received tinal governmental approval. As of December 25,2004, we had
approximately $2.3 million of inventories, primarily work-in-process, related to StaphVAX and Nabi-HB
Intravenous pending final regulatory approval.
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We record pre-launch inventory once the product has attained a stage in the development process of having
been subject to a Phase III clinical trial or its equivalent or a MAA or BLA filing. Further, the product must have
a well-characterized manufacturing process. In addidon, we must have an internal sales forecast that includes an
assessment whereby anticipated future sales exceed the manufacturing costs plus the expected cost to distribute
the product. Finally, product stability data must exist so that we can assert that capitalized inventory is anticipated
to be sold, based on the sales projections noted above, prior to anticipated expiration of product shelf life.

If approval for these product candidates is not received, or approval is not received timely compared to our
estimates for product shelf life, we will write the related amounts of pre-launch inventory off in the period of that
determination. If we were required to write off the $2.3 million recorded as pre-launch inventory at December 25,2004,
this amount would be considered by us to be material to our operating results.

INCOME TAXES

We follow Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
requires, among other things, recognition of future tax benefits and liabilities measured at enacted rates attribut-
able to temporary differences between financial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and to tax
net operating loss carryforwards to the extent that realization of these benefits is more likely than not. We
periodically evaluate the realizability of our net deferred tax assets. As a result of licensing the right to market
StaphVAX and PhosLo in the EU to one of our ex-U.S. subsidiaries and in recognition of the value of the product
rights developed and acquired by us, we realized a gain for U.S. tax reporting purposes of approximately
$55 million. Although we recognized a consolidated operating loss on a GAAP basis during the 2004, we
nevertheless incurred income tax expense due to the U.S. taxable gain arising from licenses of these product rights
to our non-U.S. subsidiary. We anticipate realizing deferred tax assets from net operating loss carryforwards incurred
in prior periods and the exercise of employee stock options to offset this income tax expense. As a result, we do
not anticipate making a U.S. income tax payment for 2004. For 2004, the provision for income taxes reflected a
provision of $10.4 million due to the recognition of this gain. We determined that we do not require a valuation
allowance for research and development tax credits and net operating losses as a result of our European strategy
and our determination that it is more likely than not that this strategy will result in realization of these tax assets.
We have recorded $4.4 million as a tax contingency reserve against certain of our deferred tax assets that is included
in other long-term liabilities.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In December 2004, the FASB announced that SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, which requires all compa-
nies to measure compensation cost for all share-based payments (including employee stock options) at fair value,
is effective for public companies for interim or annual periods beginning after June 15,2005. SFAS 123R requires
companies to expense the fair value of all stock options that have future vesting provisions, are modified, or are
newly granted beginning on the grant date of such options. We believe implementation of SFAS No. 123R will
be material to our reported results of operations. Using the Black-Scholes model for valuating stock options under
FAS 148 would resultin expense for options granted in prior years in the amount of $9.0 million, $9.4 million and
$7.3 million for the years ending in 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

In December 2004, the FASB announced that SFAS 151, Inventory Costs is effectve for inventory costs incurred
during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. This statement clarifies the accounting for abnormal amounts
of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). This Statement requires that those
items be recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of “so abnormal]as
defined in Accounting Principal Board 43. In addition, this Statement requires that allocation of fixed production
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overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. We will evaluate
the requirements of the final standard to determine the impact on our financial condition, results of operations
or cash flows.

MANAGEMENT'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting,
as such term is defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-13(f). Under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we conducted an evaluation of
the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting based on the framework in Internal Control—
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Allinternal control systems, no matter how well designed, have inherent limitadions. Therefore, even those sys-
tems determined effective could provide only reasonable assurance with respect to financial statement preparation
and presentadon.

An internal control significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that
adversely affects the company’s ability to initate, authorize, record, process, or report external financial data reliably
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that
a misstatement of the company’s annual or interim financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not
be prevented or detected. An internal control material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of
significant deficiencies, that results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual
or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected.

Our management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 25, 2004, and this assessment identified one material weakness in our internal control over financial
reporting as of that date related to the controls that ensure that the selecton and approval of amortization periods
for certain intangible assets is in accordance with SFAS No. 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets for the
periods ended December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002. As a result of this assessment, we have restated our
financial statements. Refer to footote 17 of the Consolidated financial statements.

Based on our evaluadon under the framework in Internal Control, Integrated Framework, our management
concluded that our internal control over financial reporting was not effective as of December 25, 2004.

Our management’s assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of
December 25, 2004 has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm,
as stated in their report which is included herein.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

There has been no change in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our fiscal quarter
ended December 23, 2004 that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect our internal
control over financial reporting. During the first quarter of 2003, management implemented steps to address the
material weakness more fully described below.

REMEDIATION STEPS TO ADDRESS MATERIAL WEAKNESS
We have implemented additional review procedures to ensure that upon entry into an agreement under which we
create a manufacruring right intangible asset we will select and approve an amortization period beginning

immediately from the point we generate a direct or indirect economic benefit consistent with the provisions of
SFAS No. 142 Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.
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TITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We do not engage in trading market risk sensitive instruments or purchasing hedging instruments or “other than
trading” instruments that are likely to expose us to significant market risk, whether interest rate, foreign currency
exchange, commodity price or equity price risk.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

We have two wholly owned Irish subsidiaries and one Luxembourg subsidiary. During the year ended
December 25, 2004, we did not record any sales by our foreign subsidiaries. Twa of our subsidiaries incurred expenses
during this period, primarily relating to our initial activides to obtain regulatory approval in the EU for our pipeline
products and products that we currently market in the U.S. If the U.S. dollar weakens relative to a foreign currency,
any losses generated in the foreign currency will, in effect, increase when converted into U.S. dollars and vice versa.
We do not speculate in the foreign exchange market and do not manage exposures that arise in the normal course
of business related to fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates by entering into offsetting positions through
the use of foreign exchange forward contracts. We also do not engage in derivative activides.

Interest Rate Risk

At December 25, 2004, we had cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities in the amount of $94.8 million
and $8.4 million, respectively. In addition, we had notes payable for the acquisition of PhosLo of $23.3 million,
net of imputed discount and capital lease obligations of $0.6 million.

Cash equivalents consist of money market funds and qualified purchaser funds with maturities of three months
or less placed with major financial institutions. Marketable securities consist of auction rate securities placed with
major financial institutions.

Our exposure to market risk relates to our cash and investments and to our borrowings. We maintain an
investment portfolio of money market funds, qualified purchaser funds, and auction rate securities. The securities
in our investment portfolio are not leveraged, and are, due to their very short-term nature, subject to minimal
interest rate risk. We currently do not hedge interest rate exposure. Because of the short-term maturities of our
investments, we do not believe that a change in market rates would have a significant negative impact on the value
of our investment portfolio. The notes payable related to the PhosLo acquisition were discounted at our estimated
interest rate under our credit facility on August 4, 2003, the date of the closing agreement.

The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while at the same dme maximizing
vields without significantly increasing risk. To achieve this objective, we invest our excess cash in debt instruments
of the U.S. Government and its agencies, bank obligatons, repurchase agreements and high-quality corporate issuers,
and, by policy, restrict our exposure to any single corporate issuer by imposing concentration limits. To minimize
the exposure due to adverse shifts in interest rates, we maintain investments at an average maturity of generally
less than one month. The table below presents the principal amount and the weighted-average interest rates of
our investment and debt portfolio:

Dollars in Mitlions Fair Value at December 23, 2004
Assets:
Cash equivalents $94.8
Marketable securities 8.4
Average interest rate 1.4%
Liabilides:
Notes payable and capital lease obligations $23.9
Average interest rate 4.9%
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals:

‘We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals as of December 25, 2004
and December 27, 2003, and the related consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders’ equity,
and cash flows for each of the three vears in the period ended December 25, 2004. Our audits also included the
financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Ttem 15(a). These financial statements and schedule are the
responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial state-
ments and schedule based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals at December 25, 2004 and December 27, 2003, and the consolidated
results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 25, 2004 in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States. Also, in our opinion, the related
financial statement schedule referred to above, when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken
as a whole, presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein.

As discussed in note 17, the Company’s December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002 financial statements referred
to above have been restated for the correction of an error.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals’ internal control over financial reporting as of
December 25, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission and our report dated March 8, 2005 expressed
an unqualified opinion on management’s assessment and an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over financial reporting.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants
West Palim Beach, Florida
March 8, 2003
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals:

We have audited management’s assessment, included in the accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal
Control Over Financial Reporting, that Nabi Biopharmaceutdcals did not maintain effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 25, 2004, because of the effect of ineffectve controls over the Company’s account-
ing for amortization expense related to certain intangible assets for the periods ending December 27, 2003 and
December 28,2002, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Frameworlk issued by the Committee
of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSQO criteria). Nabi Biopharmaceuticals’ management
is responsible for maintaining effective internal contro! over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effective-
ness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment
and an opinion on the effectiveness of the company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in ali material respects. Our audit included obtaining
an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s assessment, testing and eval-
uating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consid-
ered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accor-
dance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’ internal control over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely
detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposttion of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inad-
equate because of changes in condidons, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorare.

A material weakness is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that results in more than a remote
likelihood that a material misstatement of the annual or interim financial statements will not be prevented or detected.
The following material weakness has been idendfied and included in management’ assessment. Certain intangible assets
related to manufacturing rights were not being properly amortized in accordance with SFAS No. 142 Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. As a result, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals restated its financial staterments for the years ended December 27, 2003
and December 28, 2002 for the effects of amortizing intangible manufacturing rights, This material weakness was
considered in determining the nature, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our audit of the December 25, 2004
financial statements, and this report does not affect our report dated March 8, 2005 on those financial statements.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that Nabi Biopharmaceuticals did not maintain effective internal con-
trol over financial reporting as of December 25, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on the COSO con-
trol criteria. Also, in our opinion, because of the effect of the material weakness described above on the achievement
of the objectives of the control criteria, Nabi Biopharmaceuticals has not maintained effective internal control over finan-
cial reporting as of December 23, 2004, based on the COSO control critetia.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP
Certified Public Accountants
West Palm Beach, Florida
March 8, 2005
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

Amounts in Thousands, Except Share and Per Share Data

December 25, 2004

December 27,2003

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 94,759 $ 115,756
Marketable securities 8,350 -
Restricted cash 672 689
Trade accounts receivable, net 32,405 37,062
Inventories, net 20,175 23,483
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 6,227 4,971
Total current assets 162,588 181,961
Property, plant and equipment, net 115,406 101,831
Other assets:
Intangible assets, net 89,728 94,991
Orther, net 449 8,518
Total assets $368,171 $ 387,301
LTABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS” EQUITY
Current liabilites:
Trade accounts payable § 21,943 § 10874
Accrued expenses 32,290 23,956
Notes payable and capital lease obligations 10,173 4,226
Total current liabilities 64,406 39,056
Notes payable and capital lease obligations 13,671 23,167
Other liabilities 5,773 5,762
Total habilities 83,850 67,985
Stockholders’ equity:
Convertble preferred stock, par value $.10 per share:

5,000 shares authorized; no shares outstanding - -
Common stock, par value $.10 per share: 125,000,000

and 75,000,000 shares authorized, respectively;

59,428,941 and 57,723,019 shares issued, respectively 5,943 5,772
Capiral in excess of par value 313,494 297,910
Treasury stock, 803,811 and 800,315 shares,

respectively, at cost (5,297) (5,240)
(Accumulated deficig) retained earnings (29,516) 20,874
Other accumulated comprehensive Joss (303) ~

Total stockholders’ equity 284,321 319,316

Total liabilides and stockholders’ equity $368,171 $ 387,301

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended

December 25, 2004

Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data

December 27, 2003

(as restated)

December 28, 2002

(as restated)

Sales $179,763 $176,570 $ 195,966
Costs and expenses:
Costs of products sold, excluding amortizaton
of intangible assets 76,345 81,354 119,170
Rayalty expense 17,569 18,387 12,883
Gross margin, excluding amortization of
intangible assets 85,849 76,829 63,913
Selling, general and administrative expense 55,286 43,867 38,380
Research and development expense 61,003 29,040 21,096
Amortization of intangible assets 8,673 5,393 1,116
Other operating expenses, principally freight 521 477 583
Write-off of manufacturing right - 9,735 -
Operating (loss) income (39,634) (11,683) 2,738
Interest income 1,628 614 1,287
Interest expense {2,199) (1,350) (2,130)
Other income (expenses), net 213 204 (157)
(Loss) income before (provision) benefit for income taxes (39,992) (12,215) 1,738
{Provision) benefit for income raxes {10,398) 6,149 (264)
Net (loss) income $ (50,390) $ (6,066) § 1474
Basic (loss) earnings per share $ (0.86) $ (014 $§ 004
Diluted (loss) earnings per share $ (0.86) $ (014 $ 004
Basic weighted average shares outstanding 58,800 42,888 38,670
Diluted weighted average shares outstanding 58,800 42,888 39,641

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(as restated)

Retained Other
Common Capital in Earnings  accumulated Total
Common Stock Stack Warrants Excess of Treasury Stock (Accumulated comprehensive  Stackholders’
In Thousands Shares Amount Shares  Amount Par Value Shares Amount Deficit) loss Equity
Balance at December 29,2001 38,445 $3,845 133§ - $158,687 174 S (977) S 25,466 $ - $187,011
Stock options exercised 317 32 - - 1,199 - - - - 1,231
Delivery of shares upon exercise
of options 60 6 - - 208 (40) (246) - - 32)
Compensation expense related
to modified stock options ~ - ~ - (13) - - - - (13)
Adjustment relating to tax effect
from stock options exercised
in 2001 - - - - (1,133) ~ - ~ - (1,133)
Net income for the year - - - - - - - 1,474 - 1,474
Stock issued under Employee
Stock Purchase Plan 7 12 - - 572 - Co- - - 584
Purchase of treasury stock at cost - - - - - 17 (917) - - (gl 7)
Directors fees paid in stock 8 - - - 48 - - - ~ 48
Balance at December 28,2002 38,947 3,895 133 - 159,568 (386) (2,140) 26,940 ~ 188,263
Stock options exercised 1,165 117 - - 5,288 - - - - 5,405

Delivery of shares upon exercise
of options 644 64 - - 2,586 (414 (3,100) - - (450)
Compensation expense related

to modified stock options - - - ~ 350 ~ - - - 350
Common shares issued for

product acquisition 1,500 150 ~ - 8,230 - - - - §,400
Net loss for the year - - ~ - - - - (6,066) - (6,066)

uance of common stock in private
Issuance of tock in privat
placement and underwritten

offering, net of issuance costs 15,352 1,536 - - 121,188 - - - - 122,724
Stock issued under Employee
Stock Purchase Plan 112 11 - - 657 - - - - 668
Directors fees paid in stock 3 - - - 22 - - - - 22
Balance at December 27,2003 57,723 5,773 “133 - 297,909 (800) (5,240) 20,874 -~ 319316
Comprehensive lass
Net loss for the vear - - ~ - - - - (50,390) - (50,390
Currency translation
adjustment - - - - - - - - (303) (303)
Comprehensive loss - - - - - - - - (50,693)
Stock options exercised 1,534 153 - ~ 9,667 -~ - - - 9,820
Delivery of shares upon exercise
of options 6 1 -~ - 44 G} (37 - - (12)
Compensation expense telated
o modified stock options - - - - 150 - - - - 150
Stock issued under Employee
Stock Purchase Plan 91 9 - - 950 - - - - 9359
Tax benefit of stock option exercises - - - - 4,761 - - - - 4,761
Warrants exercised 74 7 (133) - @ - - - - -
Directors fees paid in stock 1 ~ - - 20 - - - - 20
Balance at December 25,2004 59429  §$35,943 - $ - 3313494 804y $(,297)y  $(29,516) $(303) $284,321

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended

December 25, 2004 December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002
Dollars in Thousands (as restated) (as restated)
Cash flow from operating activities:
Net (loss) income $ (50,390) $ (6,066) § 1,474
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income to
net cash provided by Operating activides:
Depreciation and amortization 18,178 15,854 11,009
Write-off of manufacturing right - 9,735 -
Loan origination fees 539 232 400
Interest expense on non-interest bearing notes 1,338 589 -
Provision for doubtful accounts 428 39 751
Provision for slow moving or obsolete inventory 3,950 1,044 169
Non-cash compensation 1,129 1,040 619
Deferred income taxes 4,714 (5,753) 131
Tax benefit of stock option exercises 4,761 - -
Write-off of fixed assets 259 23 269
Other, primarily foreign currency translation (422 - -
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts receivable 4,229 (775) (1,037)
Inventories (685) (4,983) (1,419)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 2,323 170 2,098
Other assets 88 1,167 (33)
Income taxes payable 262 - -
Accounts pavable and accrued expenses 18,037 4,774) (3,511
‘Total adjustments 59,128 13,608 9,446
Net cash provided by operating activities 8,738 7,542 10,920
Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchases of marketable securities (83,950) ~ (86,350)
Proceeds from sales of marketable securites 75,600 - 86,350
Proceeds from sale of assets, net of closing costs 179 - -
Capital expenditures (22,633) (8,050) (6,021}
Expenditures for Aloprim (750) - -
Expenditures for other assets — PhosLo - (61,259) -
Expenditures for other assets — Dow - (2,024) 6,136)
Expenditures for other assets - Cambrex Bio Science (2,668) (323) -
Net cash used in investing activities (34,222 (71,652) (12,157)
Cash flow from financing activides:
Repayments of notes payable, PhosLo acquisition (3,333) - -
Redemption of Convertible Subordinated Debt - - (78,500)
Borrowings of term debt - 10,000 -
Repayments of term debt - (10,000) -
Purchase of treasury stock - - (917)
Proceeds from exercise of employee stock options 9,820 5,403 1,199
Issuance of common stock, net - 122,724 -
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 4,487 128,129 (78,218)
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (20,997) 64,019 (79,455
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 115,756 31,737 131,192
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 94,759 $ 115,756 $ 51,737

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 BUSINESS AND ORGANIZATION

We leverage our experience and knowledge in powering the immune system to develop and market products that
fight serious medical conditions. We are poised to capture the large, commercial opportunities in our four core
business areas: Gram-positive bacterial infections; hepatitis; kidney disease (nephrology); and nicotine addiction.
We have four products on the market today and a number of products in various stages of clinical and preclinical
development. We invest the gross margins we earn from sales of our marketed products toward funding the devel-
opment of our product pipeline.

We are incorporated in Delaware. Our U.S. operations are headquartered in Boca Raton, Florida and our
European offices are located in Bray, Ireland; we maintain our commercial and manufacturing operations in
Boca Raton, Florida and research and development operations in Rockville, Maryland. In addidon to our bio-
pharmaceutical business, we also collect specialty and non-specific antibodies for use in our products and sell our
excess production to pharmaceutical and diagnostic customers for the subsequent manufacture of their products.

NOTE 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals and our wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant inter-company accounts and transactions are eliminated in consolidation.

Accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S.
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilicies
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts
of sales and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of presentation

We have restated our balance sheet as of December 28, 2002 and our statements of operations, changes in stock-
holders” equity and cash flows for the years ended December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002. In addition,
certain items in the 2003 and 2002 consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the current
year’s presentauon.

Revenue recognition

Our primary customers for biopharmaceutical products are pharmaceutical wholesalers. In accordance with our
revenue recognition policy, revenue from biopharmaceutical product sales is recognized when title and risk of loss
are transferred to the customer. Reported sales are net of estimated customer prompt pay discounts, contractual
allowances in accordance with managed care agreements or chargebacks, government payer rebates, customer returns
of PhosLo and other wholesaler fees. Our policy regarding sales to customers is that we do not recognize revenue
from, or the cost of, such sales where we believe the customer has more than a demonstrably reasonable level of
inventory. We make this assessment based on historical demand, historical customer ordering patterns for purchases
and estimated inventory levels. If our actual experience were greater than our assumptions we would then adjust
such allowances accordingly.

We estimate allowances for revenue dilution items using a combination of information received from third
parties, including market data, inventory reports from our major U.S. wholesaler customers, historical information
and analysis that we perform. The key assumpuons used to arrive at our best estimate of revenue diluton reserves
are estimated customer inventory levels, contractual prices and related rerms. Our estimates of inventory at whole-
saler customers and in the distribution channels are subject to the inherent limitations of estimates that rely on
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third-party data, as certain third-party information may itself rely on estimates, and reflect other limitations.
Provisions for estimated rebates and other allowances, such as discounts, promotional and other credits are estimated
based on historical payment experience, historical relationship to revenues, estimated customer inventory levels
and contract terms and actual discounts offered. We believe that such provisions are determinable due to the
limited number of assumptions involved and the consistency of historical experience. Provisions for chargebacks
involve more subjective judgments and are more complex in nature. These provisions are discussed in further
detail below.

Chargebacks - The provision for chargebacks is a significant and complex estimate used in the recognition of
revenue. We market products directly to wholesalers, distributors and homecare companies. We also market prod-
ucts indirectly to group purchasing organizations, managed care organizations, physician practice management
groups and hospitals, collectively referred to as “indirect customers.” We enter into agreements with indirect cus-
tomers to establish contract pricing for certain products. The indirect customers then select wholesalers from which
to actually purchase the products at these contracted prices. Under this arrangement, we will provide credit to the
wholesaler for any difference between the contracted price with the indirect party and the wholesaler’s invoice price.
Such credit is called a chargeback. The provision for chargebacks is based on our historical chargeback experience
and estimated wholesaler inventory levels, as well as expected sell-through levels by our wholesale customers to
indirect customers. Our estimates of inventory at wholesale customers and in the distribution channels are sub-
ject to the inherent limitations of estmates that rely on third-party data, as certain third-party information may
itself rely on estimates, and reflect other limitations. We continually monitor our provision for chargebacks and
make adjustments when we believe that actual chargebacks may differ from established reserves.

Research and development expense

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Amounts payable to third parties under collaborative
product development agreements are recorded at the earlier of the milestone achievement or as payments become
contractually due. Funding from third party grants are applied directy to related expenses. For the years ended
December 25, 2004, December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002, we received grants from the National Institute
on Drug Addition, or NIDA, in the amounts of $0.3 million, $1.3 million, and $1.2 million, respectvely and
have recorded the funding as a reduction of Research and Development expense.

Advertising expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred as set forth in Statement of Position 93-7, Reporting on Advertsing
Costs. Advertising expenses for the years ended December 25,2004, December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002
amounted to $3.8 million, $3.3 million and $3.4 million, respectively.

Shipping and Handling Cosrts

‘We report costs related to the shipment of our product as part of other operating expenses, principally freight.
We incurred $0.5 million, $0.5 million, and $0.6 million in the years ended December 25, 2004, December 27, 2003
and December 28, 2002, respectively.

Comprehensive Loss

We follow SFAS No. 130, Reporting Comprehensive Income, which computes comprehensive income as the total
of net income and all other changes in shareholders’ equity. For the year ended December 25, 2004, comprehensive
loss included our net loss and the effect of foreign currency translation adjustments. As of December 25, 2004,
$0.3 million of foreign currency loss was included on our balance sheet in addition to net loss. The foreign currency
loss primarily related to intercompany balances we have classified as intercompany debt. It is our intent for the
amounts paid on behalf of our subsidiaries to be repaid once we begin generating revenue in the markets the
subsidiaries operate in, primarily Europe.
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(Loss) earnings per share

Basic (Joss) earnings per share are computed by dividing consolidated net (loss) earnings by the weighted average
number of common shares outstanding during the year. Diluted earnings per share are computed by dividing
consolidated net earnings by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding, and the impact of all
potendal dilutive comumon shares, primarily stock options. The dilutive impact of stock options is determined by
applying the treasury stock method. In 2004 and 2003, we did not apply this method as there would have been an
ant-dilutive effect on earnings per share. There were 2,101,279 and 1,172,833 potential dilutive shares excluded
in the calculation of diluted weighted average shares outstanding in 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Financial instruments

The carrying amounts of financial instruments including cash equivalents, short-term investments, accounts
receivable and accounts payable approximated fair value as of December 25, 2004 and December 27, 2003, because
of the relatively short-term maturity of these instruments. Total debt and capital leases obligations were $23.9 million
as of December 25, 2004 and $27.4 million as of December 27, 2003. The carrying value of long-term debr at
December 25,2004 is consistent with its estimated fair value. Information regarding long-term debt is included
in Note 11,

Cash and cash equivalencs
Cash equivalents consist of money market funds and qualified purchaser funds with maturities of three months
or less placed with major financial institutions.

Marketable securities

Short-term investments in marketable debt securities consist of auction rate securities with final marurities longer
than three years, but with interest rate auctions occurring every 28 or 35 days. These short-term marketable
securities consist primarily of taxable municipal bonds, corporate bonds, government agency securities and
commercial paper. It is our intent to maintain a liquid portfolio to take advantage of investment opportunities;
therefore, these securities are deemed short-term, are classified as available for sale securities and are recorded at
market value using the specific identification method. Realized gains and losses are included in “Other income”
in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations using the specific identification method. Unrealized
gains and losses are included in “Other comprehensive income” in the accompanying consolidated balance sheet
and consolidated statement of changes in stockholders’ equity.

Trade Accounts Receivable

We sell a significant portion of our products through pharmaceutical wholesalers and distributors and to major
pharmaceutical companies and, as a result, maintain individually significant receivable balances with major
customers. Those customers include McKesson Drug Co., AmerisourceBergen, Cardinal Health, Inc. and Bayer
Corporation, representing 31%, 28% 12% and 9% of our total accounts receivable, respectively at December 25, 2004
If the financial condition or operations of these customers were to deteriorate, our results could be adversely affected.
Credit terms to these customers generally range from 30 to 60 days. We evaluate and monitor the credit worthiness
of each customer on a case-by-case basis and do not require collateral on specific accounts receivable. Allowances
are maintained for potendal credit losses. Accounts receivable allowances are recorded in the segment operating
results in which the applicable sale was originally reported.
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Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market with cost determined on the first-in first-out or FIFO method.
The scale-up and commercial production of pre-launch inventories involves the risk that such products may
not be approved for marketing by the governmental agencies on a timely basis, or ever. This risk notwithstanding,
we plan to continue to scale-up and build pre-launch inventories of certain products that have not yet received
final governmental approval. As of December 25, 2004, we had approximately $2.3 million of inventories, primarily
work-in-process, related to StaphVAX and Nabi-HB Intravenous, pending final regulatory approval.

We record pre-launch inventory once the product has attained a stage in the development process of having
been subject to a Phase I clinical trial, or its equivalent, or a MAA or BLA filing. Further, the product must have
a well-characterized manufacturing process. In addition, we must have an internal sales forecast that includes an
assessment whereby anticipated future sales exceed the manufacturing costs plus the expected cost to distribute
the product. Finally, product stability data must exist so that we can assert that capitalized inventory is anticipated
to be sold, based on the sales projections noted above, prior to anticipated expiration of product shelf life.

1f approval for these product candidates is not received, or approval is not received timely compared to our
estimates for product shelf life, we will write-off the related amounts of pre-launch inventory in the period of
that determination. If we were required to write off the $2.3 million recorded as pre-launch inventory at
December 25, 2004, this amount would be considered by us to be material to our operating results.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost. Depreciation is generally recognized on the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

Depreciation for certain specialized production equipment in our Boca Raton, Florida biopharmaceutical
manufacturing facility is calculated over its remaining useful life using the units-of-production method. In quarters
of lower producton, we record a minimum of 60% of the depreciation that would have otherwise been recorded
had we used the straight-line method. We evaluate the remaining life and recoverability of this equipment period-
ically based on the appropriate facts and circumstances.

Depreciable lives of property and equipment are as follows:

Asset Inidal Useful Life
Buildings 39 years
Building systems 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 8 years
Information systems 3~ 7 years
Machinery and equipment 3 — 8 years
Leasehold improvements and capital Jeases Lesser of lease term or economic life
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Intangible assets

Intangible assets represent the fair values of certain assets acquired in product acquisitions including trademarks
and trademark registrations and the cost to acquire the right to use manufacturing capacity at our contract manufac-
turer’s facility for StaphVAX in future periods. The carrying costs of intangible assets are amortized ratably from
the date acquired over periods ranging from 3 to 25.

The estimated remaining useful lives of intangible assets are as follows:

Asset Estimated Remaining Useful Life
PhosLo trademark/tradename 16.3 years
PhosLo tablet patent 2.3 years
Phosl.o gelcap patent 16.3 years
PhosLo customer relationships 3.6 years
PhosLo covenant not to compete 13.6 years
Manufacturing right 8.8 years
Other intangible assets 1.0 to 12.8 years

PhosLo Intangibles — On August 4, 2003, we acquired the worldwide rights to PhosLo. Under the terms of the
acquisition agreement we purchased patent rights, trade secrets, the PhosLo wrademarks, regulatory approvals and
licenses, certain customer and regulatory data and finished product inventory. All assets purchased, except for
inventory, have been recorded at their estimared fair value, adjusted by a pro rata portion of the excess of purchase
price, and are included in intangible assets.

The trademark/tradenames and gelcap patent useful lives are estimated as the remaining patent life of the
gelcap patent based on our assessiment of the market for phosphate binders to treat hyperphosphatemia in end stage
renal failure patients including our assessment of competitive therapies, forecasted growth in the number of patients
and trends in patient care. The tablet patent’s useful life is estimated as the remaining patent life for the tablet patent
in the U.S. based on the direct competitive benefits derived from the patent. The covenant not-to-compete is based
on the seller’s contracrual agreement not to compete directly with PhosLo in dialysis markets for a period of
15 years’ We have established a useful life of § years for customer relationships based on our review of the tme
that would be required to establish markets and customer relationships within the nephrology and dialysis market
place. In future periods, if we assess that circumstances have resulted in changes to the carrying value of the intan-
gible assets or their estimated useful life, we will record those changes in the period of that assessment.

Manufacturing Right Intangible - In October 2003, we entered into a contract manufacturing agreement with
Cambrex Bio Science. Under our agreement with Cambrex Bio Science, at December 25, 2004 we are committed
to make future payments of at least $0.2 million including costs to acquire the rights to commercial manufacturing
capacity for StaphVAX vaccine. We have commenced amortization of the Manufacturing Right. Due to StaphVAX
being a new product and the exact period of future economic benefit that will be derived from the sale of StaphVAX
being difficult to determine, we have elected to amortize the Manufacturing Right on a straight-line basis over
the extended term of our contract manufacturing agreement with Cambrex Bio Science, which may be extended,
at our option, through October 2013. At December 25,2004, we have capitalized $2.9 million, net as a Manufacturing
Right on our balance sheet. If we determine that the manufacture of StaphVAX will not occur at Cambrex Bio
Science’s facility, or we assess that circumstances have resulted in changes to the carrying value of the intangible
asset, we will write off this Manufacturing Right in the period of that determination.
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Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Pursuant to the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the
Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, we review long-lived assets for impairment at least annually, or
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be
fully recoverable. If this review reveals indications of impairment, as generally determined based on estimated
undiscounted cash flows, the carrying amount of the related long-lived assets are adjusted to fair value.

Stock-Based Compensation
We grant stock options for a fixed number of common shares to employees and directors from time to time. We account
for employee stock options using the intrinsic value method as prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25, Accounting for
Stock Issued to Employees, which provides that no compensation expense is recognized for stock option grants when
the exercise price of the options equals, or is greater than, the market value of the underlying stock on the date of
grant. Accordingly, we did not recognize any compensation cost during each of the years ended December 25, 2004,
December 27,2003 and December 28, 2002 for stock-based employee awards at the market price. We did recognize
expense related to modification of stock option terms related to the retirement of certain employees. Refer to Note
18. We follow the disclosure provisions of SFAS No. 123, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation (SFAS 123),
as amended by SFAS No. 148, Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure—an
amendment of FASB Staterent No. 123 (SFAS 148), for stock options issued to non-employees.

The effect of applying the fair value method prescribed by SFAS 123 to our options would have us recordmg
the following pro forma net (loss) income and net (loss) income per share amounts:

For the Years Ended
December 25, 2004 December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002
Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data (as restated) (as restated)
Net (loss) income:
As reported $ (50,390) $ (6,066) $ 1,474

Add: Stock-based employee compensation

expense included in reported net (loss)

income, net of tax 150 350 13
Deduct: Total stock-based employee ‘

compensation expense determined under

fair value based method, net of tax 4,567) (3,977) (5,984)

Pro forma $ (54,807) $(9,693) $ (4,497)
Basic (loss) earnings per share:

As reported $  (0.86) $ (0.19) $ 0.04

Net compensation expense, net of tax {0.08) (0.08) (0.1%)

Pro forma $ (099 $ (0.22) $ (0.11)
Diluted (loss) earnings per share:

As reported $ (0.86) $ (0.14) $ 0.04

Net compensation expense, net of tax (0.08) (0.08) 0.15)

Pro forma $ (0.99) $ (0.22) $ (0.11)

Pro forma information regarding net income or loss is required by SFAS 123 and has been determined as if we
had accounted for our employee stock options under the fair value method of that statement. The fair vatue of
options granted was estimated at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model with the following
assumptions: expected term of two to five years; expected volatility of 60 — 67%; and expected risk-free interest
rates of 2.73 — 4.15%. The weighted-average estimated fair value of options granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002
was $8.31, $4.45 and $5.76, respectively.
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Income Taxes

We follow Statement of Financial Accounting Standards, or SFAS No. 109, Accounting for Income Taxes, which
requires, among other things, recognition of furure tax benefits and liabilities measured at enacted rates attributable
to temporary differences between financial statement and income tax bases of assets and liabilities and to tax net
operating loss carryforwards to the extent that realization of these benefits is more likely than not. We periodically
evaluate the realizability of our net deferred tax assets. As a result of licensing the right to market StaphVAX and
PhosLo in the EU to one of our ex-U.S. subsidiaries and in recognition of the value of the product rights
developed and acquired by us, we realized a gain for U.S. tax reporting purposes of approximately $55 million.
Although we recognized a consolidated operating loss on accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S., or
GAAP, basis during 2004, we nevertheless incurred income tax expense due to the U.S. taxable gain arising from
the licensing of these product rights to our non-U.S. subsidiary. We anticipate realizing deferred tax assets from
net operating loss carryforwards incurred in prior periods and the exercise of employee stock options to offset this
income tax expense. As a result, we do not anticipate making a U.S. income tax payment for 2004. For 2004, the
provision for income taxes reflected a provision of $10.4 million due to the recognition of this gain. We determined
that we do not require a valuation allowance for research and development tax credits and net operating losses as
a result of our European strategy and our determination that it is more likely than not that this strategy will result
in realizadon of these tax assets. Our policy is to establish accruals for tax contingencies that may arise in future years
as a result of examination by tax authorities, despite our belief that our tax return positions are correct. Our tax accruals
are analyzed periodically and adjustments are made as events occur to warrant such adjustment.

Foreign Currency Translation

In accordance with SFAS No. 52, Foreign Currency Translation, assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated into U.S. dollars at the rate of exchange at the balance sheet date, while revenue and expenses
are translated at the weighted average rates prevailing during the respective years. Components of stockholders’
equity are translated at historical rates. Translation adjustments are deferred in accumulated other comprehensive
loss, which is a separate component of stockholders’ equity. Our foreign subsidiaries use the Euro and U.S. dollar
as their functional currencies. Gains and losses resulting from changes in exchange rates from year to year are
included in the accompanying consolidated statements of operations as other operating expenses.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In December 2004, the FASB announced that SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment, which requires all companies
to measure compensation cost for all share-based payments (including employee stock options) at fair value, is
effective for public companies for interim or annual periods beginning after June 15, 2005. SFAS 123R requires
companies to expense the fair value of all stock options that have future vesting provisions, are modified, or are newly
granted beginning on the grant date of such options. We believe implementation of SFAS No. 123R will be material
to our reported results of operations. Using the Black-Scholes model for valuing stock options under SFAS No. 123R
would result in pre-tax expense for options granted in prior years in the amount of $9.0 million, $9.4 million and
$7.3 million for the years ending mn 20053, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

In December 2004, the FASB announced that SFAS No. 151, Inventory Costs, is effective for inventory costs
incurred during fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2005. This statement clarifies the accounting for abnormal
amounts of idle facility expense, freight, handling costs, and wasted material (spoilage). This Statement requires
that those items be recognized as current-period charges regardless of whether they meet the criterion of “so abnor-
mal” as defined in Accounting Principal Board 43. In addition, this Statement requires that allocation of fixed
productdon overheads to the costs of conversion be based on the normal capacity of the production facilities. We
will evaluate the requirements of the final standard to determine the impact on our financial condition, results of
operations or cash flows.
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NOTE 3

Trade accounts receivable are composed of the following:

Doltars in Thousands

TRADE ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

December 25, 2004

i

December 27, 2003

Trade accounts receivable $32,838 . "$37,708
Allowance for doubtful accounts (433) (646)

Total $32,405 $ 37,062
NOTE 4 INVENTORIES, NET

The components of inventories, net are as follows:

Dollars in Thousands

December 25, 2004

December 27,2003

Finished goods $11,475 $12,746
Work in process 7,826 9,955
Raw marterials 874 782

Total $20,175 $ 23,483

Work in process inventory at December 25, 2004 and December 27, 2003 primarily consisted of Nabi-HB for which
manufacture was in process or that was awaiting release to the market from the U.S. Food and Drug Administration,
or FDA, in accordance with the normal course of our business. In addition, we have made, are in the process of
making and/or will scale-up and make commercial quantities of certain of our product candidates prior to the
date we anticipate that such products will receive final EU regulatory or FDA marketing approval (i.e., pre-launch
inventories). The scale-up and commercial production of pre-launch inventories involves the risk that such products
may not be approved for marketing by the governmental agencies on a timely basis, or ever. This risk
notwithstanding, we plan to continue to scale-up and build pre-launch inventories of certain products that have
not yet received final governmental approval. As of December 25, 2004, we had approximately $2.3 million of
inventories of StaphVAX and Nabi-HB Intravenous, pending final approval.

We record pre-launch inventory once the product has attained a stage in the development process of having
been subject to a Phase Il clinical trial or its equivalent MAA or a BLA filing, and has a well characterized manufac-
turing process. In addition, we must have an internal sales forecast that includes an assessment that sales will exceed
the manufacturing costs plus the expected cost to distribute the product. Finally, product stability data must exist
so that we can assert that capitalized inventory is anticipated to be sold, based on the sales projections noted above,
prior to anticipated expiradon of a product shelf life.

If approval for these product candidates is not received, or approval is not received timely compared to our
estimates for product shelf life, we will write-off the related amounts of pre-launch inventory in the period of that
determination, If we were required to write-off the $2.3 million recorded as pre-launch inventory at December 25,2004,
this amount would be considered by us to be material to our 2004 operating results.
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NOTE 3 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Property, plant and equipment and related allowances for depreciation are summarized below:

Dollars in Thousands December 25, 2004 December 27, 2003
Informaton systems $ 25,065 § 23334
Leasehold improvements 8,064 7,825
Machinery and equipment 51,926 48,947
Land and buildings 50,099 45,188
Building systems 8,415 8,039
Furniture and fixrures 3,332 3,191
Capital leased property 674 -
Constructdon in progress 19,170 7,459
Property, plant and equipment, gross 166,745 142,177
Less accumulated depreciation (51,339 (42,152)
Property, plant and equipment, net $ 115,306 $ 101,831

We received FDA licensure to manufacture Nabi-HB at our biopharmaceutical manufacturing facility in
Boca Raton, Florida in October 2001. Capitalization of interest and other costs ceased at that time, which was the
point at which the facility was ready for the manufacture of Nabi-HB in an FDA approved environment, its intended
use, and the facility was placed into service. Total costs of construction of the Boca Raton facility, including the
building, building systems, plant equipment and information systems were approximately $90.3 million. Validation
costs and capitalized interest related directly to preparing the facility for its intended use totaled $63.5 million.

Depreciation expense of property, plant and equipment during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $9.5 million, $10.3 million
and $9.6 million, respectively. Depreciation expense related to the initial operation of our biopharmaceutical
manufacturing facility in Boca Raton, Florida commenced in October 2001. In accordance with our depreciation
policy for certain specialized equipment in our biopharmaceutical facility, we recorded additional depreciation
expense of $2.5 million, $1.6 million and $2.3 million in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively, due to the units-of-
production method of depreciation resulting in depreciation less than at least 60% of depreciation expense that
would be recorded using the straight-line method of depreciation for this equipment. In addition, depreciation
expense included depreciation of assets under capital leases of $0.1 million.

Construction in progress primarily consisted of costs related to the construction of a vaccine manufacturing
plant within our Boca Raton, Florida facility at December 25, 2004. At December 27, 2003 construction in progress
primarily consisted of costs related to the construction of a laboratory and cold storage facility in Boca Raton, Florida.
Interest capitalized in connection with construction of our vaccine manufacturing plant was $0.3 million in 2004
and in connection with construction of our cold storage facility $0.1 million in 2003.
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NOTE ¢

Intangible assets consist of the following:

Dollars in Thousands

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 25, 2004

December 27, 2003

PhosLo related:
Trademark/tradename $ 1,423 $ 1,423
Tablet patent 11,381 11,381
Gelcap patent 80,670 80,680
Customer relationships 2,337 2,337
Covenant-not-to-compete 508 508
Manufacturing right - Cambrex 2,992 323
Other intangible assets 4,389 3,639
Tota] intangible assets 103,700 100,291
Less accumulated amortization (13,972) (5,300)
Total $ 89,728 $ 94,991

On August 4, 2003, we acquired PhosLo from Braintree Laboratories Inc. or Braintree. PhosLo is currently approved
for the control of elevated phosphate levels, or hyperphosphatemia, for patents with end-stage kidney (renal) failure.
Under the terms of the acquisition, we purchased patent rights, trade secrets, the PhosLo trademarks, regulatory
approvals and licenses, certain customer and regulatory data and finished product inventory and did not assume
any liabilities. All assets purchased, except for inventory, have been recorded at their estimated fair value, adjusted
by a pro rata portion of the excess of purchase price, and are included in intangible assets.

On October 9, 2003, we announced we had entered into a contract manufacturing agreement for an initial
term of up to ten years with Cambrex Bio Science for the commercial manufacture of StaphVAX. Vaccine
manufactured at Cambrex Bio Science was used to support our Marketing Approval Application or MAA for
StaphVAX in the EU that we filed in December of 2004. As a result of entering into this agreement with Cambrex
Bio Science, we ended our contract manufacturing agreement with Dow on October 9, 2003. We recorded a charge
of approximately $9.7 million for the write-off of the Dow manufacturing right during 2003, the period in which
we determined that we would not manufacture commercial StaphVAX vaccine at Dow.

Amortization of intangible assets during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $8.7 million, $5.4 million and $1.1 million.
Amortization expense for intangible assets currently subject to amortzadon is expected to be $8.9 million, $8.8 million,
$6.5 million, $5.5 million, and $5.2 million in each of the five fiscal years subsequent to December 25, 2004.

=4  Nabi Biopharmaceuticals



NOTE 7 ACCRUED EXPENSES
Accrued expenses consist of the following:

In Thousands December 25, 2004 December 27, 2003

Sales deductions
Accrued chargebacks $ 4417 $ 4,497
Accrued rebates 2,580 1,867
Accrued discounts 1,067 652
Other accrued sales deductions 488 317
Total accrued sales deductions 8,552 7,333
Employee compensation and benefits 8,411 6,448
Accrued royaltes and product costs 3,236 6,486
Accrued clinical trial expenses 5,152 822
Accrued construction services fees 873 -
Accrued professional services 883 554
Accrued European expenses 222 -
Other 2,961 2,313
Total $32,290 $23,956
NOTE 38 CREDIT FACILITIES

On March 26, 2004, we terminated our credit agreement with Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc., part of Wells Fargo &
Company. The credit agreement had an original term through June 2006. As a result of terminating the credit
agreement we incurred an early termination penalty of $0.6 million that has been included in interest expense in
the accompanying statement of operations for 2004. By terminating the credit agreement we avoided unused credit
fees and other credit charges that would have been incurred during the remaining term of the agreement through
June 2006. In addition, included in interest expense in the accompanying statement of operations for 2004 is the
write-off of previously capitalized loan origination fees of approximately $0.5 million recorded at the time of
entering into the credit agreement.

NOTE 9 STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Warrants

In July 2000, we issued a warrant to purchase 133,333 shares of common stock to our agent in connection with
the private placement of common stock for which we realized $9.3 million, net of issuance costs. On April 13, 2004,
the holder of a warrant to purchase 133,333 shares of our common stock at $7.50 per share exercised the warrant
using the net exercise provision of the warrant. As a result of the net exercise, we issued 74,070 shares of our
common stock to the holder of the warrant. The estimated fair value of the warrant at the date of grant was
$0.9 million. This fair value was calculated using the Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:
expected term of five years, expected voladlity of 104% and expected risk-free interest rate of 6%.

Treasury Stock

In September 2001, our Board of Directors approved the expenditure of up to $5.0 million to purchase our
common stock in the open market or in privately negotiated transactions. We acquired no shares under this program
during 2004 or 2003.To date, we have acquired 345,883 shares of our common stock for a total of $1.9 million since
the inception of this buy back program. Repurchased shares have been accounted for as weasury stock.
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In various transactions, 2 member of our Board of Directors exercised stock options for 6,250 shares in 2004,
two members of our Board of Directors exercised stock options for 639,311 shares and 4,500 shares, respectively,
in 2003, and one member of our Board of Directors exercised stock options for 60,000 shares of our common stock
in 2002. These purchases were paid for by delivery of 3,496 shares of common stock in 2004, 411,956 and 2,371
shares of common stock in 2003 and 40,107 shares, respectively, in 2002, which were valued at $57 thousand,
$3.1 million, $16 thousand and $0.2 million for the respective transactions. In each of the wransactions, the shares
delivered had been acquired more than six months earlier by the members of our Board of Directors. These shares
have been accounted for as treasury stock.

Stock Options

We maintain four stock option plans for our employees. Under these plans, we have granted options to certain
employees entitling them to purchase shares of common stock within ten years. The options vest over periods
ranging from zero to five years from the date of grant and have been granted at exercise prices equal to the fair
market value of the underlying common stock on the date of grant.

During 2004, we modified stock options for certain of our employees and, as a result, incurred a charge of
$0.2 million. On June 20, 2003, we entered into a retirement agreement with David J. Gury, our former Chief
Executive Officer. As a result, we incurred a charge of $0.3 million of costs related to modification of certain of
his outstanding stock options. Refer to Note 18.

In May 2004, our shareholders approved the 2004 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors, or the Directors
Plan, that succeeded the Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors that was then in effect. Under the Directors Plan
we have granted options to certain directors entitling them to purchase shares of common stock within ten years,
vesting six months after the date of grant, at an exercise price equal to the fair market value of the underlying
common stock at the date of grant. Under the plan, non-employee directors may also elect to be paid their annual
retainer as a director in whole or in part in shares of our common stock if approved in advance by our Board of
Directors. The number of shares issued if this election is made is the annual retainer divided by the market value
of a share of common stock on the date the annual retainer is paid. In 2004, one director elected to receive his annual
retainer in comumon shares, receiving 1,201 shares of common stock.

In May 2004, our shareholders approved an amendment to our 2000 Equity Incentve Plan adding 4,500,000
shares of our common stock to the plan.

At December 25, 2004, there were options outstanding under our various stock plans to acquire a total of
8.0 million shares of our common stock of which options for 4.0 million shares were then exercisable. Additionally,
4.6 million shares of common stock are reserved for future grants under the plans.
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Stock options granted and outstanding under these plans as of December 25, 2004 are presented below:

Options Exercise Price Weighted Average
In Thousands per Share Exercise Price
Balance at December 29, 2001 7,392 $1.63-$13.75 $ 5.99
Granted 1,470 3.60 - 10.18 8.69
Exercised (379 5.30- 11.28 3.76
Canceled (493) 2.69 - 13.75 7.38
Balance at December 28, 2002 7,988 1.63 - 13.75 6.51
Granted 1,937 5.09- 11.25 6.00
Exercised (1,808) 1.63 - 11.13 4.46
Canceled (1,003) 288- 1375 8.22
Balance at December 27, 2003 7,114 2.63~ 13.75 6.68
Granted 2,567 8.88- 17.15 15.04
Exercised (1,540) 2.69- 13.75 6.40
Canceled (150) 4.69- 17.08 9.13
Balance at December 25, 2004 7,991 $2.63-517.15 $ 938
Outstanding Exercisable
Average Average Average
Options Years Exercise Options Exercise
Exercise Price Range (In Thousands) Remaining Price (In Thousands) Price
$ 2.63 -5 425 562 3.8 $ 3.08 591 § 3.08
$ 435 -8 747 3,494 6.6 5.99 2,375 6.11
$ 8.00 -$11.25 1,176 6.1 9.64 738 9.81
$11.69-$17.15 2,729 8.7 14.97 296 14.38
Total 7,991 4,000

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In May 2000, the stockholders approved the Nabi Employee Stock Purchase Plan. The terms of the ESPP, as
amended, allow for qualified employees as defined therein to participate in the purchase of up to 1,000,000 shares
of our common stock at a price equal to 85% of the lower of the closing price at the beginning or end of each semi-
annual stock purchase period. We issued 90,382, 112,494 and 116,940 shares of comumon stock during 2004, 2003 and
2002, respectively, pursuant to this plan at an average price per common share of $10.60, $5.94 and $4.99, respectively.

Nabi Savings and Retirement Plan
In May 2000, the stockholders approved the issuance of up to 425,000 shares of our common stock to our employees
participating in the Nabi Savings and Retirement Plan. To date, no shares have been issued under this plan.

Shareholders Rights Plan

Effective July 1997, our Board of Directors adopted a shareholders rights plan under which a dividend of one
preferred share purchase right, or Right, was distributed for each outstanding share of common stock. Each Right
entitles the holder to purchase one one-hundredth of a share of Series One Preferred Stock at a price of $70,
subject to adjustment. The Rights expire in August 2007, and are exercisable only if an individual or group has
acquired or obtained the right to acquire, or has announced a tender or exchange offer that if consummared would
result in such individual or group acquiring beneficial ownership of 15% or more of the common stock. Such
percentage may be lowered at the Board’s discretion. If the Rights become exercisable, the holder (other than the
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individual or group who triggered the exercisability) may be entitled to receive upon exercise shares of our
common stock having a market value of two times the exercise price of the Rights, or the number of shares of the
acquiring company which have a market value of two times the exercise price of the Rights. The Rights separate
from the common stock if they become exercisable. We are enditled to redeem the Rights in whole for $0.01 per
Right under certain circumstances.

Shares of Common Stock
In May 2004, our shareholders approved an amendment to our Restated Certificate of Incorporation increasing
the number of authorized common stock to 125 million shares from 75 million shares.

As of December 25, 2004, a total of 12.6 million shares of common stock in the aggregate were reserved for
issuance under our stock options, warrants and employee benefit plans.

NOTE 10 OFFERING REGISTRATIONS

On December 7, 2004, we filed a Form S-3 with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC to register
the offer and sale of equity or debt securities up to $175 million from time to time. We plan to use net proceeds
from sales of securities under this shelf registration statement to provide additional funds for general corporate
purposes, including but not limited to clinical trials, research, development and marketing expenses, and new
acquisition and licensing costs.

NOTE 11 PRODUCT ACQUISITIONS

In a transaction dated June 29, 2004, we exercised our right under our distribution agreement to acquire Aloprim
from DSM Pharmaceuticals, Inc., or DSM. We paid a total of $1.0 million for the acquisition of Aloprim including
payment of $0.8 million for the Aloprim product license at the closing of the purchase. We had previously paid
$0.2 million in the fourth quarter of 2003. As a result of acquiring the Aloprim product license, future product
royalties were set at 15% of net sales for five years. Previously, we were obligated to share net profits, as defined,
equally with DSM from net sales of Aloprim up to $4.0 million and to pay DSM 30% of net profits from net sales
in excess of $4.0 million. In conjuncton with acquiring Aloprim, we entered into a manufacturing agreement with
DSM to contnue to supply product to us for a term of up to five years. We are obligated to purchase $3.0 million
of Aloprim product under this agreement. Refer to Note 20.

On August 4, 2003, we acquired the worldwide rights to PhosLo from Braintree. PhosLo is currenty
approved for the control of elevated phosphate levels, or hyperphosphatemia, for patients with end-stage kidney
failure. Under the terms of the agreement, we acquired the worldwide rights to PhosLo for payment of $60.3 million
in cash and issuance of 1.5 million shares of our common stock at the closing date and the payment of $30.0 million
cash over the period ending March 1, 2007. In addition, we paid professional fees and closing costs totaling
$0.9 million in connection with the acquisition. The discounted value of the notes payable on December 25, 2004
was $23.3 million of which $9.9 million has been reported as a current liability under the caption, Notes payable,
and the balance of $13.3 million has been reported as a long-term liability. The notes were discounted at 4.5%,
our estimated rate of interest under our credit facility on August 4, 2003, the date of the closing of the agreement.
Braintree will continue to manufacture the product for us under a long-term manufacturing agreement with an
initial term of seven years. The manufacturing agreement also provides us access to an independent third parry
manufacturer and is renewable at our option for an additional eight years.
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The following table is a reconciliation of notes payable for the acquisition of PhosLo:

Dollars in Thousands December 25, 2004
Notes payable, PhosLo acquisition $ 23,289
Less current maturities (9,949)
Notes payable, PhosLo acquisition, long-term $ 13,340

The repayment terms for the notes payable provided in the acquisition agreement are a combination of fixed
semi-annual payments and variable annual payments calculated as a percentage of net revenue. We anticipate the repay-
ment of the Notes Payable, PhosLo acquisition, to be $10.9 million, $8.9 million and $4.9 million for the years
ended 2005, 2006 and 2007, respectively.

The following table is a reconciliation of the consideration paid for PhosLo:

Dollars in Thousands August 4, 2003
Cash paid at closing $ 60,325
Closing costs, including professional fees 920

Total cash paid 61,245
Common shares issued 8,400
Notes payable, PhosLo acquisition, net 26,860
Inventory received (186)

Total purchase price of PhosLo $96,319
NOTE 12 DISTRIBUTION AGREEMENT

On July 15, 2004, Cangene Corporation informed us that it would not renew the WinRho SDF license and
distribution agreement with us at its expiration in March 2005. We will continue to distribute WinRho SDF
exclusively in the U.S. through March 2005. We reported sales of WinRho SDF of $47.9 million, $50.0 and
$34.0 million for the years ended December 25, 2004, December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002, respectively.
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INCOME TAXES

NOTE 13
Income before income taxes was taxed domestically only.

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of the following:

For the Years Ended

December 23, 2004

December 27, 2003

December 28, 2002

In Thousands (as restated) (as restated)
Current:
Federal $ 5,413 § - $ -
State 271 (396) 133
Subtotal 5,684 (396) 133
Deferred:
Federal 4511 (5,465) 131
State 203 (288) -
Subtotal 4,714 (5,753) 131
Total $ 10,398 $ (6,149) $ 264
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are comprised of the following:
For the Years Ended
In Thousands December 25, 2004 December 27, 2003
Deferred tax assets: -
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 3,076 § 8,663
Capitalized research and development - 724
Research and development tax credit 12,464 10,754
Inventory reserve and capitalization 2,639 2,424
Amortization 2,555 1,751
Bad debt reserve 162 239
Depreciation 1,296 1,296
Alternative minimum tax credit 1,117 900
Deferred income - S
Accrued retirement 849 1,477
Other 498 880
Deferred tax assets 24,656 29,113
Deferred tax liabilides:
Depreciavon (19,733) (17,511)
Other (1,332) (3,957)
Deferred tax liabilides (21,065) (21,468)
Net deferred tax assets $ 3,591 $ 7,645

We have net operating Joss carryforwards of approximately $20.3 million that expire at various dates through 2023.
Approximately $12.1 million of our net operating loss carryforwards are related to the exercise of employee stock
options, and we will record a tax benefit of approximately $4.5 million through capital in excess of par value when

such losses are realized.
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We have research and development tax credit carryforwards of $12.5 million that expire in varying amounts
through 2024. We have alternative minimum tax credit carryforwards of $1.1 million that are available to offset
future regular tax liabilities, and do nor expire.

The ultimate realization of the net deferred tax assets is largely dependent on our ability to generate sutficient
future taxable income. As a result of our tax planning strategies we believe that the realization of our tax assets is
more likely than not to be realized and our tax planning strategies are prudent and feasible. We have determined
that no valuadon allowance is necessary as of December 25, 2004. We have recorded $4.4 mallion as a tax contingency
reserve against certain of our deferred tax assets, which is included in other long-term liabilities.

The following table reconciles our losses before income taxes by jurisdiction:

For the Years Ended
December 23, 2004 December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002

In Thousands (as restated) (as restated)
Pre-rax (loss) income:

UsS. $ (29,908) § (12,219 § 1,738
Ex-U.S. (10,084) - -

Total $ (39,992) $ (12,215) $ 1,738

Our ex-U.S. losses are primarily in no tax jurisdictions, and as such, we did not record a provision for income taxes
on those losses.

The significant elements contributing to the difference between the federal statutory tax rate and the effective tax
rate are as follows:

For the Years Ended

December 23, 2004 December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002
Federal statutory rate (34.0)% (34.00% 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal benefit (3.3) (3.3) 5.0
Foreign tax rate differendal (12.1) - -
Foreign sales benefit and nondeductible items 0.1 (2.2) (3.2)
Tax credits (3.0) (10.8) (27.3)
Gain on sale of intellectual property 75.8 - -
Other 15 - 6.8

Total 26.0% (50.3)% 15.3%
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NOTE 14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following table reconciles basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share for net (loss) income for the years ended
December 25, 2004, December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002:

Effect of Dilutive Securities:

Stock options

Basic (Loss) and other Diluted (Loss)
Amounts in Thousands, Except Per Share Data Earnings Per Share dilutive Securities Earnings Per Share
2004
Net loss $(50,390) - $(50,390)
Shares 58,800 - 58,800
Per share amount $ (0.86) - $ (0.86)
2003
Net loss (as restated) $ (6,066) - $ (6,066)
Shares 42,888 - 42,888
Per share amount $ (0.14) - $ (019
2002
Net income (as restated) $ 1,474 - $ 1,474
Shares 38,670 971 39,641
Per share amount $ 0.04 ~ $  0.04

NOTE t5 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Effective January 1, 2003, the Nabi Savings and Retirement Plan, or the Plan, permits employees to contribute
up to 92% of pre-tax annual compensation up to annual statutory limitations. Effective December 31, 2001, the
discretionary company match for employee contributions to the Plan was changed to 100% of up to the first 4%
of the participant’s earnings contributed to the Plan commencing in 2002. Our matching contributions to the plan
were approximately $1.4 million in 2004, $1.1 million in 2003 and $1.0 million in 2002.

NQTE 16 LEASES

We conduct certain of our operations under operating lease agreements. The majority of these lease agreements
contain renewal options, which enable us to renew the leases for periods of two to ten years at the then fair rental
value at the end of the initial Jease term.

Rent expense was approximately $3.5 million, $3.3 million and $3.4 million for the years ended December 25, 2004,
December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002, respectvely.
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As of December 25, 2004, the aggregate future minimum lease payments under all non-cancelable operating
leases with initial or remaining lease terms in excess of one year are as follows:

Year Ending In Thousands
2005 §2,625
2006 2,059
2007 1,447
2008 1,233
2009 155
Thereafter 378
Total minimum lease commitments $7,897

During 2004, we have recorded assets under capital leases that are included in property, plant and equipment totaling
$0.7 million. The following schedule summarizes future minimum lease payments under capital leases with terms
greater than one year as of December 25, 2004:

Year Ending In Thousands
2005 $ 240
2006 240
2007 109
Total minimum lease payments 589
Imputed interest (34
Present value of net minimum lease payments 5553
Current portion (229
Long-term portion $ 331
NOTE 17 RESTATEMENT OF PRIOR YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the process of preparing our consolidated financial statements for 2004, we determined that we had received
a benefit from our intangible manufacturing right asset related to our right to manufacture StaphVAX at Dow
Biopharmaceutical Contract Manufacturer of Dow?, site in the prior fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001 when we
had recorded no amortization expense. This determination led to our decision to restate the financial statements
for these periods for -additional amortization expense in accordance with SFAS No. 142 Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets. The following table summarizes the impact of the restatement on our statements of operations:

In Thousands December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002 December 29, 2001
Increase in amortization expense $(1,618) $(932) $(290)
Decrease in write-off manufacturing right 2,840
Decrease net operating Joss/

(decrease net operating income) § 1,222 $(932) $ (290)
(Increase)/decrease in (provision)

benefit for income taxes {(456) 351 105
Decrease net loss/(decrease net income) $ 766 $(581) $(185)
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Net (loss) income originally reported as $(6.8) million or $(0.16) per share for the year ended December 27, 2003,
$2.1 million or $0.05 per share for the year ended December 28, 2002 and $104.7 million or $2.36 per share for
the year ended December 29, 2001 have been restated as $(6.1) million or $(0.14) per share, $1.5 million or $0.04
per share and $104.5 miilion or $2.36 per share, respectively.

In October 2003 we made a decision to establish a new manufacturing relationship with Cambrex Bio
Science to support an opportunity for earlier commercializaton of our vaccine against S. gurens infections,
StaphVAX in Europe. As a result, we terminated our contract manufacturing agreement with Dow on October 9,2003
and reported a non-cash write off equal to the recorded value of the manufacturing right asset as of that date. As
restated, this write off amount totals $9.7 million versus $12.6 million reported previously. The restatement of amor-
tization expense related to this asset will not require restatement of the previously reported balance sheet as of
December 27, 2003.

NOTE 18 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On June 20, 2003, we entered into a retirement agreement with David J. Gury, our former Chief Executive Officer.
As a result we incurred a charge of $3.3 million comprising approximately $3.0 million in future cash payments
and $0.3 million of costs related to modification of certain of his outstanding stock opdons. The liability for future
cash payments is included in accrued expenses for the current portion, and in other liabilities for the long-term
portion, as of December 25, 2004 and December 27, 2003. Cash payments are being paid over three years com-
mencing January 2004.

In October 2001, we engaged Stonebridge Associates, LLC or Stonebridge, an investment bank, the president
of which is 2 member of our Board of Directors, to provide financial advisory services in connection with our review
and implementation of a corporate expansion strategy. The agreement, as amended in October 2002, provided for
a monthly retainer of $30 thousand plus, in certain circumstances, hourly charges. If the engagement resulted in
transactions by us involving aggregate consideration paid in excess of a specified level, Stonebridge received additional
fees based upon the consideration paid. Stonebridge acted as our financial adviser in connection with our acquisition
of the worldwide rights to PhosLo from Braintree in August 2003 and received a fee of approximately $0.3 million
for its services upon consummation of this transaction. Refer to Note 11. We believe that the terms of the engagement
with Stonebridge were no less favorable to us than would have been obtained from an unrelated party. Upon
completion of the PhosLo transaction, we concluded our agreement with Stonebridge. We did notincur any fees
during the year ended December 25, 2004 and during the years ended Deceraber 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002, we
paid $0.5 million and $0.6 million, respectively, to Stonebridge, pursuant to the financial advisory services agreement.

There are no amounts receivable from corporate officers at December 25, 2004 or December 27, 2003.

NOTE 19 STRATEGIC ALLTANCES, LICENSES AND ROYALTY AGREEMENTS

In October 2003, we entered into a contract manufacturing agreement with Cambrex Bio Science to produce com-
mercial quantities of Staph VAX. During 2004 the manufacturing process for StaphVAX was transferred to Cambrex
Bio Science from a previous contract manufacturer, as well as from our pilot plant in Rockville, Maryland. We have
completed the transfer of the manufacturing process to Cambrex Bio Science and completed manufacturing of
consistency lots of StaphVAX at the facility in August 2004, The contract manufacturing agreement requires us
to make certain payments to Cambrex Bio Science to secure future access to commercial vaccine manufacturing
capacity and to enable Cambrex Bio Science to ready its facility for the future commercial scale manufacture of
StaphVAX. The payments to secure future access to commercial vaccine manufacturing capacity have been
recorded as a Manufacturing Right and included in Intangible Assets. Amortization of the Manufacturing Right
has commenced in 2004.
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Under a license and distribution agreement with Cangene, we have exclusive rights to distribute and market
WinRho SDF in the U.S. Cangene, which holds the FDA licenses for the product, is required to supply the
necessary quantities of WinRho SDF to support such sales and shares equally in the profits from sales
after accounting for the costs of production and selling and marketing expenses. The current license and distri-
bution agreement ends in March 2005. Cangene has informed us that it will not renew the agreement. We will
continue to distribute WinRho SDF exclusively in the U.S. through March 2005.

Under a license agreement with the Public Health Services/National Institute of Health, or PHS/NIH, we
have exclusive rights to a U.S. patent relating to a carbohydrate/protein conjugate vaccine against Staphylococcus
for the term of the patent and are obligated to pay PHS a royalty based on net sales of products using this
technology. The licensed patent rights, which expire in 2010, cover staphylococcal vaccines including StaphVAX.

We have an agreement with Chiron Corporation, or Chiron, that grants us an exclusive supply agreement for
four vaccines, including hepatitis C. In addition, we have rights to 10 additional Chiron vaccines for use in humans
to produce immunotherapeutic products. The agreement may also grant us access to a vaccine adjuvant, MF 59.
We will be responsible for all development, manufacturing and worldwide distribution of these products. We may
terminate the agreement on a product-by-product basis in which event we shall transter to Chiron all of our rights
with respect to the product as to which the agreement has been terminated. Similarly, Chiron may terminate its
obligations to supply immunizing agents to us on a product-by-product basis, in which event Chiron shall grant
to us a license of the technology necessary for us to manufacture the applicable immunizing agent and the financial
arrangements in the Chiron Agreement with respect to such agent shall continue.

In April 2003, we licensed the worldwide rights to our whole cell vaccine technology for the prevention and
treatment of Staphylococcus aurens infections in cattle to Pfizer. In a letter dated March 2, 2005, Pfizer notified us
that they would not pursue further development of a product to address infections in cattle and were terminat-
ing the license agreement with us. Pursuant to the license agreement we retain our full rights to information and
data generated under this agreement and have no further obligations to Pfizer.

NOTE 20 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Under the terms of our agreement with DSM, we have a minimum purchase requirement of $3.0 million to
purchase Aloprim over the period ending June 29, 2009. Our purchase commitment requires us to purchase
$0.6 million in 2005, $0.7 million in 2006, $0.7 million in 2007, $0.6 million in 2008 and $0.4 million in 2009.

Under the terms of the Cambrex Bio Science contract manufacturing agreement at December 23, 2004, we
have a commitment of $0.2 million related to acquiring the right to future commercial manufacturing capacity
for StaphVAX and establishing commercial manufacturing of the vaccine at their facility.

In April 2004, we entered into an agreement with a general contractor for the construction of a vaccine
manufacturing facility and the installaton of equipment. At December 25, 2004, we had a commitment of $0.7 million
remaining under this agreement.

As of December 25, 2004, we had open purchase order commitments of $3.9 million.

See lease commitments discussed at Note 16 for other commitments.

We are a party to litigation in the ordinary course of business. We do not believe that any such litigation will
have a material adverse effect on our business, financial position or results of operations.

We have employment agreements with certain members of our senior management that include certain cash
payments in the event of termination of emaployment, and cash payments and stock option modifications in the
event of a change in control of the Company.
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NOTE 21 INDUSTRY SEGMENT INFORMATION

We manage our operations in two reportable segments, the biopharmaceutical products and antibody products
segments. The biopharmaceutical products segment consists of the production and sale of proprietary
biopharmaceutical products and research and development efforts for the biopharmaceutical product lines. The
write-off of the manufacturing right relating to our previous contract manufacturer of StaphVAX of $9.7 million
is included in the biopharmaceutical products segment results for the year ended December 27, 2003. The antibody
products segment consists of the collection and sale of non-specific and specialty antibody products to other
biopharmaceutical manufacturers and the production and sale of antibody-based contro! products.

The accounting policies for each of the segments are the same as those described in the summary of significant
accounting policies. There are no inter-segment sales. Antibody product used to manufacture Nabi-HB is transferred
from our antibody segment to our biopharmaceutical segment at cost. We evaluate the performance of each
segment based on operating profit or loss. There is no inter-segment allocation of interest expense and income taxes.

Information regarding our operations and assets for the two industry segments is as follows:

For the Years Ended .
December 25, 2004 December 27,2003 December 28, 2002
Dollars in Thousands (as restated) (as restated)
Sales:
Biopharmaceutical products $ 131,813 $ 109,459 $ 89,466
Antibody products 47,950 67,111 106,500
$ 179,763 $176,570 $ 195,966
Gross margin: ‘
Biopharmaceutical products $ 82,086 $ 72,104 $ 54,764
Antbody products 3,763 4,725 9,149
$ 85,849 $ 76,829 $ 63913
Operating (loss) income:
Biopharmaceutical products $ (35,361) $ (6,712) § 5,800
Antibody products (4,273) (4,971) {(3,062)
$ (39,634) $ (11,683) $ 2,738
Depreciation and amortization expense:
Biopharmaceutical products $ 15,771 $ 12,893 $ 7,898
Antbody products 2,090 2,655 2,744
$ 17,861 $ 15,348 § 10,642
Capital expenditures:
Biopharmaceutical products $ 20,274 5 3,59 $ 2,285
Antibody products 450 1,555 2,290
$ 20,724 § 5,149 § 4575
Assets:
Biopharmaceutical products $ 309,467 $ 305,745
Antbody products 50,997 74,406

$ 360,464 $ 380,151




A reconciliation of reportable segment selected financial information to the total combined amounts of the

selected financial information is as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 25, 2004 December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002
Dollars in Thousands (as restated) " (as restated)
(Loss) income before income taxes:
Reportable segment operating (loss) income $ (39,634) $ (11,683) $ 2,738
Unallocated interest expense (2,199) (1,350) (2,130)
Unallocated other income and expense, net 1,841 818 1,130
Consolidated (loss) income before income taxes $ (39,992) § (12,215) $ 1,738
Depreciation and amortization expense:
Reportable segment depreciation and
amortization expense $ 17,861 $ 15,548 $10,642
Unallocated corporate depreciation and
amortization expense 317 306 367
Consolidated depreciation and
amoruzaton expense $ 18,178 $ 15,854 $11,009
Capital expenditures:
Reportable segment capital expenditures § 20,724 § 5,149 $ 4575
Unallocated corporate capital expenditures 1,909 2,901 1,446
Consolidated capital expenditures $ 22,633 $ 8,050 $ 6,021
Assets:
Reportable segment assets $ 360,464 $ 380,151
Unallocated corporate assets 7,707 7,150
Consolidated assets $368,171 $ 387,301
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Information regarding sales by geographic area for the years ended December 25, 2004, December 27, 2003 and
December 28, 2002 and information regarding long-lived assets at December 28, 2002, December 27, 2003 and

December 28, 2002 is as follows:

For the Years Ended
December 25, 2004 December 27, 2003 December 28, 2002
Dollars in Thousands (as restated) (as restated)
Sales:
U.S. $ 167,363 $ 161,595 $174,291
Ex-U.S. 12,400 14,975 21,675
Total $ 179,763 $176,570 $ 195,966
Operating (loss) income:
U.s. $ (29,550) $ (11,683) $ 2,738
Ex-U.S. (10,084) - -
Total $ (39,634) $ (11,683) $ 2,738
Long-lived assets:
U.Ss. $ 205,573 $ 205,340 $119,770
Ex-U.S. 10 - -
Total $ 205,583 $ 205,340 $ 119,770

Ex-US. sales are determined based upon customer location. The majority of our sales are generated from the U.S.
Our principal ex-U.S. markets were South Korea, Israel and Canada in 2004. In the years ended December 25, 2004,
December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002, sales to ex-U.S. markets were derived wholly from antibody products.

Sales for the year ended December 25, 2004 included three customers of our biopharmaceutical product segment,
Cardinal Health, Inc., McKesson Drug Co. and AmerisourceBergen and one customer of our antibody products
segment, Bayer Corporation, representing 26%, 25%, 23% and 15% of sales, respectively. Sales for the year ended
December 27, 2003 included three customers of our biopharmaceutical product segment, AmerisourceBergen,
Cardinal Health, Inc., and McKesson Drug Co. and one customer of our antibody products segment, Bayer
Corporation, representing 20%, 19%, 18% and 21% of sales, respectively. Sales for the year ended December 28, 2002
included two customers of our biopharmaceutical product segment, Cardinal Health, Inc. and AmerisourceBergen
and one customer of our antibody products segment, Bayer Corporation, representing 15%, 14% and 35% of
sales respectively.
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NOTE 22 SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION

For the Years Ended
In Thousands December 25, 2004 December 27,2003 December 28, 2002
Interest paid $ 615 $ 331 $ 3,677
Income taxes paid (refunded) $ 703 $ (550) $(1,035)
Discount paid on non-interest bearing notes $ 654 ~ -
Supplemental non-cash financing and investing activities:
Stock options exercised in exchange for common stock $ 101 $ 3,100 § 246
Warrants exercised in exchange for common stock $ 1,000 - -
Intangible and other PhosLo assets acquired, net of
cash paid of $61.3 million ~ $ 35,260 -
Consideration issued in PhoslLo product acquisition:
Notes Payable - $ 26,860 ~
Common Stack - $ 8,400 -
Capital lease obligatons $ 355 - -
NOTE 23 SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (unaudited)
Basic (Loss)  Diluted (Loss)
Gross Profit Net (Loss) Earnings Per Earnings Per
Dollars in Thousands, Except Per Share Data Sales Margin Income Share Share
2004
st Quarter
ended March 27, 2004 $ 46,349 $22,574 (4,839 $ (0.08) $ (0.08)
2nd Quarter
ended June 26, 2004 47,992 24,633 (17,578) (0.30) (0.30)
3rd Quarter
ended September 25, 2004 43,774 22,048 (10,921) (0.18) (0.18)
4th Quarter
ended December 23, 2004 41,648 15,692 (17,052) (0.30) (0.30)
Year ended December 25, 2004 $179,763 $ 85,849 $ (50,390) $ (0.86) $(0.86)

2003 (as restated)
1st Quarter

ended March 29, 2003 $ 51,511 $ 16,642 $ 259 $ 0.01 $ 0.01
2nd Quarter
ended June 28, 2003 34,649 14,539 (3,355) 0.09) (0.09)
3rd Quarter
ended September 27, 2003 42,435 20,911 1,824 0.04 0.04
4th Quarter
ended December 27, 2003 47,975 24,737 (4,794) (0.10) (0.10)
Year ended December 27, 2003 $176,570 $76829 S (6,066) $(0.14) $(0.14)
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The results for the quarters ended March 29, 2003, June 28, 2003, September 27, 2003, December 27, 2003
and year ended December 27,2003 have been restated. Net income (loss) was reported as $0.5 million or $0.1 per share,
$(3.0) million or $(0.8) per share, $2.2 million or $0.5 per share and ${6.6) million or $(0.14) per share and was restated
to $0.3 million or $0.1 per share, $(3.3) million or $(0.9) per share, $1.2 million or $0.4 per share and $(4.8) million
or $(0.11) per share, respectively, for the quarters ended March 29, 2003, June 28, 2003, September 27, 2003 and
December 27,2003. Refer to Note 17. As a result, net (loss) income, basic (loss) earning per share and diluted (loss)
earning per share have been restated. There were no changes to sales or gross profit margin.

The results of the second quarter of 2003 include the impact of a $3.3 million charge related to a retirement
agreement entered into with our former Chief Executive Officer, David J. Gury. Refer to Note 18. The results of
the fourth quarter of 2003 included the impact of a $9.7 million charge related to the write-off of a manufacturing
right asset at Dow.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING
AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

None.
ITEM QA. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management has evaluated, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer,
the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures, as of December 25, 2004. Because we identified one
weakness in our internal control over financial reporting for amortization expense related to an intangible asset
for the periods ending December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002, our management concluded that as of
December 25, 2004, our disclosure controls and procedures were not effective to ensure that information required
to be disclosed by us in reports that we file or submit under the Securities Exchange Act is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in SEC rules and forms.

Refer to Item 7 for Management’s Annual Report on Internal Contro] Over Financial Reporting.

ITEM 98B. OTHER INFORMATION

We entered into a Development and License Agreement with Pharmacia and Upjohn Company (now Pfizer) dated
April 3, 2003, which licensed the worldwide rights to our whole cell vaccine technology for the prevention and
treatment of S. zureus infections in cattle to Pfizer. In a letter dated March 2, 2005, Pfizer notified us that they would
not pursue further development of a product to address S. zurens infections in cattle and were terminating the license
agreement with us. Pursuant to the license agreement, we retain our full rights to information and data generated
under the agreement and have no further obligations to Pfizer.
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PART I

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The information called for by this Item and not already provided in Item 4A will be contained in our Proxy
Statement, which we intend to file within 120 days following our fiscal year end, December 25, 2004, and such
information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 11, EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information called for by this Item will be contained in our Proxy Statement, which we intend to file within
120 days following our fiscal year end, December 25, 2004, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT
AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information called for by this Itern will be contained in our Proxy Statement, which we intend to file within
120 days following our fiscal year end, December 25,2004, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

The information called for by this Item will be contained in our Proxy Statement, which we intend to file within
120 days following our fiscal year end, December 25, 2004, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANTS FEES AND SERVICES

The information called for by this Irem will be contained in our Proxy Statement, which we intend to file within
120 days following our fiscal year end, December 25, 2004, and such information is incorporated herein by reference.
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PART 1V

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a)(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following consolidated financial statements are filed as part of this report:

Page No.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm 59
Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 25, 2004 and December 27, 2003 61
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 25, 2004,

December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002 62
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’” Equity for the years ended December 25, 2004,

December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002 63
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 25, 2004,

December 27, 2003 and December 28, 2002 64
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 65
(2) FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
Schedule II ~ Valuadon and Qualifying Accounts and Reserves 98

All other schedules omitted are not required, inapplicable or the information required is furnished in the financial
statements or notes thereto.

(3)

31

4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1

92

EXHIBITS

Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Nabi, as amended (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 26, 2004)

By-Laws of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to our Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 28, 2003)

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to our Current Report on
Form 8-K filed on August 21, 1997)

Rights Agreement dated August 1, 1997, as amended, between Nabi and Registrar and Transfer Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.28 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 1997)

Agreement of Substitution and Amendment of Rights Agreement dated July 1, 2002, between Nabi
Biopharmaceuticals, Registrant and Transfer Company, and American Stock Transfer & Trust Company
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 28, 2002)

1990 Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to our Definitive Proxy Statement
dated April 22, 1997)
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10.2

10.3

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

2004 Stock Plan for Non-Employee Directors (incorporated by reference to Appendix C to our Definitive
Proxy Statement dated April 9, 2004)

1998 Non-Qualified Employee Stock Option Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1998)

2000 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended (incorporated by reference to Appendix B to our Definitive Proxy
Statement dated April 9, 2004)

1990 Equity Incentive Plan Award Letter”

1998 Non-Qualified Employee Stock Option Plan Award Letter*

1998 Non-Qualified Employee Stock Option Plan Anniversary Award Letter”
2000 Equity Incentive Plan Award Letter*

2000 Equity Incentive Plan Special Award Letter*

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Thomas H. McLain and Nabi
Biopharmaceuticals (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 25, 2004)

Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Thomas H. McLain and Nabi Biopharmaceuticals
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 23, 2004)

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Gary Siskowski and Nabi
Biopharmaceuticals (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 25, 2004)

Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Gary Siskowski and Nabi Biopharmaceuticals (incor~
porated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 25, 2004)

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Henrik Rasmussen, Ph.D., MD
and Nabi Biopharmaceuticals (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to our Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 25, 2004)

Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Henrik Rasmussen, Ph.D., MD and Nabi
Biopharmaceuticals (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for-the quarter ended September 25, 2004)

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Mark L. Smith and Nabi

Biopharmaceuticals (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q
for the quarter ended September 25, 2004)
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10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20

10.21

10.22

10.24

10.25

10.26

10.27

10.28

23.

Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Mark L. Smith and Nabi Biopharmaceuticals
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 25, 2004)

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Raafat E.F. Fahim, Ph.D. and
Nabi Biopharmaceuticals (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to our Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended September 25, 2004)

Employment Agreement dated April 1, 2004 between Raafat E.F. Fahim, Ph.D. and Nabi Biopharmaceuticals
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 25, 2004) :

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated December 20, 2004 between H. LeRoux Jooste and
Nabi Biopharmaceuticals*

Employment Agreement dated December ZO, 2004 between H. LeRoux Jooste and Nabi Biopharmaceuticals*

Change of Control Severance Agreement dated May 3, 2004 between Richard G. Clark and Nabi
Biopharmaceuticals*

Employment Agreement dated May 3, 2004 between Richard G. Clark and Nabi Biopharmaceuticals*
Form of Director/Officer Indemnification Agreement*

Summary of Director Compensation*

2003 VIP Management Incentive Plan*

Letter agreement between Nabi Biopharmaceuticals and David J. Gury dated June 20,2003 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 27, 2003)

Asset Purchase Agreement between Nabi Biopharmaceuticals and Braintree Laboratories, Inc. dated
June 23, 2003 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended June 28, 2003)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm*

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification*

Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification*

Section 1350 Certfication*®

* Filed herewith
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized on this 10th day
of March, 2005.

Nabi Biopharmaceuticals

By: /s/ Thomas H. McLain
Thomas H. McLain
Chairman, Chief Executive
Officer and President

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signarures Tide Date
/s/ Thomas H. McLain Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and President March 10, 2005
Thomas H. McLain

/s/ Mark L. Smith Senior Vice President, Finance, March 10, 2005
Mark L. Smith Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Accounting Officer and Treasurer

/s/ David L. Castaldi Director March 10, 2005
David L. Castaldi

/s/ Geoftrey F. Cox PhD Director March 10, 2005
Geoffrey E Cox, PhD

/s/ George W. Ebright Director March 10, 2005
George W. Ebright

/s/_Richard A. Harvey, Jr. Director March 10, 2005
Richard A. Harvey, Jr.

/s/ Linda Jenckes Director March 10, 2005
Linda Jenckes

/s/_Stephen Sudovar Director March 10, 2005

Stephen G. Sudovar
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CERTIFICATIONS

Exhibit 31.1

I, Thomas H. McLain, certify that:

T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to

state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,

fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the

registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure

controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) and internal control over

financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relatng to the registrant,
inchiding its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’ other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board

of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process,
summarize and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal contro} over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2005
By: /s/ Thomas H. McLain
Thomas H. McLain
Chief Executve Officer and President
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CERTIFICATIONS

Exhibit 31.2

I, Mark 1. Smith, certify that:

W

T have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals;
Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to
state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which

such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report,
fairly present in all material respects the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the
registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’ other certfying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure con-

wols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-~15(e)) and internal control over

financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 132-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those endities, particularly
during the period in which this report is being prepared,;

b) Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles;

¢) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end
of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation;

d) Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’ internal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal

control over financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board

of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over
financial reporting which could adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize
and report financial information; and

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant
role in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting.

Date: March 10, 2005

By: /s/ Mark L. Smith
Mark L. Smith
Senior Vice President, Finance,
Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Accounting Officer and Treasurer
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SCHEDULE II - VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS AND RESERVES

Additions Deductions
Write-Offs
Balance ac Charged to Charged to Charged
Beginning of Costs and Other Against Balance at
Classificadon Period Expenses Accounts Reserve  End of Period
Year ended December 25, 2004:
Allowance for doubtful accounts  § 646 $ 428 § - $ (641) § 433
Inventory valuation allowance 5,219 3,950 (577) 2,171) 6,421
Year ended December 27, 2003:
Allowance for doubtful accounts  § 647 $ 39 5 - $ (30 $ 646
Inventory valuation allowance 4,489 1,044 7) (307) 5,219
Year ended December 28, 2002:
Allowance for doubtful accounts  § 962 § 751 $ 19 $(1,085) § 647
Inventory valuation allowance 4,152 683 {69) (277) 4,489

EXHIBIT 32

SECTION 13350 CERTIFICATION

The undersigned officers of Nabi Biopharmaceuticals (the “Company”) hereby certify that, as of the date of this
statement, the Company’s annual report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 25, 2004 (the “Report™)
fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that, to the best
of their knowledge, information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial con-
dition of the Company as of December 25, 2004 and the results of operations of the Company for the year ended

December 25, 2004.

The purpose of this statement is solely to comply with Title 18, Chapter 63, Section 1350 of the United States
Code, as amended by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. This statement is not “filed” for the purposes
of Section 18 of the Securites Exchange Act of 1934 or otherwise subject to the liabilities of that Act or any other

federal or state law or regulation.

Date: March 10, 2005

Date: March 10, 2005
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/s/ Thomas H. McLain

Name: Thomas H. McLain

Title:  Chairman, Chief Executive Cfficer
and President

/s/ Mark L. Smith

Name: Mark L. Smith

Title:  Chief Financial Officer,
Chief Accounting Officer
and Treasurer
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